10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COPRY

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF CRAWFORD COUNTY, ARKANSAS
: CIVIL DIVISION II
MARY HARTMAN, ET AL PLAINTIFF

VS. NO. 17CV—10-44§,[}§[)
HENRY N. EDWARDS, M.D. JUL“SZU DEFENDANT

APPEAL Tmséﬁiwwogkm__'——
KER, CIRCUIT
D COUNTY, VAN BUR Ncﬁ\ERRK

TRIAL IN CHIEF
NOVEMBER 26, 27, 29, 30, 2012

VAN BUREN, ARKANSAS

* ok Kk Kk %k

BEFORE THE HONORABLE MIKE MEDLOCK
CIRCUIT JUDGE
TWENTY-FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT - DIVISION II
ook ok ok ok
APPEAL FROM JUDGMENT ENTERED: December 3, 2012
NOTICE OF APPEAL FILED: January 31, 2013
AMENDED NOTICE OF APPEAL FILED: February 19, 2013

APPELLEE'S DESIGNATION OF ADDITIONAL
PORTIONS OF THE TRANSCRIPT FOR

RECORD ON APPEAL FILED: February 4, 2013
APPEARANCES:
FOR PLAINTIFEF: JAMES E. KEEVER

Attorney At Law
2801 Richmond Road
Texarkana, TX 75503

AND
KEN SWINDLE
619 West Persimmon Street
Rogers, AR 72756

VOLUME V OF VII

(Pages 1053-1278)




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

FOR DEFENDANT :

WALTER COX

Attorney At Law

P.O. Box 878
Fayetteville,

AR 72702




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF CRAWFORD COUNTY, ARKANSAS
CIVIL DIVISION II

MARY HARTMAN, ET AL PLAINTIFF
VS. NO. 17CV-10-425 (II)
HENRY N. EDWARDS, M.D. DEFENDANT

TRIAL IN CHIEF
DAY 3, NOVEMBER 29, 2012

VAN BUREN, ARKANSAS

* Kk Kk Kk Kk

BEFORE THE HONORABLE MIKE MEDLOCK
CIRCUIT JUDGE

TWENTY-FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT - DIVISION II

* ok ok Kk ok

APPEARANCES:

FOR PLAINTIFF: KENNETH SWINDLE
Attorney At Law
619 West Persimmon Street
Rogers, Ar 72756

FOR DEFENDANT : WALTER COX

Attorney At Law
P.O. Box 878
Fayetteville, AR 72702

1053




10
11
12
13
14
18
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF CRAWFORD COUNTY, ARKANSAS
CIVIL DIVISION II

MARY HARTMAN, ET AL PLAINTIFF
VS. NO. 17CVv-10-425 (II)
HENRY N. EDWARDS, M.D. DEFENDANT

TRIAL IN CHIEF

DAY 3, NOVEMBER 29, 2012

VAN BUREN, ARKANSAS

* Kk Kk * *

BEFORE THE HONORABLE MIKE MEDLOCK
CIRCUIT JUDGE

TWENTY-FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT - DIVISION II

* kK * K

APPEARANCES:

FOR PLAINTIFF: KENNETH SWINDLE
Attorney At Law
619 West Persimmon Street
Rogers, Ar 72756

FOR DEFENDANT: WALTER COX

Attorney At Law
P.O. Box 878
Fayetteville, AR 72702

1053




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

DAY 3 - THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2012

(1:00 P.M. OPEN COURT RESUMES) |

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

. THE COURT: Are we ready to play our video or
wherever we are here, counsel. So. You all want
to, are we good to go on that or what?

MR. SWINDLE: May we approach?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, the plaintiff would
like to play and call two witnesses by video. The
first being Geneva Haynes which is 38 minutes, but
we have agreed on what should be redacted, that's
ready to go.

The second is we'd like to call Dr. Daniels who
is the person we took the deposition of just --

THé COURT: Which one did you turn? 1It's bad
if you turn the court reporter off.

(COURT REPORTER MAKES SOUND ADJUSTMENT)

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. SWINDLE: Uh, regarding Dr. Daniels, we
discussed this yesterday, it's about 3 hours of
deposition. We have cut out what we think is about
27 minutes that we -- we think is redundant, but

there's been disagreement with -- uh -- uh -- Mr.
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Cox. He wants things cut out or not cut out that we
want cut out and we couldn't come to an agreement on
that. And if we don't have an agreement, the only
option welhave is just to play the whole thing.

We haven't had an opportunity either to come to
an agreement or to have it edited a second time.
And obviously, this was just taken a couple of weeks
ago. We -- we worked through the night to get what
we could accomplished, but there's just limitations
on time.

MR. COX: Your Honor, they sent a fax to me
about 5 o'clock yesterday.

THE COURT: We're going to play all of it.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor. Yes, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: So, what else have you got?

MR. COX: Well, there is a part that if it's
going to all be played there 1is an objectionable
part and that is, Your Honor, put some limitations
and restrictions and conditions on my taking the
deposition, and you said give them whatever they
want. We did. We gave them -- we paid their
expenses and they asked for proof of his itinerary
to prove he was going to be where he said he was and

we produced that, the itinerary itself. And they
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want to produce the itinerary as an exhibit. I
think that's totally irrelevant to the issues in
this case.

THE COURT: Well, is it an exhibit to the
deposition, or is it in the deposition?

MR. COX: It was an exhibit to the deposition

‘and they asked questions about it.

THE COURT: So, why would you propose to take
that out? I mean is it at the end, the beginning,
or what are you suggesting?

MR. COX: Well, it's =-- it's midway. Tt =~

it's easily taken out, Your Honor. David Roe can

redact that part of the it and they don't have to
put the exhibit into evidence because that has to be
done during the course of the trial.

THE COURT: So, 1s that =-- is' that the part
that you all don't agree on, or is that something
else?

MR. SWINDLE: That -- that's one of the --
there's actually multiple parts we don't agree on
but that's one of them.

MR. COX: Well, there are actually only about
four or five pages, portions of pages that I agreed
to about 95% of what you all asked to be taken out.

There's not that much.
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THE COURT: 1It's just not easy to accomplish is
what you're saying?

MR. COX: Judge, it can be done fairly easily.
David Roe can do it.

THE COURT: Well, the problem we got here,
gentlemen, is that we're trying to get this case
concluded, we got a jury here. And, you know, we
need to move forward with it one way or the other.
And I understand sometimes these things come up. I
get what plaintiffs are arguing here is I guess the
question of availability verses having to take this
deposition. In other words, your client's truly not
available and is there a reason maybe to play the
deposition because he's not. But, I don't think
that's something a jury gets to hear.

MR. COX: That's right I agree.

THE COURT: I mean I don't -- unless you agree
to play it, you're saying you want to take it out,
then I guess my statement would be, take it out.
But again, we got limitations as far as trying to
move forward here and so I don't know how to
accommodate you other than say we got ---we got to
finish our case. So, somebody tell me where we are.

MR. COX: Well, Your Honor, could I ask that

the itinerary itself not be offered as an exhibit,
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an evidentiary exhibit because that's -- it doesn't
have to go to the jury, the deposition itself won't
go to the jury.

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, we =-- we would not
object to that if o if he doesn't want the
itinerary introduced into evidence we won't
introduce it. Uh, I'm not sure how that goes to the
playing of the deposition --

MR. COX: -- It. -- it doesn't, it doesn't
affect the playing of the deposition. I mean there
are questions asked but there's not minding details
like it is in the itinerary itself.

THE COURT: All right. So, 1is that -- where
does that leave us with the readiness for the
deposition?

MR. COX: Well, Your Honor, I have. not seen
their redacted, or we're going to play the whole
thing?

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, I -- I think that we
should just play the whole thing.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. COX: Okay. Well, that's -- that's the big
deal that we have then.

MR. SWINDLE: But we won't introduce the

itinerary and that's fine.
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THE COURT: All right. So, what else? Where
are we with that? So, when they finish theirs that
will be ready to go?

MR. COX: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And are we good to go with, I'm
sorry, which one is it?

MR. SWINDLE: It's Geneva Haynes who is the
adopted mother of Crystal Bieler, but her deposition
lasts a 1little over 30 minutes. Dr. Daniels
deposition will last 3 hours, you know, 3 and a half
hours, and the court can obviously anticipate where
we're going to be, probably close to 5 o'clock at
that point.

THE COURT: Well, we can, I mean when you all
switch gears or switch, if we need to take a break
we can stop the playing of it and maybe take a break
which is probably what we're going to need to do.
So.

MR. SWINDLE: And -- and, Your Honor, just so I
can anticipate we do have two live witnesses as
well, but we can call, without taking a break I
think the court can already see we're going to
pushing up against 5 o'clock. Should I tell my live
witnesses to be here tomorrow, or would the court

prefer to go past 5 o'clock?
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THE COURT: Well, I'm not going much past 5.
MR. SWINDLE: Understood, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Just -- just so I understand what

you're telling me though is that you're offering the

deposition --
MR. SWINDLE: -- yes --
THE COURT: -- and not the defense?

MR. SWINDLE: Yes.

THE COURT: You're offering it?

MR. SWINDLE: We're calling Dr. Daniels in our
case in chief just as if he were here live, yes,
Your Honor.

MR. COX: Your Honor, may the jury be informed
that he is my witness and he is a defense witness
being called out of turn?

MR. SWINDLE: I don't -- I wouldn't agree with
the characterization he's being called out of turn.
If he were here physically in Arkansas, we would
have subpoenaed him. He's part of our case.

THE COURT: I think you can tell them that in
closing, if you want. I don't think I'm going to
advise them about it. I think anybody's got the
right to call him by deposition, if that's where you
are. And so, if they want to call him and play his

deposition, they can.
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If you're telling me what you want to do is
play depositions this afternoon, then that's what
we're going to do. I don't think we'll have time
for live witnesses, assuming that's the direction
you're going in.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor, thank you.

THE COURT: So, I guess we'd anticipate those
tomorrow and then whatever you've got after that.

MR. COX: Well, depending upon the length of
their witnesses tomorrow, I think we'll be through
with the proof before noon.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SWINDLE: Agreed, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. So, we're good to go on
both depositions, no other questions, everybody's
settled about all of that?

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. I'm going to take a
break and get the Jjury in here and we'll get
started.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

END Of SIDEBAR CONFERENCE. )

(1:10 P.M. JURY IS SEATED IN THE JURY BOX)

THE COURT: Good afternoon everyone, glad you

all made it back. In case you haven't figured out,
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we have this rule about making sure nobody gets real
comfortable because as soon as you sit down then I
come in and you have to stand up, just kind of the
way it works. I didn't make that, its been here a
long time.

All right, Mr. Swindle, are you ready to
proceed?

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

Your Honor, may it please the court we would
like to call Geneva Haynes by video deposition.

THE COURT: All right.

(1:15 P.M. AT THIS POINT THE VIDEO DEPOSITION
OF GENEVA HAYNES PLAYS BEFORE THE JURY)

(1:56 P.M. END OF GENEVA  HAYNES VIDEO
DEPOSITION)

THE COURT: Are you ready to call your next
one, Mr. Swindle?

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor, if it pleases
the court we would like to call John Daniels,
Medical Doctor, by video deposition. And I believe
that's going to be played by Mr. Roe here.

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, jﬁst SO you
know we've'already been informed by counsel here
that this is pretty lengthy and I'm not sure where

there's going to be a place that I might pick to
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take a break, and so we get into this and some of
you all want to take a break, use the rest room, get
a drink, certainly say break or say something. I
don't know. I could think of some things vae seen
on Kiddie Cartoons but they probably wouldn't be
appropriate.

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, if it would help the
court in scheduling -- uh =-- uh -- this I believe
that Mr. Cox starts out in the deposition first, his
questioning is about one hour.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SWINDLE: And then the cross examination is
about two hours.

THE COURT: We'll look towards that break and
then if something happens we need to stop before
then we'll consider that too.

MR. SWINDLE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

(VIDEOGRAPHER DAVID ROE PLAYS THE VIDEO
DEPOSITION OF DR. JOHN DANIELS BEFORE THE JURY)

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, if it please the
court there's about two hours now of examination by
Mr. Keever and I'd move to give the jury a short
break before we do that.

THE COURT: That's fine. Let's take -- well,
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let's try to be back about i5 minutes, if we can.
Get a drink and use the rest room if you need to and
we'll be in recess until then.

MR. SWINDLE: Thank you, Your Honor.

(3:03 P.M. COURT RECESSES)

(3:20 P.M. OPEN COURT RESUMES)

THE COURT: Ready to continue with your witness
then?

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

(VIDEOGRAPHER DAVID ROE CONTINUES TO PLAY THE
VIDEO DEPOSITION OF DR. JOHN DANIELS BEFORE THE
JURY)

THE COURT: Anybody need a break, we got
another disk. All right, let's make it as quick as
we can. I'm not going to give you a time, but if
you need to get up and go use the rest room, get a
drink, if you don't fine, we'll get this loaded back
up and get going. As quick as we can.

(4:37 P.M. COURT RECESSES)

(4:47 P.M. OPEN COURT RESUMES)

THE COURT: All right, are we ready to continue
here?

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

(VIDEOGRAPHER DAVID ROE CONTINUES TO PLAY THE
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VIDEO DEPOSITION OF DR. JOHN DANIELS BEFORE THE
JURY)

THE COURT: All right, are we ready to continue
here?

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Come up.

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

THE COURT: What else have you got left?

MR. SWINDLE: Judge, there's still some, just
record keeping stuff about evidence that I'd like to
take up with the court, but I certainly think we can

let the jury go, there's no more --

THE COURT: -- No I mean what else have you got
tomorrow?

MR. SWINDLE: Oh, we have two witnesses
tomorrow.

THE COURT: Okay. How long are they going to
be?

MR. SWINDLE: Well, there's Crystal Bieler and
there's Dale McKinney, both fact witnesses. I think
we can have them on and off the stand in an hour .and
a half, two hours tops.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. COX: We'll be done before noon.
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THE COURT: Okay. Well, I just kind of wanted
to give the jury an idea. So, maybe afternoon it
would be in their hands or something.

MR. COX: I think so.

THE COURT: Okay.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.f

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen, I
was just trying to get an idea about where we are.
I know you all would like to stay until about 10
tonight, but I had to work this morning, so I'm
probably not going to make it that long.

Actually I was just kind of finding out from
the attorneys, it appears like that we may be able
to finish tomorrow, and in fact, maybe have the case
in your hands sometime around mid-day or early
afternoon, it jgst kind of depends on how things go.
But in any event, that's kind of where I see us at
the present time.

As I tell everybody the only thing you can
count on about this kind of business is that things
change, and so my saying is the only thing for
certain is nothing is for certain. But you try to
plan the best you can and that's kind of -- kind of

where I think we may be.

Again, rémember what I told you earlier. Don't
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discuss this matter. Don't allow anyone to discuss
the case with you. Be back in the morning at 9 and
we'll start up again. You're free to leave your
notes or whatever you want to or take them, I don't
have a problem. But just let all the jury get out
first.

BAILIFF: Please stand‘for the jury.

(5:35 P.M. JURY DEPARTS THE COURTROOM)

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

THE COURT: All right, what else have we got,
Mr. Swindle? |

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, just we have -- just
a few record keeping matters before we're dismissed
if I may.

The first thing I have is the DVDs and I think
Mr. Cox can provide the paper transcript for the
court reporter.

THE COURT: All right. We'll make those a part
of the record then.

[REPORTER'S NOTE: DVD deposition of Geneva
Haynes and Dr. John Daniels are provided under
separate cover with the original transcript only,
the paper copy deposition of Geneva Haynes and

paper copy deposition of Dr. John Daniels are
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introduced, admitted, incorporated herein and may be
JRI79- /733
found at pages/J% */%2¢hereof.]

MR. SWINDLE: And, Mr. Cox, you have already
been given the paper transcript? |

MR. COX: She already has it.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SWINDLE: Next, Your Honor, there are three
things that I would like to have -- uh -- uh --
produced and published to the jury once they do
reconvene and these are all from the deposition of,
I'll show them to Mr. Cox. There were actually a
lot of exhibits to the deposition and we agreed at
the very start not to include the itinerary, and in
fact, most of the deposition, I mean most of the
exhibits I am,'not including but I am moving to
introduce these three exhibits?

THE COURT: Any objection?

MR. COX: I have no objection.

THE COURT: All right, be admitted. Are they
marked separately or are they marked as exhibits to
the deposition just so they're not confused with the
other numbers.

MR. SWINDLE: Right. I would move to have
these published to the jury as well. I'm not sure

what number we're on.
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THE COURT: Okay. Well, I'll just --

MR. SWINDLE: Is there a distinction that the
court is making?

THE COURT: I don't know what number you're on
and I would suggest to you that just start at the
end of wherever your numbers are as opposed to using
numbers that are in that deposition --

MR. SWINDLE: -- Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- that may collide with what
you've already used.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor. And -- and I'll
figure that out with the court reporter afterward.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SWINDLE: We'll figure that out off the
record exactly what numbers they are.

Your Honor, also just another record keeping
issue. Uh, previously the court ruled that the
handwritten illustrative chart from Dr. Michota
would be admitted but for writing on the back, we
have, as the court can see we've removed this
writing from the back. Therefore, based on the
court's statement from two days ago we would again
move to admit this handwritten chart from Dr.
Michota.

THE COURT: Mr. Cox?
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MR. COX: There is something on the back.

MR. SWINDLE: Well, yes we've removed it is
what I'm saying. This is what was on the back and
we just peeled it off. So, I'm saying if -- if we
remove this now --

MR. COX: I don't care, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, be admitted.

MR. SWINDLE: Thank you, Your Honor, and -- and
again we'll work out the numbering with ma’am court
reporter after the judge has left the bench.

[REPORTER'S NOTE: Plaintiff's Exhibit 10,
handwritten chart of Dr. Michota is introduced,
admitted, incorporated herein and may be found at
page / Vﬁ’ 2 hereof.]

MR. SWINDLE: And I -- I -- I apologize -- uh -

- and just so that the court knows Mr. Keever has a

103 degree fever and he's =-- he's suffering
dehydration, he's pretty sick in bed. He was
dictating things to me that -- that he -- he wantéd
to make sure that I took care of before.‘ Uh -- And

I think that's it.

THE COURT: I did get copies of -- do you have
anything else, Mr. Cox?

MR. COX: No.

THE COURT: Of both your instructions. I
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understand that you do have some -- some things that
you still, or apparently still don't agree on. One
thing just for the benefit of counsel is that I
think you filed a motion for or including 2215 or
whatever it is, the one that deals with collateral
sources or something.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And I may very well consider that,
and so you might want to have that ready, if you
still want to submit that.

As far as the other instructions and/or some
conflicts that you have, I think what I would like
to do is maybe us discuss that a little bit in the
morning, we may or may not be able to get. those
worked out but let's be prepared to look at that
about 8:30 in the morning so we can move along, if
we possibly can.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything else?

MR. COX: No.

THE COURT: All right, see you then.

MR. SWINDLE: Thank you, Your Honor.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

BAILIFF: All rise.

(6:40 P.M. COURT RECESSES)
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he's

DAY 4

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2012

(9:00 A.M. OPEN COURT RESUMES)

THE COURT: All right.

MR. COX: May we approach the bench?

THE COURT: Sure.

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
AS FOLLOWS:

MR. SWINDLE: He is back from the dead.

THE COURT: He’s back. He doesn't look like
back from the dead, but he's back.

MR. COX: Your Honor, one of the witnesses is,

- of course, Crystal Bieler Haynes, and of course she

is obviously about to testify. She has her 4 year

old child with her and I think it's inappropriate to

have

care

her in the courtroom.

MR. KEEVER: We have sent Donna out to take
of her.

THE COURT: Okay. That's fine.

MR. COX: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Keever and Mr.

Swindle, do you have your next witness?

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, may it please the
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court, we'd call Crystal Bieler Haynes.
THE COURT: Okay.
Just come up and have a seat right here.
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE ON BEHALF OF THE PLAINTIFF
CRYSTAL BIELER HAYNES
having been called by and on behalf of the Plaintiff, and
having been previously duly sworn, was examined and testified
as follows, to-wit:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

SWINDLE:

MR
Q.  Good morning.
A Good morning.
Q Crystal, would you, please introduce yourself to the jury.
A My name is Crystal Lee Bieler. 1I'm 27 years old. I am a
single mother of a 5 year old little girl. I used to be the
store manager for three and a half years at Vanity, and right
now I'm currently working as a bartender so I could stay home
more with my little girl. And that's pretty much my -- my life
is my little girl.
Q. And I guess you were -- you were not expecting me to be
the one asking you these questions this morning, I guess? Uh,
and Mr. Keever is a little bit under the weather, but we're
going to press -- press on.

How many hours does your work keep you away from your
little girl?

1074




—

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

A. About 40 hours.
Q. And what do you do in the time that you are not at work?

I have her, if I'm not at work I have her.

>

Q. And what are your earliest memories of your dad Kenneth?
A Uh, my earliest memories would be living in Garden City,
Kansas. Uh, with his girlfriend at the time. Uh, we lived
with her for a long, long time. And we were pretty happy. We
did pretty much normal things. Went to the park. Went to
school. My dad was involved in everything that I was wanting
to be involved in. He was there.

Q. When you were around 7 according to your -- and -- uh --
we've heard from Donna Dewey, is that your aunt?

A. Yes.

Q And when you were around 7 did you go and live with Donna?
A Yes.

Q. Could you tell us about that?

A | Yeah. My Aunt Donna and her kids were -- uh -- they were
pretty ﬁuch like brothers and sisters that I never had so I
always felt very comfortable staying over there. Uh, it wasn't
a problem with me staying over there.

Q. Could you =-- could you tell us -- uh -- uh -- any memories

.that you have from that time?

A. Uh, yeah. I -- I -- I remember just going to school and
my aunt treated me like I was one of her own. I fit right on
in so we -- I mean it was just like a normal family.
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Q. How did you feel about your dad asking you to live with
Donna and her family, your Aunt Donna?

A. I was okay with it.

Q. And at some point Donna and her family moved with you‘to

Missouri, do you remember that?

A. Yes.
Q. Can you tell us what you remember about 1living in
Missouri?
A. I just remember movihg there, transferring schools there.
Uh, and just I mean it was -- it was all right with me so they

just seemed normal.

Q. Did -- did you feel like you were just oﬁe of Aunt Donna's
kids?

A. Yeah, pretty much, pretty much.

Q. What kind of contacts did you have with your dad during
that period that you were living with your Aunt Donna?

A. I had several phone contacts -- uh -- with him. He'd call
and check in and make sure I was doing okay. Uh, yeah, so we
-- we talked quite a bit on the phone.

Q. Tell us, if you will, about Donna's family?

A. She has a daughter and she has two sons and at the time
she was married. So, my uncle was -- was there off and on. Uh, -
but we were -- we were pretty happy. She took care of us.

Q. Donna has testified that there was a point when your dad
came to Missouri to get you, how old were you then?
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A. I was probably about 9.

Q. And what do you remember about your dad coming to get you?
A. Uh, him and my step mom came down and got me. Uh, we had
talked about it over the phone, discussed me moving down there

and if I was okay with it and I said yes.

Q.. Have -- have -- had you been expecting to see your dad and
Carol? .
A. Yes.

Q And Carol was your step mom, is that right?

A Yes.

Q. Uh, had you gotten to know Carol over the telephone?

A Yes.

Q How was the decision made for you to go back to Arkansas
with Kenneth and Carol?

A. My understanding was -- was between my aunt and my dad had
discussed it and also asked me if that's what I wanted to do.
Q.' What can you tell us about that period when you and your
dad and~Carol lived together?

A. Uh, I had transferred schoolsvto Alma. Uh, we lived there
in Alma and we also -- uh -- I went to school there so. I
remember starting summer school there so I wouldn't be so -- so
new so I'd have some friends whenever I started school that
semester. But I also started playing softball and
cheerleading. And my dad and -- and my stepmom were both
involved with that.
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Q. Did your stepmother Carol did she become somewhat of a
mother figure to you?

A. Yes she did.

Q. Was -- was Carol the first mother figure that you had
outside of your Aunt Donna?

A. Yes.

Q. | And what happened with your dad and Carol?

A. I'm not really sure what happened between them. I know
they did get a divorce.

Q. And -- after they got that divorce did you -- who did you
live with?

A. I stayed with Carol because my dad didn't want me to
transfer schools. I was doing really well there.

Q. All right. And after sometime did you go and live with
your dad in Fort Smith?

A. I did for a semester. Uh, I went to Fort Smith School, I
just wasn't doing very well there. Uh, like grade wise. Uh,
but -- yeah, I stayed over there for about a semester.

Q. Could you =-- could you tell us what was Kenneth, or what
was your dad doing to try to fulfill his responsibilities as a
father at that time?

A, Uh, well, he worked and he provided me with everything I
-- I needed. Uh -- I still played -- I still was involved in
softball. I still, I mean I made friends. Uh, but yeah, he
was -- he was there and everything that I needed.
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MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, I would like to

approach the witness, if I might?
Q. Can you identify this photo for the jury?
A. Yeé this was whenever I went and stayed with my dad that
one semester. Uh, this was actually my birthday party. Uh, I
am_the one with the short hair in the right-hand corner. I was
very tomboyish my dad didn't know really how to -- how to raise
a little girl very well so.
Clis Would it be fair to say those were happy times?
A. Yeah. Yeah.

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, I move to publish
this to the jury and admit it as Plaintiff's Exhibit
-- what are we up to, 12?

THE COURT: All right, be admitted.

[REPORTER'S NOTE: Plaintiff's Exhibit 12,
photograph at Dbirthday party is introduced,
admitted, incorporated herein and may be found at
page /222 hereof.]

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION
MR. SWINDLE:
Q. What kind -- what -- or what type of contact did you have
with Carol after the divorce?
A. I had quite a bit of contact with her. She -- me and her
kept in touch quite a bit. I stayed with her off and on.
Q. And would you tell us about'your life with -- with Kenneth
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after Carol left?

A. Well, I stayed with -- I stayed with her, or him for that
one semester of school, and I still even whenever I moved back
in with Carol I still -- uh -- still had contact with my dad.
My dad still saw me quite a bit.

Q. Where were the two of you living at the time?

A. Me and Carol? We were living in Alma at the time, and
whenever I was with my dad I was in Fort Smith.

Q. When you talk about this -- uh =-- this -- this period of
time that -- uh -- and the jury is looking at your birthday
photo there, but this period of time that you went back for a
seﬁester to live with your dad, what type of living situation
did he have, as far as space for you?

A. At the time it was just a one-bedroom apartment at the
time.

Q. Do -- do you feel like your dad was -- was trying to do
the best that he could for you?

A. Yes I do.

Q. What was your dad's work like like?

A. At the time he was working at OK Foods so he worked long
hours.

Q.. And who would look after you while he was gone?

A. At. the time his -- he had a girlfriend named Fran that
watched me.

Q. When you went back to Alma to live with, I guess at that
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-- at that point it's really your ex-stepmother Carol who is
trying to take care of you -- uh -- what kinds of -- what kind

of problems was Carol running into?

A. She was working two jobs at the time. She wasn't making
very much money. Uh -- so she -- she was doing the best that
she could to be there and provide for me. She was Jjust
stfuggling.

Q Whét -- was Kenneth trying to help her in any way?

A Yes he was trying to help her.

Q. Financiélly?

A I believe so, yes.

Q And we know that you left Carol's and became part of

Geneva's family, and we've heard from your mother Geneva. But
what kind of contact did you have with Carol after you became
a part of Geneva's family?
A. Me and her still kept contact. I'd go stay with her about
one -- one or two weeks during the summer.
MR. COX: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
what contact she had with her stepmother.
THE COURT: I don't know that that's relevant
at this point, let's move on.
MR. SWINDLE: I understand, Your Honor.
CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION
MR. SWINDLE:
Q. Can you tell us how that chapter in your life ended?
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Q. Uh, with -- with Carol?
Q.. Well, if you could tell us -- uh -- after you -- after
Geneva -- ‘uh-- took you in -- uh -- how did that chapter of
your life with your dad end, or did it?
A. Well, he took me up to the DHS Office over in Crawford
County. Uh -- and just wént in there and my -- my mom, my
adopted mom Geneva happened to be working the front desk and
she said that this guy with an eleven year old little girl came
in and he just couldn't take care of her no more, so she
brought me home.
Q. What type of requirement did Geneva put on your dad as far
as 'taking you in?

MR. COX: Your Honor, I'm going to object.

THE COURT: Rephrase your question.
Q. Could you tell us what was the agreement between Geneva
and your dad to take you in?
A. The agreement was that if she was going to take me in and

be my mom that he needed to be absent and not have any contact

with me.

Q. Did you understand that at the time?
A. No, sir, I didn't.

Q. How old were you at the time?

A. I was eleven.

Q. How did that make you feel?

A. At that time I was pretty angry.
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Q. Looking back now do you understand why your mom put that
condition?

A. Yes I do.

Q. Could you tell us about that?

MR. COX: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
what her reasoning was for that.

THE COURT: Sustained.

Q. Uh' == could you tell us how it -- how -- looking back on
that how you feel about it now?

A. Now that I'm a pérent of my own, if I had to be put in
that situation (WITNESS CRYING) I'd hope that I had --

MR. COX: Your Honor, I'm going to object, this
is irrelevant.

THE COURT: I think it is.

MR. SWINDLE: May we approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Sure.

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, we were just back in
the judge's office and the issue of loco parentis
came up, and Mr. Cox has already said that he's
going to move for a directed verdict on that issue.
Well, establishing the type of relationship that --
uh -- Crystal had with her father is -- is crucial
to that. We -- we shouldn't be barred from putting
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on evidence and then have Mr. Cox  move for a
directed verdict --

THE COURT: =-- Well, I'm not sure you're asking
her about her relationship with her father. You've
asked about how that affects her with her child now
which has nothing to do with her father. I'm not
sure how -- how I connectvthat to the relationship
with her father, trying to compare it with the
relationship she has now with her child and I don't
think that that's the same thing.

MR. SWINDLE: Well, Your Honor, my -- my --
specifically my question was, looking back upon -- I
-- I asked her, how do you feel about that, how did
you feel about that at the time, the no contact.
Well, now as an adult looking back on your childhood
how do you feel about it now. I'm asking her how
she feels about it.

MR. COX: She can talk all she wants to about
what he did to establish =-- re-establish a
relationship with her, but how she feels now about
all of that is irrelevant;

THE COURT: I think that's probably going
beyond what their relationship is. I think you got
to talk about what the relationship is and not what
she wishes it was or what it could have been. And
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MR.

Q.

so, I'm going to sustain his objection.
MR. SWINDLE: Okay, thank you, Your Honor.
END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION

SWINDLE:

-- Could you tell us, Crystal, what type of contact did

you have with your dad while you were living with your adopted

mom Ms. Haynes?

A. None.

Q. Did he know where you were?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you find out later about him having graduation photos
of you?

A. Yes.

Q. Where did he get those?

A. From my grandmother.

Q. Your grandmother in Kansas?

A. Yes.

Q. And is that Doris?

A. Yes.

Q. And we've heard about a grandmother who has Alzheimer's
now, is that the same person?

A. Yes.

Q. How much contact did you have with your grandmother Doris

in Kansas during this time?

1085




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

A I had quite a bit.

Q Was it regular contact?

A. Yes. We -- we talked on the phone a lot.

Q Did you know that while you were having this contact with
Doris that your dad also was having contact with his mother
Doris?

A. She had told me --

MR. COX: Your Honor, I'm going to object to

what somebody --

THE COURT: -- Don't tell us what somebody else
told you.
Q. You can't repeat what somebody else says but did you know

thét there was also that contact going on?
A. Yeé.
Q. Did -- were you aware that -- that your father wanted you
to be happy in your new family?
A. Yes I did.

MR. COX: How would she know that?

THE COURT: She's already answered it.

Sustained, but she's answered it. Go ahead.

Q. That brings us up to -- uh -- I think 2003. Could you
tell us what happened in 20037
A.. In 2003 I had graduated from high school. Moved to Van
Buren. -Uh, that summer I was working at Wal-Mart over in Van
Buren and I had ran into my dad while I was working there. Me
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and him had a conversation. He automatically knew who I was.
I knew who he was. He asked me how I was doing, why I had
moved to Van Buren. Uh -- we talked about me starting school
that fall over at U of A Fort Smith. It just seemed like a
pretty normal conversation. It wasn't awkward or anything. It
was pretty -- pretty good conversation.

Q. And how did that make you feel?

A.. It made me feel pretty good.

Q. Whét was your life like after high school?

A. After high school I started college in 2004 at U of A Fort
Smith. Eventually I met Brain Shyer which is also the father
of my child. Uh -- I started working as a bartender and going
to school and then I came up pregnant with my daughter. And me
and him and my little girl became a family -- so, I was -- I

was pretty happy.

L Q. And what year was that?

A. My daughter was born in 2008.
Q. And where did Brian work at this time?
A. At- that time he was working as assistant manager over in

-- at Wal-Mart.

Q. And where were you working at this time?

A. At that time I was working at the Electric Cowboy as a
bartender.

Q. Did things work out with Brian?

A. No, sir.
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And so, when did that relationship end?
About 2011.

And did you move at that time?

Yes.

Where did you move?

- o B A © = O]

I moved to the house at my adopted mother Geneva owns over

in Van Buren.

Q. Okay. And where did you go to work at that time?
A. At the time I was working at Vanity as the store manager.
0. And where did you go to work after that?
A. After that I worked at Ashley's Furniture and now I
currently started bartending again.
MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, may I approach with a
photograph?
THE COURT: All right.
Q. Could you identify this photograph for the jury?
A. Yes this is Cailee, my daughter and Brian her dad and me.
We are fix'n to take Cailee to her first rodeo.
MR. SWINDLE: Okay. Your Honor, I'd move to
introduce this as Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 13.
MR. COX: Your Honor, I don't see the relevance
of it on the issue of loco parentis.
THE COURT: I'm going to admit it,
MR. SWINDLE: What was the first part?
THE COURT: 1It's admitted.
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MR. SWINDLE: Okay, thank you, Your Honor.
[REPORTER'S NOTE: Plaintiff's Exhibit 13,
photograph of Crystal, Brian and Cailee is
introduced, admitted, incorporated herein and may be
found at page Z‘ZZj hereof.]
CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION
MR. SWINDLE:
Q. Uh -- Crystal, we talked briefly about how you spend your
time, could you give us a 24 hour summary or capsule of your
typical daily schedule?
A. Yes. Uh -- I would get up -- are you talking about like
at that time?
Q. Well, about today?

A. About today.

Q. What -- what -- what's your routine today like?
A. During the day I would -- I usually try to sleep until
about 10 in the morning, that's when Cailee gets up. I have

her all day. Uh, me and her we'll do our errands or whatever
we have to do that day. Uh, and then usually I'll get her
ready for work around 4 because I have to be at work at 7. And
then I usually drop her off at her babysitter's around 6:30 and

then I'll go to work and I don't get off until about 7 in the

morning.
Q. And who is there to help you take care of Cailee?
A. I have a babysitter that I hire that watches her a couple
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of days a week. And then her grandparents which is her dad's
parents watch her Saturday and Sunday, and my mom tries to
waﬁch her as much as she can.

Q. Doﬁna told ué about a trip to Kansas somewhere around
2002, or your junior year, does that sound right?

A. Yes.

Q. Could you tell us about that?

A. I had went to Kansas 'cause my grandpa was sick so I went
down there to see him one last time before he passed away.

Q. How did you feel about that? Was it -- was it like a
family reunion?

A. It was. It was not a very, like it was a sad family
reunion, it's not the type that you really want to get together
on, butyes it was. |

Q. And -- and did you -- did you see -- uh =-- uh =-- the
people you grew up with and your Aunt Donna's family?

A. Yes.

Q. Could you tell us about that?

A. Yes. I -- I spent some time with my cousins. Uh -- we --
we had -- we caught up on a lot of things, there wés a lot of

absent years there so. We caught up on a lot of things. We

hung out and we had a really good time. It was a very nice
visit.

Q.. Was anyone putting on any new roofs while you were there?
A. Yes. My cousin --
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Q. -- Could you tell us about that?
A. My cousins were.
Q. Could you tell us about that, who -- what -- what roof

were they putting on?

A. My grandma, my Grandma Bieler's.

Q. When was the last time that you saw your Grandma Bieler?
A. The last time I saw my Grandma Bieler was here in Fort
Smith right after my dad had passed away.

Q. And was that at the funeral?

A. It wasn't at the funeral, they came down and -- and picked

up his belongings.

Q. Right. And you saw them at that time?

A. Yes.

Q. When -- when was the last time you saw your Grandpa
Bieler?

A. Right before he passed away, so it would have been back in
2002

Q. Could you tell us about the contact that your Aunt Donna

had with your adopted mother Geneva Haynes?

A. She had none.

Q. What about when your grandfather died, did they have
contact then?

A. Yes. She -- she did call and -- and tell her about my
grandpa being sick and passing away.

Q. And -- and did you -- did Geneva take you to Kansas at
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that time?

A. Yes.

Q.' How about Donna, when was the last time you saw your Aunt
Donna?

Q. The last time I saw my Aunt Donna was -- probably -- I'd

have to say back in February, they had came in town and that's
the last time saw her. They stopped by Vanity where I was
working at.
Q. Crystal, can you share -- share with us your feelings
about your dad Kenneth and about his feelings for you?
A. Well, growing up I --
| MR. COX: Your Honor, I'm going to object on
the basis of relevance, what her feelings were
toward him, the issue is his relationship with her.

THE COURT: I think you can rephrase your
question.

MR. SWINDLE; Your Honor, may we approach?

THE COURT: Sure.

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, there's two issues
regarding Crystal. One 1is the loco parentis
relationship her dad had with her. But the second
issue is what are her damages as a beneficiary and
her feelings about her dad go to the second issue
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and that's why I was asking that question.
THE COURT: Well, I'm going to allow you to ask
it, I just think you need to ask it another way.
MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor. Thank you, Your
Honor.
THE COURT: All right.
END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)
CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION
MR. SWINDLE:
Qs Uh =-- Crystal, I apologize. I asked you an awkwardly
worded question, but let me try again and break it down. Could

you first tell us about what was Kenneth's relationship toward

you?

A. Uh -- from whenever I was younger or now?

Qs Well, let's -- let's talk about when -- when you were a
teenager, you know, what -- what was the relationship at that
time?

A. Uh, whenever I was a teenager I was living with Geneva.

So, we didn't have any contact at that time. I didn't quite
understand -- uh -- what was going on, or what I did that was
so bad that a father didn't want -- want me.

Q. All right.

A. Uh, and now that I'm an adult -- uh -- I understand the
reasons why he -- he did what he did, so -- uh -- now I mean as
a -- as a parent of my own -- uh -- I'm okay with -- with what
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he did and I understand that he was looking out for my best
interest and -- and making sure that I had what I needed which
was a family that was going to be there to take care of me.

Q. --.Did you ever have any doubt that he would do whatever

he needed to do to help you?

A. No I knew he would always -- always be there for me.
Q. When was last time that you saw your dad?
A. It was in Summit Hospital he had just -- I just heard

about the accident, he just had surgery and I went up there and
saw him.
Q. How did you hear about that?
A. My Aunt Diéne had called me while I was at work and had
told me that he had had an accident.
Q.. Tell us about the conversation that you had with your dad
at that'time?
A. There in the hospital we --

MR. COX: =-- Your Honor, I'm going to object as

to hearsay.
THE COURT: Well, ask it a different way.
MR. COX: Thank you.
CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SWINDLE:
Q. Could -- could you tell us without repeating what your dad
said, could you tell us what you learned in that conversation?
A. Yes. He -- we talked about -- about Cailee. Uh -- I
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showed -- I brought some pictures up there so he could see
Cailee 'cause he had never got to see her. Uh -- we had also
made arrangements for him to -- to see Cailee once he got

settled over in Ashton Place. I was supposed to get a phone
call so I could bring Cailee up there.

0. Uh -- and -- and just -- just to be clear, I think you
talked about your Aunt Diane, is that the biological sister
that your dad found here in Fort Smith area?

A, Yes.

Q. Uh, when she told you about -- uh -- your dad being in the
hospital -- uh -- did you have any confrontational conversation
with your Aunt Diane?

A. Yes. We had -- she had a few choice words towards me. Uh
-- but -- uh -- I don't think she quite understood these --

MR. COX: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
conversation between an aunt and her.

THE COURT: I don't know if she said what she
said yet so I'm going to allow up to then. So, it's
noted. Overruled.

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION
MR. SWINDLE:
Q. Uh -- what advice -- without repeating the -- the words,
you know, you can't repeat what somebody else spoke, but what
was her conclusion to you, her advice to you?
A. That I needed to go see my father.
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Q. All right. How did that make you feel?

A. It made me feel okay. I mean I was fine with it.

Q. Can you -- can you tell us more about your -- your last
visit with your dad at the hospital?

A. Uh -- we talked and joked. My dad was -- was a pretty --

had a pretty good sense of humor. So, we always had pretty

good conversations, lots of laughter, and mostly about -- about
Cailee.
Q. Did you discuss with him how much you missed him when you

were growing up?

A. Yes we did.

Q. Did you get any new insights from that conversation with
him?

MR. COX: Your Honor, I'm going to object on

that --
THE COURT: -- Sustained.
Q. What plans did you make with him?
A. That we were going to -- as soon as he moved over to
Ashton's Place -- uh -- we were going to -- I was going to

bring Cailee up there so he could see her.

Q. Do you feel like that -- that was important to your dad?
A. Yes I did.

Q. What happened to your plans to introduce your dad to your
granddaughter Cailee?

A. They never happened.
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Q.

Why not?

Because he had passed away.

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, may I approach?

THE COURT: All right.

Do you recall giving a -- or viewing a document after your

dad had passed away from the funeral home --

MR. COX: May we approach?

THE COURT: Sure.

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

MR. COX: These are some document from the
funeral service and its got notes from multiple
people on there, list of people who signed in and
comments of people who wrote condolences I think
that's highly improper and it has nothing to do with
her mental anguish or loco parentis status.

THE COURT: I don't think it's admissible.

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, I think it goes to
the way that he valued his own life. I think it is
admissible on that basis.

THE COURT: Let me see it.

( (COURT EXAMINES DOCUMENT) )

MR. COX: Did you provide that to us?

MR. SWINDLE: I did.

THE COURT: I'll probably let you admit the
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part that shows they signed the book, but I won't
let you admit the notes.
MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: She can testify -- 1if she can

ﬁestify that this is from the funeral home and I

think there's enough to let it in for that but I
won't let you, it says remembrances and all these
notes, I mean that's clearly hearsay unless these
people show up and testify.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I mean this list of people that
signed the book, if you want to admit that, I'll do
that.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Start with remembrances and take
that off, kind of look through that and make sure.

MR. SWINDLE: Walter, you can tell me if you
have any objection to this.

MR. COX: I have no objection to that, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SWINDLE:

Would you, please, identify that?

1098




10

11

12

13

14

k-

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

A. Yes. This is the sign-in at my dad's -- dad's funeral
here in Fort Smith where everybody signed in that came and saw
-- saw him.

Q Where did that end up?

A Uh, my Aunt -- Aunt Mary's -- Mary Jo wanted it.

Q. She wanted you to have it?

A No. She --

-- or she -- she took it?

She took it.

Okay. And, where did you first see it?

- O I T ©)

At the funeral home.
[REPORTER'S NOTE: Plaintiff's Exhibit 14, copy
of relatives and friends sign-in sheets from the
funeral home are introduced, admitted, incorporated

herein and may be found at pages / ZZ‘Z—ZZ?/hereof.]

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SWINDLE:
Q. What do you have other than memories of your dad?
A. Uh -- that's pretty much it. I have one picture of him
whénever he was younger.
Q. Teil us about that picture?
A. He's younger and he is in his Navy whites, uniform.
MR. COX: May we approach, Your Honor?
THE COURT: All right.
(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
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JURY AS FOLLOWS:

MR. COX: Your Honor, I don't have any
objection but I would submit that that opens the
door to allowing evidence that he was court
martialed, kicked out --

THE COURT: I don't think it does, but I'm
going to admit it. I'll note your objection but
anyway, not through this witness. You can admit it.

MR. SWINDLE: Thank you, Your Honor.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SWINDLE:

Q. Crystal, could you, please, identify that for the jury?
A. Yes this is -- this is the picture that I have of my dad
in 'his -- in his Navy uniform.

MR. SWINDLE: I move to admit that as

Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 14, I think we're up to 14.
I think we're up to 14 or is it 15, ma'am, court
reporter?

COURT REPORTER: Fifteen.

MR. SWINDLE: Fifteen, I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Your exceptions are noted.

MR. SWINDLE: Thank you.

[REPORTER'S NOTE: Plaintiff's Exhibit 15,
photograph of Kenneth Bieler in Navy uniform is
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introduced, admitted, incorporated herein and may be

found at page /751’2 hereof.]

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SWINDLE:

Q. What else did you get about six weeks after your dad's
funeral?

A. Six weeks?

Q. Right? Did -- did you get anything else from your Aunt
Mary Jo?

A." Yes I got -- I got a flag.

Q. And when we're talking about Mary Jo, 1is she in this

courtroom today?
A. Yes she 1is.
Q Okay. And she's the person who sent you something?
A Yes.
Qe And tell us what did she send you?
A She brought me my dad's flag from the funeral down there
in Kansas.
Q. How difficult was it for you to come and talk with us
today?
A. Very difficult.
Q. What have you lost as a result of your father's death?
A. I lost my father and I lost a man that could (WITNESS
CRYING) be a -- be a part of my daughter's life.

MR. SWINDLE: No other questions.
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THE COURT: All right. Mr. Cox.
CROSS EXAMINATION
MR. COX:
Q. Are you okay?
Yes,

Okéy. Is it okay if I call you Crystal?

-

Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Crystal, you and I met back on August 30 I guess it
was, wasﬁ't it, when I took your deposition?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And I know you had some difficulty there and you're having
some difficulty today and I understand that. And, let me just
ask you some background questions.

A. Okay.

Q. . About this lawsuit. Uh, this lawsuit was filed in June of
2010, when did you first become aware --

MR. SWINDLE: -- Objection, Your Honor, may we
approach?

THE COURT: Sure.

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, we've been through
this pretrial, when Crystal became a claim
beneficiary is not admissible, it's not relevant to
any point, it goes -- it goes to her attorneys'
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understanding of the relationship, not the
relationship itself.

MR. COX: Your Honor, I was leading up to
asking, the next question was when was she first
contacted by Mr. Keever, and he's the one who
initiated the contact with her.

THE COURT: Well, I think you can ask -- I mean
I think it's an appropriate question to find out
when she became a party to it, or if she was in it
at the beginning. I'm not sure as to how you could
get to that. But I think you can ask her that. So,
I'm going to allow it in that fashion.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION

MR. COX:

Q. Were you first contacted about being a claimant in this
case by Mr. Keever?

A.. Yes.

Q. Okay. Did you even know there was a lawsuit at the time?
A Yes I did.

Q. All right. And Mr. Keever prepared some papers for you to
sign at.that time, did he not?

A. Yes.

Qs Okay. And that was in July of 20127

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Okay. And then we had your deposition about 6 weeks
later, did we not?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Okay. Mrs. Geneva Haynes testified by video tape here
yesterday and said that while you were a student at Magazine
High School, and presumably the elementary school as well, that
you went by the name of Crystal Bieler, is that correct?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. We were provided by Mr. Keever a copy of your graduation
announcement, and it's not a good copy quality but I think it's
legible and there's a little card in there that goes in that
has the graduate's name on it, do you remember that?

Yes, sir.

What name did you put on your graduation card?

Yes. You've seen that, have you not?

A.

Q

A.' It says Crystal Lee Bieler-Haynes.
Q

A Yes.

Q

Okay. So, you did use Crystal Lee Bieler-Haynes while you

were in school?

A. Just that one time.

Q. Just the one time?

A. Yes.

Q. And that is the name on your birth certificate?
A. Yes it is.

Q. Name on your passport that you obtained?
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A. Yeé it is.

Q. You were adopted when you were 16 years of age, correct?
A. Yes, sir.

MR. COX: And, I don't believe the decree of
adoption, the final decree has been placed into
evidence and I would at this time offer as
Defendant's Exhibit 1 the final decree of adoption,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any objection?

MR. SWINDLE: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, be admitted.

[REPORTER'S NOTE: Defendant's Exhibit 1, final
decree of adoption is introduced, admitted,
incorporated herein and may be found at pages /9ﬁiéz
hereof.]

MR. COX: I'll pass this to the jury in a
moment, Your Honor.

CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION
MR. COX:
Q. But let me ask you some questions about that final decree
of.adoption. Crystal, in that final decree which was actually
signed énd filed on May 16, 2001, it is stated by the court
that Kenneth Bieler is the natural father but that his
whereabouts were unknown?
A. Yes, sir.
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Qe Okay. And, it also says 1in paragraph 3 that the
petitioner who is Geneva Haynes has had the care and custody of
you for the past 5 years?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that would be from sometime between your eleventh and

twelfth: birthday, would it not?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And that is correct, isn't it?

A. Yés.

Q. And it is correct that Geneva Haynes and her family were

your only means of support from the time you entered her
custody, sometime between your eleventh and twelfth birthday
until you graduated high school and left home?

A. Yes.

MR. COX: Your Honor, at this time I also want
to offer into evidence a copy of the certificate of
live birth which is the substituted birth
certificate for Crystal Bieler showing the birth to
Ms. -- actually showing her birth to Ms. Haynes --

THE COURT: Any objection?

MR. SWINDLE: No objection.

THE COURT: Be admitted.

[REPORTER'S NOTE: Defendant's Exhibit 2,
Kansas Department Of Health And Environment
Certificate Of Live Birth Crystal Lee Bieler-Haynes
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is introduced, admitted, incorporated herein and may
be found at page ZZE? hereof.]
(EXHIBITS PUBLISHED TO THE JURY)
CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION
MR. COX:
Q. Crystal, do you know a family by the name of Roy and Linda

Wilks in Magazine?

A. Yes I do.

Q. And who are they?

A. They are my aunt and uncle.

Q. Okay. Did you live with them for a period of time?

A. Yes I did.

Q. Was that before Ms. Haynes adopted you?

A. Yes.

Qs Were they your guardians?

A. Yes they were.

Q. Mrs. Haynes was not your guardian, was she, Mr. and Mrs.

Wilks were your guardians, correct?
A. Yes. Yes.
Q. Do you know what relationship, if any, Kenneth Bieler had

with the Wilk family?

A. None to my knowledge.

Q. They were strangers to him as far as you know?

A. So far as I knew yeah.

D Have you seen the guardianship papers that appointed them
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as -- or where they petitioned to be guardians, your guardians?

A. No.

Q. But you know they were your guardians, correct?

A. That was from my understanding, yes.

Q. How long did you live with them?

A. Very short period of time.

Q. Okay. And then lived with Mrs. Geneva Haynes?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you live with the Wilks family first and then go with
Mrs. Haynes?

A. I was with Ms. Haynes first and then Ms. Wilks.

Q. How long would you say you were with the Wilks family?
A. Maybe, maybe a couple of months.

Q. All right. Now, let's -- let's go back before the -- let
me ask you some more questions about the adoption. Being 16

years of age you had to consent in writing to become adopted by

Geneva Haynes, correct?

A.
Q.
A.

Q.

Yes, sir.
That was a voluntary act on your part?
Yes, sir.

And she has testified here that you asked her to become

her adopted mother, is that correct?

A.

Q.

Yes, sir.
And she I think happily agreed to do so, didn't she?
Yes, sir.
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Q. Now, were you explained who then that, if you became
adopted the decree of adoption would end any legal relationship
between you and Kenneth Bieler?

Yes I was.

You understood that?

A.

Q

A. Yes I did.
Q And, and you were okay with that, correct?
A

At that time yes.

Q. Pardon?
A. Yes, sir, at that time.
Q. Now, I'm just going to run over this a little bit and try

to be brief. But you've told us and Mrs. Donna Dewey has told
us that at about age 7 Mr. Bieler placed you in the custody of

Donna Dewey, correct?

A. Yes.

Qs And you recall that you were there about 2 years, is that
correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Qe Okay. And, how much contact did you have with Kenneth
Bieler during -- whatever period of time it was that you lived
with the family of Donna Dewey?

A. Several -- several contacts, phone contacts.

Q. Did you tell me that you lived with them -- that you saw
Mr. Bieler one time in those two years?

A. Yes I believe so.
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Q. Okay. And then Mr. Bieler married Carol and isn't it true
that they were only together for about a year?

A. Yes they were.

Qs So, if you went to live with them at 9 years of age, then
their relationship ended as a husband and wife about 10 years
of.age, correct?

A. Yeé. Yes.

Q. And then 1isn't it a fact, Crystal, that you 1lived
predominantly with Carol after their divorce?

A. Yes, sir.

Qi I know you told us a few moments ago that you lived with
Kenneth Bieler for one semester after their divorce, do you
recall telling me in your deposition that you recall living
with him for about two weeks?

A. Yes, sir.

Q.. Okay. And all the other time, from the time of their
divorce. until you came into the custody of either the Wilks
family or Mrs. Haynes that you lived predominantly, with the
exception of two weeks, wiﬁh Carol Haught?

A. From my understanding yes that's what I -- that's what I
said.

Q. All right. Now -- all right. And you do agree that from
the time you went to be in Magazine with either the Wilks
family or the Haynes family that -- and that was between ages
11 and 12, that you did not see or hear from Mr. Bieler until
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you accidentally ran into him here in Van Buren?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you run into him at the Wal-Mart?

A. Yes I did.

Q. All right. He knew where you were, did he not? He knew
where you lived?

A. Not at that --

Q. -- not at that time --
A. -- not in Van Buren, no.
Q. Okay. Now, during -- with the exception of the very first

Christmas that you were with Ms. Haynes, did you ever receive
any Christmas cards, Christmas presents from Mr. Bieler?

A. No.

Q. As far as you know, I think Mrs. Haynes told us this

yesterday that Mr. Bieler did not contribute anything to your

support?
A. No.
Q. Geneva Haynes was then and is today considered by you to

be your mother, correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you love each other very much, don't you? -

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And your little daughter Cailee considers Geneva Haynes to

be her grandmother, doesn't she?
A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Now, from the time you were between 11 and 12 years old
until you graduated from high school at age 18 you had no
contact with Mr. Bieler directly or indirectly, did you?

A. No.

. And it wasn't until 2003 that you had an accidental
encounter with him that you had any contact with him since you
were between 11 and 12 years of age?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Now let's -- let's pickup with that encounter at

Wal-Mart, that was in 2003, is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you ever live with Mr. Bieler after 2003?

A. No.

Q. You weren't asked this on direct examination I'm -- I'm

going to ask you about it, when you were getting ready to
en;oll in UA Fort Smith, you had some scholarship money and
some Pell grants to go to college, correct?

A. Yes I did.

Q. That wasn't quite enough was it?

A. No, sir.

Q. And did you go to Mr. Bieler and ask if he could help you
with your books?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. And he gave you $650.00?

A. Yes he did.
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Q. Okay. And that was because you asked for it?

A. Yes.

Q. And then over the next year while you were still a student
at UAFS, did you ask him for some additional money?

A. Yes I did.

Q. And do you agree that the total that you asked for and he
gave you was about $1600.00?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And isn't it true that after 2004 that you did not receive
any additional support from him?

A. Yes.

Q. And the only support you had financially or materially
from the time you were 11 years of age approximately, was the
$1600.00 that he gave you when you asked for it in 2003 and
part of 20047

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now after 2004, you had some limited contact with Mr.

Bieler, didn't you?

A. Yes.
Q. What, 3 or 4 times?
A. Yes.

Q. And that would be when typically you would go by and drop
in where he worked and say hello, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, the last time you saw Mr. Bieler before his femur
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becoming fractured was in December, 2007, wasn't it?

A,

Q
A
Q.
A

Yes, sir.

That's what you told me in your deposition?
Yes, sir.

And you were expecting Cailee at the time?

No. Actually -- actually Cailee was already born. Cailee

it was in 2008 'cause Cailee was already born.

Q.

All right. I thought you told me that the last time you

saw him was in December 2007 -- uh -- when he came by to bring

you a birthday card from your grandmother?

© » 0 » 0 » O PO PO P

were

Yes. Yes. I'm sorry.

You did tell me that?

I'm sorry. Yes.

And you were expecting at that time, weren't you?
Yes. Yes I was. Sorry.

And he knew you were expecting?

Yes.

And you delivered in February?

Yes.

of 2008 --

Yes --

-- so you were about half -- well, more than halfway, you
in your third trimester, weren't you at that time?

Yes, sir.

So, Mr. Bieler knew that you were pregnant, correct?
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A.. Yes.
Q. Did you see him or hear from him again after December,
2007 to ask how you were doing with your pregnancy or if he had
a grandchild?
A. No.
Q. As a matter of fact, Mr. Bieler made no effort to see
either you or his only grandchild after she was born, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And the only information he had about Cailee was when you
took some pictures to him in the hospital and showéd him?
A. Yes.
MR.* COX: That's all I have, ma'am, thank you.
THE COURT: Mr. Swindle, anything else?
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
MR. SWINDLE:

Q. Crystal, who is your mother?

B

Geneva Haynes.
Who is your father?

Kenneth Bieler.

No.

Q
A
.Q. Do you ever call anybody else daddy, father in your life?
A
Q

We've talked about you living with your father's ex-wife
Carol, is she still with us?
A. No she's not.
Q. When did she pass away?
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Q.

A.

Right before I graduated high school.
MR. SWINDLE: May I approach, Your Hoﬁor?
THE COURT: All right.

Could you, please, identify that?

Yes this is the -- my fathér's gravesite.

Could you read it for us.

It says Bieler on the top. And then it says, Kenneth L.

January 3, 1951 to January 29, 2009 (WITNESS CRYING) It says

Father of Crystal then Son of Burgess and Doris.

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, I move to admit that

as Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 16.
THE COURT: Be admitted.
[REPORTER'S NOTE: Plaintiff's Exhibit

photograph of Kenneth Bieler gravestone

16,

is

introduced, admitted, incorporated herein and may be

found at page (9’25 hereof.]

MR. SWINDLE: Thank you.
THE COURT: All right, you can step down.
(WITNESS DEPARTS THE WITNESS STAND)

THE COURT: Call your next.

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, may it please the

court, I'll call Dale McKinney at this time.
THE COURT: All right.
Come up right here and have a seat.

TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE ON BEHALF OF THE PLAINTIFFS

1116




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

DALE McKINNEY
having been called by and on behalf of the Plaintiffs, and_
having been previously duly sworn, was examined and testified
as follows, to-wit:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SWINDLE:

Q. Mr. McKinney, would you please introduce yourself to the
court.
A. My name is Dale McKinney I'm from Greenwood, Arkansas.

I'm the vice-president and manager of Midsouth Control and
Supply, and I'm on the board of directors with Midsouth Steam
Boiler and Engineering.

Q. Would you please tell us a bit about Midsouth Control and
Supply?

A. We're a boiler supply company. We ship boiler parts all
over the United States, Canada and Mexico to our customers. We
also supply Midsouth Steam Boiler, our parent company with all
their parts that they use on their jobs.

Q. And how long was Kenneth Bieler an employee of Midsouth
Control and Supply?

A. Since 2001.

Q. When did you become acquainted with Kenneth?

A. At that time.

Q. And how did your responsibilities in the company intersect
with Kenneth's work?
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A. Ken eventually -- uh -- worked for me. He was working for
Midsouth Steam Boiler when he first came and he was in another
building, and we consolidated and put him under my leadership
later on.

Q. Could you explain to us just what Kenneth did for
Midsouth?

A. Ken did all of our repairs to pumps. We have pumps that
we use in all of our indﬁstry and Ken did pumps, regulators,
traps, anything used in our -- our industry he was able to
repair it and we sent them all over the country.

Q. In that capacity what was your supervisory responsibility

to Kenneth?

A. He was directly underneath me.

Q. How well did you know Kenneth?

A. As well as I could know an employee.

Q. -- Can you give us an example.-- uh -- for example

regarding your éister?
A. (NO RESPONSE)
Q. Is that not -=- I'm -- I'm -- I'm sorry, maybe that was for
another witness.
Did you ever meet Mr. or Mrs. Reynolds?
A. Only at the hospital towards the end of Ken's life.
Q. How was Kenneth as a worker?
A. Exceptional. He was known throughout the industry for his
ability to -- to build stuff and not -- we didn't have any

1118




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

warranty issues at all with him.
Q.' How was Ken in terms of dealing with people?
A. Noﬁ bad. Everyone at the office loved him, everyone that

worked beside him at the office had no problems with him at

all.
Q. And could you give me an example of Kenneth's generosity?
A. Ken -- uh -- at one time -- uh -- was coming to work in a

cab, and I asked him what was going on, he said, he wasn't able
to buy a vehicle and I bought him a car to help him get back
and forth to work.

Uh, short -- a few months after that he was in a cab
again. And I said, what -- what's going on. And he said,
there was a couple desperately needing --

MR. COX: Your Honor, I'm going to object
that's hearsay.
THE COURT: You can tell us what he did, don't
tell us what he said.
Q. Mr. McKinney, could =-- could -- could you tell us the
story without telling us exactly what Kenneth said? You -- you
can't repeat what he said.
A. Okay. He gave the car to a couple that needed the car,
and that -- and that was his story that he had tried to help
soﬁeone out.
Q. How did that make you feel?
A. I just -- knowing Ken I knew that they must have needed it
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worse than he did or he wouldn't have given the car away.
Q. How often did you see things like that with Kenneth?
A. Learned more about it at the funeral home when they were
doing the reception. My wife and vaere sitting there and
people would come up and tell us --
MR. COX: -- Your Honor, again I'm going to
have to object.
THE COURT: Don't tell us what other people
told you.
WITNESS: Sorry.
THE COURT: Tell us what you know, but not what-
somebody else told you. Go ahead.
Q. Did -- did you learn that Kenneth was pretty generous? Is

that a fair conclusion that you had?

A. Yes.

Q. Was he driving a moped at one time?

A. Yes he had bought one and -- uh -- then again, he had
gi&en it to someone else that needed it, so yes. -- It was an

individﬁal that had got a DUI or something like that and they
weren't able to drive their car anymore and he gave them:the
moped to get to work.

Q. Uh, I -- I've -- I've heard expressions that -- that's a
person that would give the shirt off his back, is that a fair
description of Ken?

A. Yes.
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Q. Uh, what was -- what effect did Ken's death have on
Midsouth?
A. In my capacity we -- the last year, full year he was there
we did o&er two hundred thousand just in repairs. And since
that time I have yet to find someone that can fill his shoes.
Q. What -- what did he do at Midsouth that was so difficult
to replace?
A. Just that being able to build pumps and the items that he
built without having warranty issues. I've had several people
in that capacity since him, and cannot -- the warranty issues
just kill us and you wind up losing their business.
Q. And so would it be fair to say that you've lost a lot of
customers since he's passed away?
A. In' the repair business, yes.
Q5 Well, I understand how that's affected the business -- uh

MR. SWINDLE: May I approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: All right.
Q. Was there -- how -- how did -- how did Ken's passing
affect the morale? I mean do people miss him?
A. Everyone misses him there. Uh, probably one story the
girls talked about every Valentine's Day he always bought them
the little cherry kisses.

MR. COX: I'm going to object.

(SIDEBAR CONEERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
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JURY AS FOLLOWS:

THE COURT: Are you objecting to the pictures
or something else?

MR. COX: No, no just what he's going to say
about that. I don't have any objection to the
pictures.

THE COURT: All right. Admit the pictures.
Ask your question again.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION
MR. SWINDLE:
Q. And -- and -- and Mr. McKinney, you're not allowed to
repeat what other people say, but could you tell us just the
general atmosphere that's been left at the company since he's
passed away?
A. Just a -- a hole. I mean he was just such a -- a joy to
work with that we just miss him.
Q. Now, did -- did -- did your company put a little memorial
out for him?
A. We' have it in -- in our office just showing the flowers
that we put on the gravesite. They sent them back to us and we
put them inside a display, and then the deal mentioning his
funeral and then pictures that I got from his family that we
could put up.

MR. SWINDLE: May I approach, Your Honor?
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THE COURT: All right.

Could you identify these two?

Yes.

Is that the memorial you just told us about?

Yes.

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, I would move to
publish these to the jury, admit these and publish
them to the jury as Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 17 and
18.

THE COURT: All right, be admitted.

[REPORTER'S NOTE: Plaintiff's Exhibit 17 and
18, photographs of Kenneth Bieler are introduced,
admitted, incorporated herein and may be found at

pages /%72’/2 55hereof. 1

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SWINDLE:

e P

Q.
A

How long did Kenneth work for Midsouth?

Since 2001.

And what kind of employee was Kenneth in those years?

He was a good employee.

Did he have health problems?

Yes in 2003 == uh -- he took off for a little while -- uh

-- he had a growth in his groin area and he thought it was

cancer and finally determined later on that it wasn't. But it

really -- really upset him and he didn't show up for work just
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with the thought that he had cancer, it was really tearing him

up.
Q. How about other absentees?
A. He had some throughout the time, some of the absentees

were excused. He always did the air show in Fort Smith, he was
a big part of that. He was a big part of the balloon festival

in Sallisaw and also the air museum up in Fayetteville.

Q. Was alcohol ever a problem at Ken's work?
A. Not work, no, sir.
Q. Have you ever had the opportunity to see alcohol be a

problem in other employees by comparison?

A. Yes, sir. Yes.

Q. Uh -- was there an issue about -- uh -- you loaning a
company vehicle to Ken?

A. Yes during one of the times when he didn't have a car, one
had broke down, we loaned him one of our older company vehicles
and some of the other employees saw the vehicle at a bar, and
I pulled him in and took the keys away from him and told him
that was unacceptable and we didn't let him do that anymore.
Q. Uh -- but you never saw any problem with alcohol on the

job, is that fair?

A. No, sir, not at all.

Q. Uh, what can you tell us about Ken's enjoyment of life?
A. Well, through the air shows I mean he perked up every time
-- every time they came to town that was -- that was probably
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the most fun, or something that he enjoyed as a deal and
working up at the museum up in Fayetteville. Airplanes was his

great passion.

Q. Did those air shows ever cause a conflict with his duties
at work? '
A.. No. I'm -- I'm a former member of the 188th, my son's a

member -of the 188th, my brother is a former member and my
nephew. And a man wants to take off without pay and volunteer
his services out there I have no problem. I -- I thought it
was something.

Q. Okay. And what did you know about Ken's relationship with
his daughter Crystal?

A. All I knew about them, she showed up -- uh -- and came to
see him one time, and after they talked outside, I came back
in. We didn't even know he had a daughter.

Q. All right.

A.. Andvso like I say, I was‘—— we saw her just on occasion
there a£ the office.

Q. Did -- did she come by after that, or just the one time
that you know of?

A. Three or four times.

Q. All right.

A. She had moved up from Russellville I think to attend
college at West Ark and that's when -- about the time she
started showing up.
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Q. Did you and Ken ever visit about how long Ken expected to
work?
A. He had told me, and I think we both said, we'd work there
until we were probably 70 or they just kicked us out of there.
So.
Q. Uh -- tell us about the -- now I know this -- this -- this
is difficult, but could you tell us about what happened with
your daughter and -- and Ken's reaction to that?
A. Back on Halloween in 2003 -- uh -- my daughter went to
visit a friend in-a house and there was a man hiding out in the
hoﬁse.
MR. COX: Your Honor,~I don't see the relevance
of this.
THE COURT: I'm not sure I understand where
you're headed here, Mr. Swindle.
MR. SWINDLE: May we approach?
THE -COURT: Sure.
(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, this goes to how Ken

valued his own life and -- and the quality of person
that he was. Mr. McKinney's daughter was injured
and -- and -- uh -- uh -- Kenneth checked on her

more than anybody else in Dale's mind and that goes
to the value that he placed on life.
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MR. COX: Your Honor, without going into the
gory details of how she was injured is =-- 1is
irrelevant. He can talk about that he was kind to
his daughter.

THE COURT: Well, I -- I don't know that we
have to know about the incident. I mean I think
you're Jjust dragging it out to talk about the
incident. Why don't you ask what he did, to help
him or check on her or whatever. I don't know that
he's got to tell us all about what happened.

MR. SWINDLE: Sure. Sure. Thank you, Your
Honor.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

MR. SWINDLE: I apologize, Mr. McKinney.

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SWINDLE:

Q. Would it -- and I may have asked to open up a question.
Is it fair to say that -- your -- your daughter was injured?
A. She was injured.

Q And about what year was that, do you recall?

A 2003.

Q. Was she hospitalized?

A Yes.

Q Can you tell us -- uh -- was there -- uh -- an outpouring
of support for her from a lot of different people, is that fair
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to say?
A. Yes.
Q. Who was the person who was most -- uh -- uh -- concerned

about her, showed the most concern to you about her?

A. Ken Bieler.

Q. All right. Can =-- can -- can you tell us about how he
expressed that concern?

A. He called me every day that we were in the hospital and
offering to do anything that he could to help me out.

Q. Would it be fair to say that -- that he was checking on
the situation more than anybody else?

A. Yes.

* Uh -- what type of contacts -- uh -- did you have with
Kenneth after he was hospitalized in 2009? After he was put in
the hospital, I mean how often did you go see him in the
hospital?

A. Tried to go every.other night.

Q. From the periods of January 1l4th through the 25th, would

it be fair to say you -- you were up there about every other
day?

A.. Yes.

Q. And what did -- again, we can talk just about from that

time period, the 14th through the 25th, what did you see as far
as Kenneth's activities or his mobility?

A. Anytime I saw Ken he was laying in bed.
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Q. When he was laying in bed, was he -- was he moving his
legs up and down and doing exercises with his legs?

A. No. I never saw his legs move.

Q. Would it be fair to say that he was lying pretty still in
bed?

A. Yes.

Q. Let's go to the last day of -- the last full day of
Kenneth's life which was January the 28th, did you see him that
day?

A. Yes I did.

Q. Could you please tell us what you saw?
A. I left work around 5 o'clock and I walked into the room to
see Ken struggling to breathe. It was all he could do to get
a breath and he had oxygen on for the first time that I'd seen.
And I asked him what was going on and he said --

MR. COX: =-- Your Honor, I'm going to object to

hearsay.

THE COURT: I'm going to allow this.
Q. Go ahead.
A. He said, they tell me I have blood clots.
Q.” What else did you talk with him about?
A. Just -- I was just concerned over his health.
Q. All right. When he was struggling to -- to breath was he
in pain?
A. Not so much pain, just trying to -- just could not get his
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breath.

Q Uh, was he lying still on the bed?

A Yes.

Q. Okay. Uh, did you see -- do you know what a Ted Hose is?
A Yes.

Q Those stockings, white stockings, did you see those on him
on the 28th?

A. No, sir, I did not.

Q. What do you remember about Kenneth wearing Ted Hose?
A. I don't remember seeing them on him. Most of the time he
was covered up except that night -- uh -- he had to use the

bathroom really bad and he pulled the sheets off and I did
notice he didn't have a -- and I -- I know 'em because I have
worn 'em before.

Q. If we could back up two days -- uh -- would it be fair to
say you saw him before then on the 26th?

A. Yes.

Q. You were seeing him every other day. What do you remember

about that?

A. He just was -- had a slight shortness of breath, but not
too bad.
Q. Did Kenneth tell you anything about blood thinners?
A. Just that they said they were going to give him --
MR. COX: =-- Objection.

THE COURT: Sustained. Move on.
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A. -- some, yes.
Q. When you were talking about on his last day he was
struggling to breathe, could -- could you explain to us

physically what that looked like?
A. It was hard to see him in that condition. He was -- he

was really struggling to try to breathe.

Q. How easy was it for him to talk?

A. It.was hard between gasping for air, it was really hard to
talk.

Q. Did he ever struggle to breathe so much he was just coming

up off the bed even?
A. Yes.

Q. What was the last thing Ken said to you?

A. As I went out the door he said, I love you.
Q. And what time did you leave?
A. Around 6:30.
Qs What did you do when you left?
A. Went to the nurse's station and begged them to try to help
him.

MR. COX: Your Honor, I am going to object to

what he did that's --

THE COURT: =-- going to allow it. What else?
Q. And when you were begging the nurses to help, what was the
response”?

A. I was not family so I had no -- no power.
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Q.. And -- and what time was that that you left?
A. Around six thirty.

MR. SWINDLE: No further questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Cox.

CROSS EXAMINATION

MR. COX:
Q. Mr. McKinney, on that 28th when you were there to see him
sometime around five o'clock, the beginning of your visit you
said he was struggling to breathe, but I also heard you say
that he needed to get up and go to the bathroom?
A, No he used it. He had the hand deal that he put between
his legs.

Q. Oh; I see.

A. Yes.
Q. He was able to do that, to --
A. -- yes he had -- it was laying there on the bed and he

just grabbed it.

Q. All right.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Your visits to see Mr. Bieler in the hospital were

always after work, weren't they?

A. . Yes, sir.

Q. And it would be usually around betweén 5 and 6 o'clock,
correct?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. You were never there during the day --

A. s~ ﬁo Shas

Q. -- when he was having physical therapy or any other
treatments, correct?

A. The only time I saw him during the day was when he was at
Ashton Place, my wife and I went out there.

Q.. All right. Now, let's talk a little bit about the events
at work; and I believe you told us that you didn't know that
Kenneth even had a daughter until she showed up at work one day
to see him? |

A. That's correct.

Q. And he never talked about Crystal, did he?

A. No, sir.

Q. And I take it you never knew that he became a grandfather
either, did you?

A. No, sir.

Q.. He never talked about that either, did he?

A. No.

Q. Now, Kenneth did have some problems with coming to work
when he was supposed to, didn't he?

A. Yes, sir. From time to time, yes.

Q. And there were times he would just take off and be gone a
week and you not know where he was?

A. Yes.

Qs And, were there times, sir, that you told him that if you
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doq't get back to work you might as well stay home?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. And that occurred as late as 2007, didn't it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And I think you told me in your deposition that Kenneth
was a good worker he had attendance problems?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was true the entire time, wasn't it?

A. Yes.

Q. And while he had some excused absences, he had a lot of
absences that were unexcused and you didn't know where he was
or 'why he had missed work?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And, you had to take the company truck away from him at
one time, correct?

A. Well, I don't -- yes.

Q. And you took -- for a period of time you took his company
phone from him because of a complaint from a customer?
A. Right.

MR. COX: That's all, thank you.

THE COURT: All right, anything else?

MR. SWINDLE: Nothing else.

THE COURT: Need a break?

MR. SWINDLE: Yes. Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You can step down.
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(WITNESS DEPARTS THE WITNESS STAND)

THE COURT: All right, we'll give you a little
longer break this time, about 15 minutes.

Let me just say this, if you go in the jury
room you probably need to stay in there, if you go
outside you'll have to wait outéide until the
bailiff comes to get you. So, either place you're
free to go either way, but which ever direction you
head into, wait until we call you back in because it
might take a little longer.

Be in recess.

(10:45 A.M. COURT RECESSES)

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

THE COURT: Are you guys resting, have you got
other witnesses or what?

MR. SWINDLE: That's our last witness, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: 1I'll have you rest in front of the
jury, but I just wanted to be sure that you weren't
calling anybody else.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

Is this when the court would like to talk about
jury instructions and proffer what we talked about?

THE COURT: Well, are you going to have any

1135




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

24

25

motions?

MR. COX: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Why don't we go ahead and take
those up since they've rested and then we'll get to
instructions or whatever.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, the plaintiff has
rested, then any motions from defense?

DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR DIRECTED VERDICT

MR. COX: Yes, Your Honor, I have a motion, a
general motion to begin with and comes now the
defendant Dr. Henry Edwards and moves for a directed
verdict on the issue of liability and based upon the
following:

The testimony in this case on behalf of the
plaintiff is that of Dr. Franklin Michota, and
presumably based upon what they believe some of the
testimony was that Dr. John Daniels gave in this
court room yesterday. The burden of proof of the
plaintiff is to show what the standard of care is in
this community or a similar community. Dr. Michota
testified about what the standard of care was 'in the
-- at the Cleveland Clinic and in hospitals in that
area. He was specifically asked, do you know what

the practice is among the doctors here in Arkansas

1136




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

as to diagnosing and treating deep vein thromboses
or pulmonary emboli. And he said that he was not
familiér with what the standards of practice here
were.

He -- he took the position that all doctors are
obliged to follow the evidence based recommendations
of the American College of Chest Physicians. He
agreed that that applied to orthopedic surgeons. He
agreed that Dr. Rhomberg, in his opinion, should
have started blood thinners at or about the time of
the hip fracture surgery, did not do so, and he said
that Dr. Rhomberg in his opinion did not follow the
guidelines. And on the other hand, he conceded that
it was the policy of the American Academy of
Orthopedic Surgeons not to give blood thinners for
this type of injury, and so he said that his clinic,
all the orthopedic surgeons do.

I think what Dr. Michota effectively did is to
say this is the way we practice medicine, we think
everybody should practice that way without knowing
anything about the standard of care practiced here
in Arkansas. For that reason I move for a directed
verdict on locality rule.

THE COURT: All right. Response?

PLAINTIFFS' RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR
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DIRECTED VERDICT

MR. KEEVER: Well, Your Honor, I think he's
misstated Dr. Michota's testimony, or he left out an
important part. Dr. Michota clearly talked about
what the standard of care for an internist would be.
He admitted he hadn't been to Van Buren, a lot of
folks haven't, but he talked about communities of
similar size. He's aware of the size of the
community. He's aware of the facilities that are
available and he's aware that there were equal
opportunities for education for an internist in Van
Buren, as well as other areas and those are the
parameters upon which the Supreme Court has decided
locality rule cases.

He specifically said that for an internist the
standard of care would be the same in St. Louis,
Cleveland, and Van Buren, which incidentally 1is
exactly the statement that the defense expert made
when he said the standard of care preventing and
treating blood clots 1is the same in St. Louis,
Cleveland, and Van Buren. So, I think that it's
clear that Dr. Michota is familiar with similar
communities and familiar with what the standard of
care could be.

The orthopedic surgeon isn't part of this case,
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we're just talking about the internist and I think
that we've certainly met the burden of showing
locality rules.

THE COURT: All right. That motion will be
denied.

What else have you got, Mr. Cox?

DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR DIRECTED VERDICT

MR. COX: The second part of the motion deals
with the claim of Crystal Bieler Haynes, and I move
for a directed verdict on any claim asserted by her
for the reason that he did not stand in lIoco
parentis with her at the time of his death. The
evidence is clear that Mr. Bieler, whatever reason,
didn't take any action with regard to the adoption
proceedings. That this court knows what is required
to establish an adoption in a situation where a
father is absent and the father is not supporting a
child.

And in this case the court here in Arkansas and
Judge Herschel Cleveland [sic] had no trouble in
severing the parental rights of Mr. Bieler with
regard to Crystal, and that was on May 16, 2001.
Under Arkansas law that decree of divorce [sic]
severed any relationship which they had.

THE COURT: You said divorce, you mean
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adqption?

MR. COX: I'm sorry, excuse me. That decree of
adoption severed any relationship, legal
relationship, which they had, and as the case law‘
has stated they became in the eyes of the law
strangers, legal strangers to each other. So, if --
if Mr. Bieler had -- had died before 2003 there
would be no basis for Crystal to assert a claim.
They must show by evidence that after the decree of
adoption was entered on May 16, 2001 that Mr. Bieler
intended to become her substitute parent, and the
case law is quite clear on this what you have to do
in order to establish that.relationship: And I have
provided the court some case law, one of which
involves a wrongful death claim and whether or not a
person stood in loco parentis. And in -- in this
case there was testimony.

THE COURT: Do you have that case?

MR. COX: The case of Standridge vs.
Standridge, and the court quoted the téstimony that
they were very close, he usually went with him to
work, rode in the truck with him, went hunting and
fishing and swimming just about every day. He was
with the child 7 days a week. And -- and actually
lived with the decedent for I think 15 months,
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several, an extended period of time. And the court
says, there's nothing in the record that the
decedent had formed the intent to assume the duties
and benefits of becoming this child's father. We
cannot hold that the fact that Johnny lived with his
mother and the decedent for over 15 months was
enough to establish intent. And the court ruled
that he was not entitled to beneficiary status. And
therefore not allowed to recover damages.

A case from U.S. District Court here in Fort
Smith, Judge Frank Waters, faced this same issue.
The case is Webb vs. Harvell, 563 Fed Sup 172, and
although this was decided before the -- the change
in the law that -- that made an -- an adult eligible
to be considered a beneficiary of a loco parentis
parent -- the court ruled that the evidence
regardless was not sufficient to show that this
relationship existed. And it said, it quoted the
Arkansas statute that said, "old legal relationships
when they adopt an individual and its natural
parents make him a stranger to them,” and it also
commands that all courts recognize this. And -- and
the court made the following, it said, without going
through the form for necessary adoption, and Judge
Waters quoted, as have the Arkansas Supreme Court
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cases that that loco parentis means in place of a
parent, instead of a parent, charged with the
parents' rights, duties and responsibilities. And
the court discussed the contacts between the two,
the relationship and said, as a matter of law loco
parentis had not been established.

The case -- the issue has come up primarily in
child custody and child visitation and the courts
have been particularly harsh, and the most recent
case 1is that of Spivey, or Daniel vs. Spivey, 212 AR
39 cited in February of 2012 in which the Arkansas
Supreme Court reversed a chancery judge who found
that in loco parentis had been established, and --
and the court quoted, or made the statement, "in
loco parentis reversed with person who has fully put
himself in the situation of a lawful parent by
assuming all the obligations incidental to the
parental relationship and who actually discharges
those obligations." And the court went on to say:
"This relationship involved more than a duty to.aide
and assist and more than a feeling of kindness,
affection or generosity."

And it said the significant factor in
determining, or considering whether the person
intended to assume parental obligations =-- let me
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back up -- it -- of course, it is -- the time spent
with the child, although not determinative, is a
significant factor in considering whether the person
actually intended to assume parental obligations or
has performed those.

There was a decision Bethany vs. Jones from the

Arkansas Supreme Court in February of 2011, it was a
same sex relationship and the issue was whether or
not a child that they had together, the relationship
ended and the one who was left out and denied
visitation argued that loco parentis had been
established. And in this case the court pointed out
that the plaintiff had cared for the child for three
and a half years while -- as a young child, and had
been the daily caregiver of this child who was still
a minor at the time, and as a matter of fact, this
was within two years or so after the relationship
ended, and the court said because the child had been
cared for for this extended period of time and
actuélly was considered by both of the parties to
that relationship as being a parent that the court
said that she was entitled to visitation as a loco
parentis parent.

Your Honor, the evidence in this case does not
show any intent on the part of Mr. Bieler to become
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a substitute parent for her, limited contacts. I
think one of the most telling things is he had a
grandchild, he knew he had a grandchild and made no
effort to see it for some 10 months after the child
was born. He had never provided for her after 2004,
had a limited amount of money given to her in a one
year period, nothing before that for multiple years,
and none after 2004. And their contacts were
sporadic at best. And it's not what Mrs. Bieler
Haynes wanted or considered the relationship to be,
it was what Mr. Bieler intended it to be.

And I think it's also significant that he did
not tell anybody that he had a daughter. He did not
tell anybody he had a grandchild, it's as 1if they
didn't exist. And I think that that shows that
there was no intent on his part to establish a loco
parental relationship after the decree of divorce,
excuse me, the decree of adoption.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Swindle or Mr.
Keever?

PLAINTIFFS' RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR

DIRECTED VERDICT
MR. KEEVER: Well, Your Honor, I -- I agree
with Mr. Cox on what his case law says. All of

those cases involved minor children and, you know,
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are not really applicable to this.

I mean Crystal and Kenneth had a relationship,

that can't be denied. So the question is what --
what was that relationship? Was it -- were they
just kind of casual friends? Or was there a

father/daughter relationship? After children leave
the home the amount of contact that a parent has
with the child varies greatly. I think that's -- we
could take judicial notice of that, or common sense
notice of that.

Crystal considered Kenneth her father and all
of the evidence 1s that her family considered
Kenneth her father. Her -- her aunts believe that
Crystal should have a place in this lawsuit as
Kenneth's daughter. You know, anyone in lIoco
parentis has no legal relationship. We're not
arguing that and in fact, Crystal has no claim to
any of the wverdict that would have to go to

Kenneth's estate, it would only be for a verdict

that 1is in her place as a beneficiary. I
respectfully disagree with Mr. -- uh =-- Cox's
analysis. I think there is enough evidence that

Kenneth did have an in loco parentis relationship
because he felt like he should give up the legal
relationship he should give up the physical
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relationship when Crystal was a daughter in her best
interest and after all that's what parents do. They
do whatever it takes to be in the best interest of
their child, Your Honor, and we would ask that the
court make a decision that there is a showing of in
loco parentis, and that Crystal be included on the
verdict form. Thank you.

DEFENDANT'S REBUTTAL TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR

DIRECTED VERDICT

MR. COX: Your Honor, my response is all the
things that occurred in the past, before the decree
of adoption are irrelevant because they became
strangers in the eyes of the law at that time. The
question is whether or not Mr. Bieler established a
loco parentis relationship with his daughter,
whether he intended to and whether he actually
carried out that intent. And, there is simply no
evidence that he intended to or carried it out.
What his sisters thought his intent was 1is
irrelevant. The fact that his name, he 1lists
Crystal as a child on his tombstone that was done
after he died by other family members. That has
nothing to do with his intent and the evidence
showing that he intended to become her substitute
father in the eyes of the laws, it's just not there.
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Fathers want to see their children. Fathers want to
see their grandchildren. Fathers 'want to keep up
with them. Crystal says from the time she was
placed -- from the time she was 11 or 12 years old
she never got a Christmas gift from Mr. Bieler,
that's not what people who want to be a parent do.

PLAINTIFFS' REBUTTAL RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR

DIRECTED VERDICT

MR. KEEVER: Very briefly, Your Honor. My
oldest son lives in the State of Washington and he's
not a great communicator and I go sometimes 6 months
without hearing from him, it doesn't mean I don't
love him and I'm not his dad. Kenneth can't be here
to speak for himself so his family speaks for him.
Thank you.

THE COURT: Let me see that decree of adoption.

(COURT EXAMINES DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1)

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, I do want to argue
about Jjury instructions. I've not had the
opportunity with everybody else to take a rest room
break.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

All right, do either of you have anything else?

MR. KEEVER: I would just -- I would just say
as you recall there was testimony that there was an:
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agreement between Ms. Haynes and Kenneth that he
would butt out, he just wouldn't be there. And so
the fact that they didn't have a lock on his
whereabouts at the time of the divorce -- I said
divorce, I mean in the adoption decree I think is --
is -- it would have been the expected situation.
Thank you, Your Honor.
COURT'S RULING

THE COURT: Well, my recollection of the
testimony was that after she's adopted she
specifically said she had little to no contact. In
fact, I think she said no contact from Mr. Bieler
from the time she's adopted until the time she
became an adult. And then the next contact was
sometimes after that at random or by chance when
they happened to be in a Walmart together. And, you
know, my view of the loco 'parentis theory or
relationship would be that dad's advocating a
relationship and trying to build that and have
contact and maintain that in some form or fashion.
And, you know, it's clear that it didn't happen for
the time that she's living with Ms. Haynes. And so,
the limited time with the relationship is after that
which is this random meeting they had at Walmart and
the few times that Crystal actually says she went to

1148




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

see Mr. Bieler at his place of work. It's not
really what I'd call a reciprocal relationship where
he's seeking her out, and he's doing some things
that's =-- 1its frankly been her, based on her
testimony to initiate any contact at all.

And, you know, if you look at some of the cases
in terms of the, I guess longevity of some sort of
contact most of those show even where there's been
consistent contact, it's not enough to show that.
You know, the difference here 1is that you have
technically a blood relationship and whether that
trumps something you know may be different. But if
I look at the adoption decree and I say she's
legally adopted, she consented to that, she was
raised by somebody else, and then for the period
after that when she first contacts her father again,
whether it was consistent enough relationship or
contact to show that, I can't find it, gentlemen,
and so I'm granting their motion.

MR. KEEVER: And our exception is noted for the
record, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. KEEVER: Thank you.

THE COURT: So, we need to probably look at
instructions and we need to do that probably again
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in chambers and then we'll come out and make our
record. So, let's kind of work on that for a little
bit. Be in recess.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

BAILIFF: All rise.

(11:30 A.M. OPEN COURT RESUMES, JURORS ARE
SEATED BACK IN THE JURY BACK)

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen of
the jury, it's going to take us a little longer to
work out the instructions than I had hoped. And I
think rather than keep you guys hanging around
until we finish that and then not being able to, you
know, get much done before lunch, I'm going to start
our lunch hour a little bit early.

A couple of things. Again, just remember what
I told you initially, don't discuss this matter,
don't let anyone else discuss it with you.

My offer to you is this. I've actually handed

the bailiff my credit card which may have a little

- bit of credit left on it, and for those of you all

that want to meet him out at the Westérn Sizzln he's
been given the authority to pay for your lunch out
there. For the rest of you that might not, I'm not
requiring that, but basically giving you that option
if you want to eat lunch on the county then meet the
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bailiff out there, and as soon as we recess here
he'll be going that direction. And again, you're
not required to but, you know, if you don't show up
then it won't be free so that will be your choice.

Let's be back about, I'm actually going to make
it about 12:35, somewhere along in there. I think
we can possibly, maybe get everything kind of
arranged. But if it takes a little longer for you
to get back I understand that too because I don't
know what the lunch crowd is going to be today.

But again, if you want to eat free, meet him
out there, if you want to go somewhere else on your
own you're free to do that. But we'll be in recess
until about 12:35. And I have to stay so you can
go.

(11:35 A.M. JURORS DEPART FOR LUNCH RECESS)

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

MR. SWINDLE: I wbuld like to make a very brief
argument, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Just so the record is
clear both parties have been given copies of the
proposed jury instructions which the court has
adopted here. So, if either of you want to make a

proffer or an objection or whatever, 1let the
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plaintiffs go first.

PLAINTIFFS' PROFFERED EXHIBIT

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, just briefly, both
experts in this case, Dr. Michota as well as Dr.
Daniels agreed that the standard of care is to give
patients with two or more risk factors blood
thinners unless there's a medical reason not to do
so. And it's the unless that in the plaintiffs'
opinion turns this into an affirmative defense for
the defendant. It's plaintiffs position that it is
the defendant's responsibility under AMI 206 to show
that unless, to show the reason why he did not give
blood thinners to Kenneth Bieler even though it's
admitted that the standard of care requires the
administration of blood thinners to patients with
two or more risk factors for blood thinners, and
it's also admitted that Kenneth had two or more risk
factors. So, on that basis we would proffer a copy
of -- a modified jury instruction based on AMI 206
for the record.

THE COURT: All right that will be vyour
proffered exhibit.

[REPORTER'S NOTE: Plaintiffs' Proffered
Exhibit 1 is introduced, admitted, incorporated
herein and may be found at pages 4522 hereof.]
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THE COURT: All right, any response?

DEFENDANT'S RESPONSE TO PROFFERED INSTRUCTION

MR. COX: I thought the court had already ruled
on that. I think the law is clear in Arkansas that
the burden of proof is on the plaintiff. We did not
plead that as an affirmative defense. They have to
prove that -- that -- that -- uh -- it should have
been given unless there was a medical reason not to,
and that's their burden of proof.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SWINDLE: And just to clarify, we would
agree with Mr. Cox that the court has ruled on this.
I'm simply offering the modified AMI 206 to protect
our record. I'm not -- I'm not rearguing it to the
court.

THE COURT: I understand it.

MR. SWINDLE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Make that your proffered exhibit.

PLAINTIFFS' ARGUMENTS ON INSTRUCTIONS

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, it's my understanding
that the court has ruled against the plaintiffs
regarding arguing sending a message on the standard
of care, and in accordance with that ruling we
certainly will not argue that in closing argument.
But we do argue to the court now that arguing
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sending a message specifically regarding standard of
care not on the size of the verdict is appropriate
and we cited the case law for that.

I'm not asking the court to reconsider, I'm
just making a record that the court has 'ruled
against us and what our reasoning for wanting to
make that argument is. |

THE COURT: All right. Any response?

MR. COX: No response to that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, just so the record is
clear the court is going to deny that motion to use
the language sending a message in closing argument.
Go ahead.

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, finally it's my
ﬁnderstanding that the court has ruled that Jury
Instruction 603 that the death of Kenneth Bieler
does not necessarily mean that there is negligence,
and I would submit to the court that that's
certainly a proper jury instruction for a car
accident case where there is an accident of some
type. There's no claimed accident here and one
thing that all human beings share is that we -- we
do all die. And -- uh -- on that basis I think that
603 is inappropriate in this cause of action because

there is no implication that someone is negligent
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just because someone dies because we all die. Uh,
and so that's why we don't think that 603 is an
appropriate instruction for this case.

And -- and again, I'm not asking the court to
reconsider, I'm just making a record of what our
arguments are.

THE COURT: All right, understood.

MR. SWINDLE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'm going to allow the instruction.
Anything else?

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, that's all that I
have.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Cox?

DEFENDANT'S ARGUMENTS ON INSTRUCTIONS

MR. COX: Your Honor, I Jjust have two
objections ‘and the court has ruled on them, but I
just want to make my record on it.

Comes the defendant Henry Edwards and objects
to the giving of AMI 1501 in its format that the
court 1is going to give, and I realize that we
covered this at the pre-trial conference and the
court ruled at that time. That with regard to what
the jury can consider in determining the degree of
skill and learning -- uh =-- of Dr. Edwards and
whether he applied it appropriately fhe court has
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instructed that the jury can consider only the
testimony provided by Dr. Franklin Michota and br.
John Daniels. We had requested that the name of Dr.
Henry Edwards be included in that as well as in the
paragraph on what they can consider in determining
the proximate causation issue.

So, we object to the exclusion of Dr. Henry
Edwards in the second full paragraph and the third
full paragraph of AMI 1501.

The only other objection I have 1s to the
giving of AMI 2215. When it allows the jury or
tells the jury that in assessing the damages of the
estate of Kenneth Bieler the jﬁry should not reduce
the amount of damages by any social security
payments or insurancé payments received, or to be
received by or on behalf of the estate of Kenneth
Bieler. I can appreciate that that instruction is
appropriate when there are loss of wages involved or
medical expenses involved or other forms of damages
which are perhaps covered by a collateral source.
In this case, however, the only damages are the loss
of life of Kenneth Bieler. Pain and suffering of
Kenneth Bieler prior to his death, and mental
anguish on the part of the three remaining
beneficiaries of the estate.
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There can be no social security payments to
cover any of those damages. There can be no
insurance payments to cover any of those damages,
and I think it's inappropriate and irrelevant to
give that. And it would allow the jury to at least
consider or infer that these beneficiaries have
received money for mental anguish, for loss of life,
and for conscious pain and suffering when in fact
there is no payment and could be no payment from a
collateral source for those damages.

THE COURT:V All right. Exceptions are noted.

Any other arguments or matters on the Jjury
instructions?

MR. SWINDLE: Nothing further from the
plaintiffs, Your Honor.

MR. COX: Nothing further.

THE COURT: And both of you received a copy of
the proposed instructions. And Jjust so you
understand I think my inclination on instructions
would be to read the interrogatories with -- what is
it 206 I believe?

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And I won't read them again at the
end.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: So, you're all free to talk about
that.

One other issue that I think Mr. Cox brought
up, and you know, I did not allow him to inquire
about anything having to do with Mr. Bieler's naval
record. I know that you all submitted a picture
that does reflect him in a navy uniform and so I
guess I would caution you, Mr. Swindle, not to
expound on that because again, I did not allow Mr.
Cox to go into it and so I think it would be
improper in any kind of argument to expound on any
sort of naval career or anything beyond just that
picture.

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anything else either of you think
of?

Are you going to have one witness after lunch
then?

MR. COX: Judge, let me talk to Dr. Edwards and
then we'll decide about that.

THE COURT: Okay. So, when we get back I'll
just ask the plaintiffs if they have anything else,
let them rest on the record.

I don't want you to repeat your motion but I
think probably you can come up in front of -- well,
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when the jury is in here at least to say that you've
already made it and we can get it on the record then
that you've made it and whatever. And then if you
decide to call somebody, you can.

We previously discussed time and I think
plaintiffs wanted 40 minutes and although that's
beyond my usual time, I'll give you that much time
if you think you want it. Do you know now if you
want like 30 and 10 or?

MR. SWINDLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything else?

Okay, see you all back here in a little bit.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, should we be back at
1, is that when the court said?

THE COURT: Twelve thirty.

MR. SWINDLE: Twelve thirty. Okay, thank you,
Your Honor.

(1:40 P.M. OPEN COURT RESUMES, JURORS SEATED IN
THE JURY BOX)

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Swindle, Mr. Keever,
do you have another witness?

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, we rest.

THE COURT: All right. Counsel approach.

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
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JURY AS FOLLOWS:
THE COURT: Do you have any motions, Mr. Cox?
PLAINTIFFS RENEW MOTIONS
MR. COX: Your Honor, I would like to renew in
their entirety the motions made on the record out of
the presence of the Jjury -earlier after the
plaintiffs announce that they had rested.
COURT’S RULING ON MOTIONS
THE COURT: All right. The motion as far as
the dismissal is denied. The motion as to
dismissing the separate plaintiff Crystal Bieler was
granted. Anything else?
MR. COX: Nothing further.
THE COURT: All right. Are vyou going to have
any witnesses?
MR. COX: Your Honor, I have some exhibits.
END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE. ]
THE COURT: All right. Mr. Cox are you ready
to proceed?
MR. COX: Yes, Your Honor.
DEFENDANT'S CASE IN CHIEF
MR. COX: Your Honor, I would offer as a
Defendant's exhibit the records from Summit Medical
Center for the admission of Mr. Kenneth Bieler on
January 6, 2009.
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THE COURT: Any objections?

MR. KEEVER: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Be admitted.

[REPORTER'S NOTE: Defendant's Exhibit 3,
January 6, 2009 Summit Medical Center records of
admission of Kenneth Bieler are introduced,
admitted, incorporated herein and may be found at
pages /720'£§§?hereof.]

MR. COX: Your Honor, inasmuch as Dr. Edwards
has already testified and Dr. Daniels has already
testified we have nothing further.

THE COURT: All right. So, defense rest?

MR. COX: Defense rest, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SWINDLE: May we approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Sure.

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

MR. SWINDLE: Your Honor, pursuant to Rule 50
of the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure the
plaintiffs move for a directed verdict on the issue
of liability for the evidence presented.

THE COURT: All right, that's denied. Anything
else?

MR. KEEVER: Yes, Your Honor, we would move

1161




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

that the pleadings be amended to conform to the
evidence.

THE COURT: I don't think there's any issue
with that.

MR. KEEVER: Okay.

MR. COX: And, Your Honor, I think the rules
require me to renew my motions and at this time and
I do so on the issue of Dr. Edwards’ negligence.

THE COURT: All right, that's denied.

MR. COX: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen of
the jury, both parties have rested. Give attention
to the court for the reading of the instructions.

(THE COURT READS THE JURY INSTRUCTIONS)

COURT'S JURY INSTRUCTIONS AS FOLLOWS :
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INSTRUCTION NO.

(a) The faithful performance of your duties as jurors is essential to the administration
of justice.

(b) It is my duty as judge to inform you of the law applicable to this case by
instructions, and it is your duty to accept and follow them as a whole, not singling out
one instruction to the exclusion of others. You should not consider any rule of law with
which you may be familiar unless it is included in my instructions.

(c) It is your duty to determine the facts from the evidence produced in this trial. You
are to apply the law as contained in these instructions to the facts and render your
verdict upon the evidence and law. You should not permit sympathy, prejudice, or like or
dislike of any party to this action or of any attorney to influence your findings in this case.

(d) In deciding the issues you should consider the testimony of the witnesses and the
exhibits received in evidence. The introduction of evidence in court is governed by law.
You should accept without question my rulings as to the admissibility or rejection of
evidence, drawing no inferences that by these rulings | have in any manner indicated my
views on the merits of the case.

(e) Opening statements, remarks during the trial, and closing arguments of the
attorneys are not evidence but are made only to help you in understanding the evidence
and applicable law. Any argument, statements, or remarks of attorneys having no basis
in the evidence should be disregarded by you. However, an admission of fact by an
attorney is binding on her client.

(f) I have not intended by anything | have said or done, or by any questions that |

may have asked, to intimate or suggest what you should find to be the facts, or that |

110

3



believe or disbelieve any witness who testified. If anything that | have done or said has

seemed to so indicate, you will disregard it.

AMI 103
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INSTRUCTION NO.

You are the sole judges of the weight of the evidence and the credibility of the
witnesses. In determining the credibility of any witness and the weight to be given his
testimony, you may take into consideration his demeanor while on the witness stand,
any prejudice for or against a party, his means of acquiring knowledge concerning any
matter to which he testified, any interest he may have in the outcome of the case, and

the consistency or inconsistency of his testimony, as well as its reasonableness or

unreasonableness.

AMI 105
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INSTRUCTION NO.

An expert witness is a person who has special knowledge, skill, experience, training,
or education on the subject to which his testimony relates.

An expert witness may give an opinion on questions in controversy. You may
consider the expert's opinion in the light of his qualifications and credibility, the reasons
given for the opinion, and the facts and other matters upon which the opinion is based.

You are not bound to accept an expert opinion as conclusive, but should give it
whatever weight you think it should have. You may disregard any opinion testimony if

you find it to be unreasonable.

AMI 107
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INSTRUCTION NO.

A fact in dispute may be proved by circumstantial evidence as well as by direct
evidence. A fact is established by direct evidence when, for example, it is proved by
witnesses who testify to what they saw, heard, or experienced. A fact is established by
circumstantial evidence when its existence can reasonably be inferred from other facts

proved in the case.

AMI 108

1167



Instruction No.

After I have completed my instructions to you on the law in this case, you will be given a
number of written questions called interrogatories. These interrogatories present the issues of
fact, which you must decide. In order that you may be fully acquainted with the issues of fact
which are being submitted in this case for your determination, I will now read these

interrogatories, some or all of which you may be called upon to answer.

Source: AMI 201
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF CRAWFORD COUNTY, ARKANSAS

MARY HARTMAN, AS THE
ADMINISTRATRIX OF THE ESTATE .
OF KENNETH L. BIELER, Deceased PLAINTIFF

\2 No. CV 2010-425-1
HENRY N. EDWARDS, M.D. DEFENDANT

INTERROGATORY NO. 1: Do you find from a preponderance of the evidence that
Henry Edwards, M.D., was negligent in relation to the care and treatment of Kenneth Bieler,

deceased, which was a proximate cause of the death of Kenneth Bieler, deceased?

Answer:
Yes or No

Foreman if unanimous

If not unanimous, signatures of at least nine jurors




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF CRAWFORD COUNTY, ARKANSAS

MARY HARTMAN, AS THE
ADMINISTRATRIX OF THE ESTATE

OF KENNETH L. BIELER, Deceased PLAINTIFF
v, - _ No. CV 2010-425-I
HENRY N. EDWARDS, M.D. DEFENDANT

Instructions:  If you answered “no” to the preceding interrogatory, then go no further
and return your answer to the Court, If you answered “yes” to the preceding interrogatory, then

answer the following interrogatory:

1

@
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF CRAWFORD COUNTY, ARKANSAS

MARY HARTMAN, AS THE

ADMINISTRATRIX OF THE ESTATE

OF KENNETH L. BIELER, Deceased PLAINTIFF
V. No. CV 2010-425-1

HENRY N. EDWARDS, M.D. DEFENDANT

INTERROGATORY NO. 2; If you answered Interrogatory No. 1, “Yes,” state the
amount of damages you find that the Estate of Kenneth Bieler incurred as a result of the

negligence of Henry Edwards.

1. Kenneth Bieler’s loss of life: $

2. Conscious pain and suffering of ,
Kenneth Bieler prior to his death $
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Foreman if Unanimous

If not Unanimous, signatures of at least nine jurors
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF CRAWFORD COUNTY, ARKANSAS

MARY HARTMAN, AS THE

ADMINISTRATRIX OF THE ESTATE

OF KENNETH L. BIELER, Deceased PLAINTIFF
V. ' No. CV 2010-425-1

HENRY N. EDWARDS, M.D. DEFENDANT

INTERROGATORY NO. 3:  Ifyou answered Interrogatory No. 1, “Yes,” state the
amount of damages you find that Mary Hartman, Donna Dewey, and Doris Bieler, incurred

as a result of the negligence of Henry Edwards.

1 A Mental anguish suffered in the past and reasonably probable
to be suffered in the future by Mary Hartman: $

2. Mental anguish suffered in the past and reasonably probable
to be suffered in the future by Donna Dewey: $

3. Mental anguish suffered in the past and reasonably probable
to be suffered in the future by Doris Bieler: $
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Foreman if Unanimous

If not Unanimous, signatures of at least nine jurors
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INSTRUCTION NO.

A party who has the burden of proof on a proposition must establish it by a
preponderance of the evidence, unless the proposition is so established by other proof
in the case. “Preponderance of the evidence” means the greater weight of evidence.
The greater weight of evidence is not necessarily established by the greater number of
witnesses testifying to any fact or state of facts. It is the eyidence which, when weighed
with that opposed to it, has more convincing force and is more probably true and
accurate. If, upon any issue in the case, the evidence appears to be equally balanced,
or if you cannot say upon which side it weighs heavier, you must resolve that question

against the party who has the burden of proving it.

AMI 202
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INSTRUCTION NO.

Plaintiff, Mary Hartman, as Administratrix of the Estate of Kenneth Bieler, deceased
claims damages from Dr. Henry Edwards and has the burden of proving each of three
essential propositions:

First, that she has sustained damages;

Second, that Dr. Edwards was negligent;

And third, that such negligence was a proximate cause of plaintiff's damages.

If you find from the evidence in this case that each of these propositions has been
proved, then your verdict should be for the plaintiff; but if, on the other hand, you find
from the evidence that any of these propositions has not been proved, then your verdict
should be for Dr. Henry Edwards.

AMI 203
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INSTRUCTION NO.

The law frequently uses the expression “proximate cause,” with which you may not
be familiar. When | use the expression “proximate cause,” | mean a cause which, in a
natural and continuous sequence, produces damage and without which damage would
not have occurred.

AMI 501
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INSTRUCTION NO.

In treating and/or operating on a patient, a physician must possess and apply with
reasonable care the degree of skill and learning ordinarily possessed and used by
members of her profession in good standing, engaged in the same type of practice or
specialty in the locality in which he practices, or in a similar locality. A failure to meet this
standard is negligence.

In determining the degree of skill and learning the law required and in deciding
whether Dr. Henry Edwards applied the degree of skill and learning which the law
required, you may consider only the expert testimony provided by Dr. Franklin Michota
and Dr. John Daniels.

In deciding whether any negligence of Dr. Henry Edwards was a proximate cause of
plaintiff's damages and would not otherwise have occurred, you may consider only the
expert testimony provided by the medical experts who testified in this case.

In considering the evidence on any other issue in this case, you are not required to
set aside your common knowledge, but you have a right to consider all the evidence in

light of your own observations and experiences in the affairs of life.

AMI 1501
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INSTRUCTION NO.

The fact that a death occurred is not, of itself, evidence of negligence on the part of
anyone.

AMI 603
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Instruction No.

Mary Hartman, as administratrix of the Estate of Kenneth Bieler, deceased, represents the
Estate of the deceased and also herself, Donna Dewey, , and Doris Bieler.

The administratrix is suing for the following elements of damage of herself, Donna
Dewey, - and Doris Bieler.

(a) Mental anguish suffered and reasonably probable to be suffered in the future by
herself, Donna Dewey, :, and Doris Bieler.

First, let me explain to you what is meant by mental anguish. This term means the
mental suffering resulting from emotions, such as grief and despair, associated with the loss of a
loved one.

The administratrix is also suing for the following elements of damage on behalf of the
estate:

(a) Kenneth Bieler’s loss of life; and,

(b)  Conscious pain and suffering of Kenneth Bieler prior to his death

If an interrogatory requires you to assess the damages of the administratrix, you must fix
the amount of money that will reasonably and fairly compensate Mary Hartman, Donna Dewey,
~and Doris Bieler and the Estate of Kenneth Bieler for those elements of damage
you find were proximately caused by the negligence of Henry Edwards.
Whether any of the damages sued for on behalf of Mary Hartman, Donna Dewey, (

, and Doris Bieler have been proved by the evidence is for you to determine.

1180



Source: AMI 2216
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Instruction No.

In the event that you find that the Estate of Kenneth Bieler is entitled to damages, you
must determine the amount of these damages.

Mortality tables are evidence of an average life expectancy of a person who has reached a
certain age, but they are not conclusive. They may be considered by you in connection with
other evidence relating to the probable life expectancy of Kenneth Bieler, including evidence of
his occupation, health, habits, and other activities, bearing in mind that some persons live longer

than the average and some persons less than average.

Source: AMI 2219
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Instruction No.

In assessing the damages of Estate of Kenneth Bieler you should not reduce the amount
of the damages by any social security payments or insurance payments received or to be received
by, or on behalf of Estate of Kenneth Bieler. Any reduction required by law will be made by the

Court.

Source: AMI 2215
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Instruction No.

This case is submitted to you on interrogatories. You should consider each of these
interrogatories as a separate verdict. Upon retiring to the jury room, you should elect one of your
number foreperson, who alone will sign each interrogatory if your answer is unanimous. If your
answer to any interrogatory is not unanimous, but nine or more of you agree on that answer, each
of you who agrees must sign the answer. Those who disagree should not sign. In order to answer

any interrogatory, at least nine of you must agree.

Source: AMI 3502
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INSTRUCTION NO.

You have now heard all the evidence and the instructions on the law you must apply
in reaching your verdict. You soon will hear the lawyers’ closing arguments and then go
to the jury room to decide this case. | have a few final instructions for you on how to
proceed.

(a) Remember that you are to decide this case fairly, based only on the evidence
presented in this courtroom and the law as instructed by me. Do not consider
information from any other source. And do not allow sympathy, prejudice, or like or
dislike of any party or any attorney in this case to influence your decision Keep in mind
that the Basic Rule | have explained to you throughout the trial continues to apply during
your deliberations: You are to discuss the case only among yourselves. Do not
communicate about this case and the places and persons involved by any means
whatsoever with anyone else at all, or look for or receive any information whatsoever
about this case - including through Electronic Devices - other than the evidence in this
courtroom and the law as | have instructed you, until your jury duty is complete and |
have discharged you.

(b) Any notes you may have taken during the trial may be taken to the jury room to
use during your deliberations. Your notes are simply an aid to your own memory, and
neither your notes nor those of any other juror are a substitute for your own memory or ,
other jurors’ memory. Leave your notes in the jury room when you have concluded your
deliberations.

(c) Do not begin deliberations until all of you are assembled in the jury room. Once

you are all there, the first thing for you to do is to elect one of you to act as foreperson
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during your deliberations. The foreperson should see to it that your discussions are
orderly and that every one of you has a fair opportunity to be heard.

(d) If any of you need to communicate with me for any reason, write me a note and
give it to (the bailiff) (court personnel). In your note do not disclose any vote or division
among yourselves.

At least nine of you must agree to arrive at a verdict.

If your verdict is unanimous, only the foreperson will sign your verdict form.

If your verdict is not unanimous, but nine or more of you agree on the verdict, then
each of you who agrees must sign the verdict form. Those of you who do not agree must

not sign the verdict form.

AMI| 3501
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THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen, at
this time give your attention to Mr. Swindle for the
plaintiffs.

MR. KEEVER: Your Honor, may we have just a
moment?

THE COURT: Sure. Actually Mr. Swindle and Mr.
Keever.

PLAINTIFFS' CLOSING ARGUMENTS

MR. KEEVER: Mr. Gregory, Mr. Pavy, Ms.
Hoffman, Ms. Ajtun, Ms. Denton, Ms. Hickok, Mr.
Karnes, Ms. Stubblefield, Mr. Wilmoth, Ms.
Landthrip, Mr. Boster, Ms. Britt, Ms. Carter and Ms.
Astre, gosh its been, it seems like forever after I
missed out yesterday. I wasn't showing any
disrespect for you guys, but I was so sick I
couldn't get my head off the pillow. But I know
that Mr. Swindle took care of things.

George Washington died on December 14, 1799.
Two days before that the father of our country was
out riding around inspecting Mount Vernon in a
freezing rain and he came down with this horrible
sore throat. Now, the general was a strong guy and
he would have survived except his doctors chose to
treat his fever with bleeding, and they bled off 5
pints of blood, half his blood volume and that
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weakened the general to the point of death.

You know doctors today know you don't treat an
infection with bleeding, just like they know that
blood clots represent the single most common
preventable cause of death in hospitals today. And
for a doctor to deny or ignore the evidence based
guidelines on preventing and treating blood clots
why it’s just as negligent as if they were treating
fever with bleeding.

I mean the evidence based guidelines represent
the science of medicine and for some things the
science is just so darn strong that a doctor can't
say, well, I know what it says I should have done
but in my judgment I did the right thing. That's
true in this case about what Dr. Edwards did. 1It's
true when a pédiatrician sees a newborn. It's true
when a doctor sees any patient. It's just as simple
as that.

Now, you've heard the evidence. You've heard
everything that I can provide, Mr. Cox cén provide
and I'm not going to rehash that. We've heard
Kenneth's story. We've heard the story of his
family, but you know there's another chapter to
write and as a group you have the =-- have the task
of writing it.
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In a little while you're going to retire to the
jury room and you got three jobs, not Jjust one. I
mean the first job, of course, ultimately is you
need to answer the questions that Judge Medlock asks
on the interrogatories. But a second job is to be
sure that you follow the law, that is your absolute
right as a juror to walk out of here knowing that
you followed the law and everyone in your group
followed the laQ. And then third, before you answer
any questions you're supposed to deliberate. You
need to be able to'explain to your fellow jurors and
they to you why you feel the way you do about an
answer. So, for the next 25 minutes or so, I'd just
like to give you some thoughts on how you might be
able to do that.

Now, your first interrogatory asks if you find
Dr. Edwards negligent, if that was the proximate
cause of damage to Kenneth Bieler and through him to
his family. And it says that it needs to be found
by a preponderance of the evidence. You know we
talked about that on Monday and that's that legal
jargon and what does it mean. Well, it doesn't mean
beyond reasonable doubt. It doesn't mean 85% clear
and convincing, it really just means more likely
than not.
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We -- we think that you'll decide that we've
shown way more than more likely than not that in
this case the doctor did not meet the standard of
care and that caused the death of Kenneth Bieler.
Uh -- and what is that standard of care? I'm still
a little slow on my uptake from yesterday so bear
with me, please, I appreciate it.

Well, the standard of care, remember this was
one of the instructions. A doctor has to -- 1is
supposed to possess and use with reasonable care
that degree of learning and skill possessed and used
by doctors of the same profession in good standing
in the same or a similar community. A failure to
meet that standard is negligence. In other words,
in determining that you can only take into account,
this is an expert question, the testimony the two
expert witnesses, and that would Frank Michota and
Dr. Daniels.

Well, in deciding what's the standard of care
the first part preventing a blood clot there's
really no big problem because Dr. Michota and Dr.
Daniels agree that a patient like Kenneth with
multiple risk factors the standard of care is you
use those many doses of blood thinners as

preventative medicine unless =-- unless there's a
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medical reason to withhold them. Now, Dr. Edwards
admits he didn't use fhose blood thinners so you
must find him negligent unless you feel that Dr.
Edwards has proved through the evidence that there
was a legitimate medical reason to withhold blood
thinners.

Now, here 1is the poster that we saw in Dr.
Daniels' deposition, and you'll have this back there
as an exhibit. Here's another version of it, which
I think comes up on the screen. Well, maybe not.
But here's another version and I put Dr. Michota's
opinions in blue so that we can use that to compare
the two doctors opinions. Now what do we see? We
see what Dr. Daniels told us and we seé what Dr.
Michota explained to us wusing evidence based
guidelines.

Well, one thing is they agree on a lot of
stuff, don't they? There were six risk factors all
the way down the line. Then there were blood
thinners used. There were never those squeezey leg
squeezers or compressioned -- sequential compression
Aevices used. Were there stockings? Well, they
agreed for the first six days, but then there's
nothing in the record and Dr. Michota feels 1like
they almost certainly weren't used after that. Dr.
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Daniels thought they might have been used for
whatever reason. And were there medical reasons to
avoid surgery? Or to avoid blood thinners? Surgery
or bleeding, and we'll get back to that in a minute.

The doctors agree that after the fourth day
there was no reason for surgery to be embarred to
using blood thinners. Dr. Michota felt like surgery
was never a reason. But -- uh -- Dr. Edwards and
Dr. Daniels claim that possible bleeding was a
reason to not use blood thinners all the way up to
the last day of Kenneth's life.

Well, you decide, but even if you were to
conclude tﬁat there's a possibility of bleeding and
we don't think you'll conclude that, but even if
you do then we go to the second standard of care.
If there's a medical reason to withhold blood
thinners you have to use the maximal mechanical
prevention.

Now, the record and testimony is clear no leg
squeezers. That's below the standard of care. The
record and testimony is clear that Dr. Edwards never
ordered the compressive stockings. That's actually
below the standard of care. We're certain that
stockings were on for a few days but not for the

last six days. And you can look at the nurses'
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notes and you can remember that my gosh you guys
have taken voluminous notes. So, you can decide if
Kenneth had any protection, but remember Dr. Michota
really explained to us and explained using sound
evidence that the stockings in a patient 1like
Kenneth with six risk factors was wvirtually no
protection at all.

Okay =-- uh =-- we've looked at this, we've
compared their opinions and you can just about take
this part of the chart and wipe it off. We céuld
cut a strip because was there internal bleeding, was
that a reason to avoid blood thinners that’s really
the defense that you have to decide. Yes. Yes.
Yes. Yes, all the way through. Iﬂ fact; even down
here in the last three days says Dr. Daniels. Dr.
Michota explained to you why that just wasn't so.

And, we could kind of bring this discussion
down to thfee questions. Well, here we are. Uh --
was 1t a possibility that internal bleeding was a
valid excuse not to use drug thinner? Dr. Daniels
said yes. Dr. Michota explained why the answer was
no.

Was failure to use preventive doses of blood
thinner a cause of Kenneth's death? Dr. Daniels,
no. Dr. Michota absolutely yes.
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Was the defendant negligent, did that cause a
preventable death of Kenneth Bieler? Well, when I
asked Dr. Daniels that, you saw it in his
deposition. I think his answer was, well obviously
I would say no. And Dr. Michota explained to you
why the answer is yes.

Lets look at the failure to treat blood clots
that were going to the lungs on those last three
days. Now, Dr. Michota explained to us that the
degree of learning expected of an intern, this is
someone who could be one week out of medical school,
is not allowed to practice independently but someone
with that degree of learning would be expected to
have diagnosed a blood clot going to the lungs on
the 26th, on the 27th and on the 28th when Dr.
Edwards finally made the diagnosis. And Dr. Daniels
agrees that there was a blood clot going to the
lungs on the 26th, but he says it wasn't below the
standard of care for Dr. Edwards to miss that
because somehow that realization did not rise to the
level of consciousness for him to do something about
it, and besides Kenneth was going to die anyway.

Well, why did'Dr. Daniels make the statement
that it would be below the standard of care if Dr.
Edwards completely missed it. Is it because he had
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to agree that for a trained internist to completely
miss that diagnosis would just not be believable?
That's the 26th.

Lets look at the 27th. The expert opinions are
about the same as the 26th, and remember this is the
day when Kenneth was woke up, the therapist tried to
get him up, he got ashen, sweaty, started breathing
hard, and then later his blood pressure dropped and
then later his blood oxygen level dropped. And, Dr.
Edwards says, today's changes are worrisome for some
serious process in the abdomen that's not shown
itself. Chest pain. Shortness of breath. Falling
blood pressure. Falling blood oxygen. And doesn't

the record show that the defendant really had no

" serious thoughts, maybe no thoughts at all about

blood clots going to the lungs. Dr. Daniels agreed
that if that was the case if he never thought of it,
it was below the standard of care, but he relied on

his doesn't rise to the level of consciousness he

explained. What expert 1is more credible? You -
decide.
And even on the 28th, now Kenneth is

suffocating with the effect of blood clot after
blood clot going to his lungs. And Dr. Michota
showed us with the evidence based guidelines that
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had he been started on blood thinners even as late
as that day he had a 97 to 99% chance of léaving the
hospital alive.

And finally, how did Dr. Danielg respond to Dr.
Michota's evidence and you will have this as an
exhibit, evidence that by giving just half a dose
Kenneth never got any protection at all, let alone
he got no protection at 11 o'clock on the 28th, 2:30
on the 28th or 5:30 on the 28th because this wasn't
given until 8 o'clock. And because it only got to
be half a dose for most of the time, Kenneth had no
protection at all.

Well, I'm not sure what slide is going to come
up next. =-- Uh -- lets just -- yeah, there you are.
And what did they say? Well, Dr. Michota was
perfectly clear and explained it clearly, you give
blood thinners when you have clean, clear, clinical
science that there's blood clots going to the lungs.
Dr. Daniels didn't he say one could argue there was
a delay in starting the blood thinners, but that's
not below the standard of care? And it wouldn't
have made any difference because Kenneth was going
to die anyway.

Ladies and gentlemen, the simple truth is as I

said a minute ago, medicine is science.  There's
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some judgment involved, but for the most part
medicine is science and the science out there, the
evidence 1in the medical journals, and in the
textbooks and in the guidelines say that treatment
in Kenneth most certainly would have made a
difference. Most certainly would have made a
difference the 26th, and the.27th, and even the
28th, but only if the dosage was adequate.

Is it reasonable, is it reasonable to say that
it was okay -- I got the wrong slide up, but I'll go
on anyway. Is it reasonable‘to say that it was just
okay for Dr. Edwards not to order Kenneth any
measures at all for preventing blood clots? Not

even the leg squeezers? And those are the default

guidelines. Well, that was Dr. Daniels' position
wasn't it? But it's not the conclusion of Dr.
Michota.

Is it reasonable to say that Dr. Edwards could
withhold blood thinners because he thought Kenneth
was at serious risk of needing surgery on his belly?
Well, is it even reasonable to accept the premise
that Dr. Edwards was thinking that that was a reason
not to with -- thinking that was a reason to
withhold blood thinners? There's nothing in the
chart, nothing recorded in real time that would say
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that.

And then, Dr. Daniels says the blood count in
Kenneth was falling, and you'll have those blood
counts, and I think Dr. Michota explained to you
that there was never any evidence that there was
ongoing bleeding and there was never any evidence of
any of the other tests, the two cat scans, the blood
stool tests, any evidence, any -- even on the
autopsy, there was nothing on the autopsy that there
was any bleeding going on. There was no bleeding
going on, and there was no indirect evidence that
would have said that's a serious problem you need to
withhold blood thinners.

And how about those last three horrible days
for Kenneth? Uh -- a serious condition in the
abdomen which has yet to make itself clear. If you
loék at the progress notes, and I encourage you to
read through all of Dr. Edwards' progress notes,
this is a man that writes long, long notes. And
think to yourself, where is the note about blood
clots? Where is the note about might need surgery?
Where is the note about I'm worried about bleeding
until the very last day .of Kenneth's life?

Now, how do you resolve this beéause you got
two experts who are saying black and white Jjust

1198




p——

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

about? What do you say if a juror says to you in
the jury room, you know I think the experts just
have to cancel themselves out, one said this, one
said that, we just can't decide? Well, one of the
beauties of our jury system as, His Honor, just told
you is that you don't have.to take at blind faith
everything that's said, you can use your own common
sense, your own collective life experiences.

And, here 1s the instruction on expert
witnesses. You may consider his or her testimony
based wupon the qualifications and on their
credibility. You not only are you not bound, you
don't have to accept an expert opinion just because
someone is wearing a white coat and uses long words.
You can disregard any opinion testimony that you
find unreasonable. So, you decide whose testimony
carries more weight. You're going to have the CVs
or resumes of both Dr. Michota and Dr. Daniels. And
you can decide whose testimony in this case, who's
the expert in blood clot disease, who's the expert
in diabetes and then you decide.

Ladies and gentlemen, you have the power to
decide what's the appropriate standard of care for
patients here in Crawford County. I mean this case
is not just about Henry Edwards and Kenneth Bieler,
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it's about every patient and every doctor and what
you believe should be your community's standard of
care. And what is that? Do you want the medical
decisions for your doctors in this community to be
made upon the evidence available, or is it okay to
let a doctor get away with saying, well, it might
have been the wrong thing to do but it just felt
good to me, right to me at the time?

What we saw here were medical decisions made by
Dr. Edwards time and time again. Not by evidence,
not by going to the evidence based guidelines, or
the teprooks, or the medical journals, but
basically by the seat of his pants. And they were
wrong. They were just wrong. | Virtually every
decision, every judgment in the area of blood clots,
preventing blood clots, diagnosing blood clots, or
treating blood clots was just wrong.

This was Dr. Daniels testimony under oath, and
he repeated it twice, didn't he? That he agreed
that obviously the judgments that were made by Dr.
Edwards turned out to be incorrect judgments, but I
think not making the correct Jjudgment doesn't
necessarily mean you've breached the standard of
care. Well, how many times did that occur here?

They were Jjust wrong time after time after time
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again. And how many bad judgment calls is a doctor
allowed before someone says that's below the
standard of care?

Now, we're going to ask that you base the
amount of your verdict only, only on the actual
harms and losses to Kenneth and his family. And,
keep in mind as you do that that you are the
conscious of your community, just as 1if you were
deciding a car wreck case and we don't want you to
base the judgment on sympathy. We don't want you to
base the judgment on whether you like one side or
the other, but we want you to base your judgment on
the full amount that it takes to compensate Kenneth
and his family. Now, if one of your jurors says to
you, a fellow juror says to you in deliberations,
well I think that doctor was negligent but darn it I
just don't think that we should give a big verdict
because that might effect care, maybe other doctors
won't want to come to Van Buren and practice. Will
you tell that fellow Jjuror, we promised to follow
the law and thinking about how this verdict affects
people outside of this verdict is outside the law,
that's outside the box, only the harms and losses
but the full harms and losses.

First, what should that include for Kenneth?
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How much is fair value for those last three days
when Kenneth was suffocating with blood clots going
through his lungs? How much? I think his sister
Mary suggested mortality tables and I can tell you
that Kenneth, by the tables, would have lived 23.49
more years. How much would that be worth, 23.49
years taken away?

And we heard about a man who was, yeah, he was
less than perfect, like any other man or woman, but
he was a man who gave great joy to those around him.
A man who had the opportunity, and was taking that
opportunity to reconnect with his daughter. A man
who had the opportunity to be a grandfather, and
those opportunities were unnecessarily taken away.
We are talking about the unnecessary loss of a human
life, and I'd suggest to you that one million
dollars is a reasonable amount of compensation for
that, you may decide more.

What's been taken away from Kenneth's sisters?
Remember these are the three black-headed kids in a
town full of blondes and they formed a deep, deep
bond, deeper than probably most siblings. Uh --
that's been taken away and with that Mary and Donna
are less whole. Doris, their mother lost the only
anger that she had in this world with Kenneth's
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life, the only man left in her 1life, and I'm
suggesting that a verdict of two hundred and fifty
thousand dollars for each sister, and two hundred
and fifty thousand dollars for Doris would be the
minimum to see.justice in this case.

So, I'm suggesting to you, ladies and
gentlemen, that big harms require big compensation,
and you're going to decide what that should be. You
decide what the verdict should allow. You decide
what is the minimum fair value for Kenneth's death.
You've been ‘very patient. You've been very
attentive and we're going to be very, very patient
waiting for your verdict. Take time with your
verdict, take all the time you want. This is --
this 1is Kenneth's only shot at Jjustice. He's
depending upon you and -- and his family is grateful
to have this in your hands. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen,
give your attention to Mr. Cox.

DEFENSE'S CLOSING ARGUMENTS

MR. COX: Ladies and gentlemen, thank you on
behalf of Dr. Edwards and myself and Sharon Hopkins
we want to thank you for your service as jurors this
week. I'm certain that each of you had things that

you needed to do, and perhaps even important things
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that you needed to do, but you have served your
county well by being here and serving as jurors in
this case, and in particular being the attentive
group of Jjurors that you have been and we do
appreciate that.

Now it's sometimes difficult to know where and
when to start in a situation like this, and I'm
always kind of, I struggle to say well how do you --
how do you get up and -- and respond at this time.
I guess my first response, ladies and gentlemen, is
that I guess I'm just old school, after 71 years of
life and 46 years of law practice all I know to do is
just stand up and talk to you and without showing you
pictures and stuff on boards. I just want to talk to
you like I did in my opening statement.

Judge Medlock has given you the law by which you
must apply the facts and to arrive at a verdict in
this case that is based upon the evidence and the law
that you will receive.

Now, Mr. Keever said something just now that is
not what the court told you. The court told you in
determining the question of whether or not Dr. Henry
Edwards was negligent in the medical care he provided
you can consider only two things, that's the
testimony of Dr. Michota and the testimony of Dr.
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Daniels, and if you'll look at the instruction it
tells you on all other issues you can use your common
sense and you're invited to do that. But on the
issue of whether or not Dr. Henry Edwards was
negligent, you have to base your verdict on the
testimony of those‘two expert witnesses.

Now, let's talk about the experts. I don't know
that I've seen an expert witness'that's'more certain
of his opinions than Dr. Michota. There is no budge,
no give, no concession on virtually any point that he
has. He ‘has committed to giving blood thinners
virtually without exception in patients who have risk
factors in the hospital. And he goes around the
country and he gives lectures and puts on
presentations and I hope you picked up on this,
ladies and gentlemen, Dr. Michota his research, his
writing and his symposiums that he produces are all
sponsored by the same drug companies that méke the
biood thinners. Now, do you -- can you ask yourself
is there a little bit of bias there, is there a
little bit of self interest there? I submit to you
that there is.

Dr. Michota would have you believe that this is
a very safe drug, these are safe drugs, there's

essentially no risk to them and he can come into a
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court room and tell you those things when he's
treating -- when -- when he's not treating a patient
that a doctor has to take risk factors into account.
Dr. Michota doesn't have to 1live with the
consequences - of giving a man such as Kenneth Bieler
blood thinners and then that patient either bleed out
and die from that, or die from kidney failure. He
doesn't have to deal with the consequences of a
decision to give blood thinners to those kinds of
people because he's an expert witness, and he knows
the outcome. He has the ability to look at this case
in hindsight; it's like the Monday morning
quarterback who says you shouldn't have thrown that
pass coach because it was intercepted when it sounded
like the right thing to do and it was good judgment
to do it in the first place.

I'm sure each of you in your experiences have
made judgment calls that perhaps did not turn out the
way you hoped. We've all done that, we're human
beings, we're not perfect, Dr. Edwards certainly is
not perfect. But I'll tell you one thing Dr. Edwards
was dealing with a live patient who presented with
multiple problems to his care on the early morning of
January 14, 2009. He's not looking at records and

judging somebody's care in hindsight knowing what the
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outcome was. He's having to take care of a patient
and assess him and evaluate him and make the best
decision he knows how to make based upon his care and
his experience and his learning.

Dr. Henry Edwards was faced with a patient who
presented with multiple life-threatening conditions.
And what were those? Well, he came in in kidney
failure, he came in with his kidneys shut down. Do
we know what caused that? No we don't. No one ever
was able to determine, even Dr. Michota couldn't tell
you that. That is =-- and you've heard testimony,
that was a life-threatening condition that he
presented with, an immediate life-threatening
condition.

He also presented with a -severely distended
abdomen, the x-rays showed a severely distended
colon, or small bowel and the immediate diagnosis was
probable small bowel obstruction. Even Dr. Rhomberg
who actually wrote or sent the first set of orders to
the hospital on the 13th says on there, consult
medicine, consult surgery because he was obviously
concerned about a surgical problem with his patient
when he arrived.

And Dr. Edwards told you about his experience
that surgeons here will not operate on folks who are
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on blood thinners. They -- there's too much risk in
their mind. Dr. Michota wants to make light of that
and say, well we do it all the time at the Cleveland
Clinic. Well that's fine at the Cleveland Clinic if
that's how you want to practice law but the surgeons
here choose not to operate that way. And Dr. Edwards
can't operate so that's a consideration. And if
you'll look in the records at the x-ray studies as
late as the 17th and the 20th there are x-ray reports
in the records that say that small bowel obstruction
on the 17th is Very suspicious for a small bowel
obstruction, and on the 20th it's still an issue,
they can't rule out a small bowel obstruction. And
you heard testimony these things can go to an acute
phase pretty quickly, and Dr. Edwards know from
experience that these surgeons in this area do not
operate in a patient who has got a small bowel issue
if he's on blood thinners.

So, you got a small, possible and probable small
bowel obstruction. You've got kidney failure and
within a day or so of coming into the hospital he
begins to lose blood, and the blood counts go down,
down, down and stabilize at about 8.7 hemoglobin over
a few days, but then -- and at some point on the 26th
Dr. Edwards gives a transfusion of two units of
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blood. It goes back up but then goes right back down
the next day. Dr. Edwards was concerned about blood
loss. He -- he knows and I think if Dr. Michota were
not an expert witness, if this were his patient he'd
be concerned about it too because they know that
bleeding 1is a contra indication to giving blood
thinners, it just makes it worse and Dr. Edwards said
that very thing when he knows there is a deep vein
thrombosis on the 28th and he knows he has no choice
but to give anticoagulants or blood thinners he says
if -- if he is in fact bleeding, I don't know where
it is but giving this drug is probably going to make
it worse.

It's -- it's true that Dr. Edwards didn't write
down everything he thought about, and if you want to
criticize him for not writing something down, that's
fine. But don't criticize Dr. Edwards for not being
an attentive doctor to this patient. He saw him
every day except when the weekend when he was on call
and a Dr. Rana, another -- or a family practice
doctor saw this patient.

According to Dr. Michota, Dr. Edwards was
obligated to use blood thinners. He gives him a pass
on the first two or three days, but then after that

says no he has to do that. He also says the same
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thing about Dr. Rhomberg that Dr. Rhomberg should
have given blood thinners 3just because he had a
fractured femur and had surgery, Dr. Rhomberg should
have done that that's what the guidelines call for.
Dr. Rhomberg didn't and as a matter of fact the
American Academy of Orthopedic Surgeons don't agree
with Dr. Michota. Dr. Michota thinks that every
doctor ought to do it, but obviously the orthopedic
surgeons disagree with him. He's -- he -- he tells
you that well, at Cleveland Clinic all of our
orthopedic suigeons will give this. Well, does he
want everybody to come to the Cleveland Clinic for
medical care? That's kind of the suggestion that if
you want good care you've got to come to us.

There were multiple doctors looking after this
patient during his stay in the hospital, any one of
them could have ordered blood thinners if they
thought it was indicated or needed. None of them
did. Dr. Rhomberg, Dr. Ruff the surgeon, Dr. Rana
who came in on the 17th and part of the 18th and saw
this patient, any one of them could have said, you
know Dr. Edwards has overlooked giving him blood
thinners we better start something or at least call
and talk to him about it. That never happened,
ladies and gentlemen, it never happened.
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We presented to you Dr. John Daniels. Dr.
Daniels 1is not a doctor who travels around the
country lecturing, he's not a doctor who goes and
gives symposiums sponsored by drug companies, he
simply stays in St. Louis and takes care of patients.
You heard him say he sees patients five days a week.
He told you that Dr. Edwards provided good care to
this patient. He told you that there were reasons
not to give blood thinners in this patient and that
theée were judgment calls on the part of Dr. Edwards
and that while in hindsight, in retrospect, the
patient did not survive a blood clot. Dr. Edwards
did not have that benefit and Dr. Daniels says I
think he made appropriate judgments. Dr. Daniels
told you that Dr. Edwards met the standard of care
required of him. You're going to have to decide
thch of them do you believe.

Dr. Henry Edwards has been in this community for
going on 34 yeafs now as a doctor of internal
medicine. I think you can tell from the medical
records if you choose to look at them, and you've
heard the testimony already he had his hands full
with this patient, with the multiple health problems
that he had. When he presented a blood clot wés not

high on the list, it later became a concern and Dr.
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Edwards treated it as he thought was safe for this
patient based upon his comorbidities. If you
remember, he had the great change and his creatinine
level doubled from the night of the 27th to the
morning of the 28th and Dr. Daniels told you that iﬁ
was perfectly appropriate to give a half dose and
that Dr. -- what did Dr. Daniels say? I think that
Dr. Edwards actually complied with the guidelines.
Now, lets talk about Ted Hose. They want to
criticize Dr. Edwards for not writing an order for
Ted Hose or these intermittent pressure catheter or
pressure cuffs I should say. What did Dr. Michota
say about those? Well, they're of no benefit. He
wants to criticize Dr. Edwards for not using them and
at the same time say well they're of no value anyway.
Well, there were Ted Hose on when the patient was in
the Ashton Place Rehabilitation Facility, they were
on when he returned, and you heard the testimony I
showed the medical bill to Dr. Edwards and there was
a charge on the 15th for another pair of Ted Hose.
So. No, there's no order for those but somebody
asked for them, I wonder who that was? And you ask
yourself well why were they not there the last few
days? Well, Dr. Edwards told you that this man had
profuse diarrhea. And, ladies and gentlemen, if
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you'll look at the nurse's notes from the 25th on, it
was and they're having to change his linens, change
his clothing because he cannot control his bowel
movements. Can you imagine having those things on
and -- and trying to get them off and how
uncomfortable that would be for the patient.

Ladies and gentlemen, I submit to you that the
evidence is such that your verdict ought to be for
Dr. Edwards on the question of whether or not he was
negligent in the care of this patient. I'm going to
come back to that but I want to digress a minufe and
talk to you about the issue of damages. You have
heard the instructions and you now know what is being
claimed; there is a claim for pain and suffering.
Did you hear any expert testimony even from Dr.
Michota who related anything but the shortness of
breath to a blood clot? No. Did you -- if you'll
look at the records, 'this patient was very
uncomfortable with his abdomen, with his other --
with his hip fracture surgery that he had, but you
didn't hear any testimony that he had any pain from
the blood clot. It was a -- an event which caused
shortness of breath and it eventually just caused his
-- his death, but no one said that he had great pain
with that, no doctor said that.
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The other element that they ask for for the
estate is the value of his life, and I've never
understood what that really means or how you assess
that, but I'll come back to that.

The other -- the only other elements of damage
that you are entitled to even consider is mental
anguish on the part of Ms. Hartman, Ms. Dewey, and
Doris Bieler the grand -- the mother of the
plaintiffs and Mr. Bieler. Ladies and gentlemen, I
think you heard the testimony and I -- I'm certain
that everyone here either has a family member or
knows someone who has Alzheimer's and it -- it's a
terrible tragic disease, my father had it and -- and
eventually died from it and I know what it's like.
Unfortunately, Ms. Doris Bieler started getting signs
of it in 2003 you heard, and by the time Kenneth
Bieler passed away she was beginning to have serious
lapses of memory, couldn't remember, and as of the
time that she was placed in a nursing home did not
know family members and does not know family members
today. And I'm sorry that Doris Bieler lost her only
son, the only male in her family, but I question and
I ask you to question is someone who is confined to
a nursing home who has this tragic terrible disease

going to even understand what this is about? You
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could give her every dollar in this country, she
wouldn't understand it, wouldn't know anything about
it. And I would ask you, how much future mental
anguish has she had, how much has she had in the
past, how much will she have? Mr. Keever asked you
to award her substantial sums for mental anguish even
in the future.

I'll just talk about the two sisters together.
We've heard a lot about this being such a close
family. I'll leave it up to you to determine really
how close they were. And -- and I know I have
brothers and sisters that I see maybe once a year as
you probably do. People are busy. But, was their
relationship such that there was such anguish after
Mr. Bieler's death that they're entitled to be
compensated for that? That's what you're being asked
to do is to compensate them when there were periods
of years when Doris, excuse me, when Donna Dewey
didn't even see her brother for years.

One of the things you haven't heard, ladies and
gentlemen, is anyone making a claim for any loss of
support? You haven't heard that and you won't hear
i No economic losses have been asked for in this
case because there are none.

Crystal Bieler is not entitled and the court
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hasn't given you an instruction that says she's
entitled to anything. So, you're talking about two
adult sisters and a terribly ill mother who are
asking for damages in this case.

I'm not going to be critical of the dead and
that's why I want to temper what I say about Mr.
Bieler. We've heard a lot of things about how nice
he was to other people and how he was generous with
other people. I just would submit to you that the
true test of one's generosity starts with his family,
and you'll remember the testimony about that.

Ladies and gentlemen, the court has given you
the several Jjury instructions that guide your
deliberations and then at the end when you go back to
the jury room to consider your verdict you will
review a number of questions called interrogatories
and there are three of them. And the very first one
is: Do you find from a preponderance of the evidence
that Henry Edwards, M.D. was negligent in relation to
the care and treatment of Kenneth Bieler, deceased,
which was a proximate cause of the death of Kenneth
Bieler, deceased? And your answer is either yes or
no. If your answer is no, then you go no further
there are no other questions to answer. Ladies and
gentlemen, I submit to you that based upon the
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testimony you have heard in this case that your
answer to that interrogatory number 1 ought to be yes
[sic]. If that is your answer, as I said, you go no
further and you've decided the case.

What does a verdict in favor of Dr. Edwards do?
Well, it doesn't give money to the sisters and to the
estate, that's one thing that it doesn't do. What
does a verdict in favor of the plaintiffs in this
case do? Well, it does several things. It gives
them money because their brother died and it also
tells Dr. Henry Edwards that you caused the death of
this patient. That's -- that is the message or the
result of a verdict awarding any damages to the
plaintiffs. The story that you give to Dr. Edwards
is, Dr. Edwards you caused the death of a patient,
you caused the death of Mr. Kenneth Bieler and we
think the plaintiffs are entitled to be paid for
that.

Money to the plaintiffs is not going to change
anything for them. It's not going to make whatever
grief they have go away. It's not going to soothe
it; it's not going to remove it. But a verdict
against Dr. Edwards --

MR. KEEVER: -- may we approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Sure.
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(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

MR. KEEVER: I think that Mr. Cox -- I think Mr.
Cox's last comments are -- are an argument for a
jury, I'm just asking him not to decide what the
evidence is --

THE COURT: =-- Well, I'll give them a caution
that his statements are not evidence and that's -- I
think that's where we are. So I'll note your
objection.

MR. KEEVER: Thank you, sir.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, please
understand that the statements of counsel are not
evidence, these arguments at this point are not
intended to be evidence, you're the judge of the
evidence that's been submitted and you'll decide the
case based on that. Go ahead.

CONTINUED DEFENSE'S CLOSING ARGUMENTS

MR. COX: And I should have said that at the
beginning, what we say, what I say and what Mr.
Keever says is not evidence and you will recall the
testimony and you base your verdict on what you
recall the testimony lbeing, but I'm just simply
suggesting to you, ladies and gentlemen, that based
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on that evidence, and I think it's quite clear that
a verdict against Dr. Edwards tells a doctor who has
been in this community 34 years almost that you
caused this man's death. And I submit to you that's
unfair to him and it's not a verdict that would be
based on the evidence and I have no hesitation and no
reluctance to ask you to return a verdict in favor of
Dr. Henry Edwards by answering no to the first
interrogatory and you will have done your job. Thank
you.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Keever, you have
about 13 minutes left.

PLAINTIFFS' REBUTTAL CLOSING ARGUMENTS

MR. KEEVER: Well, I don't think I'm going to
take it. Mr. Cox gave you a little of what we call
misdirection in basketball. What's Dr. Michota's day
job, he's an internal medicine specialist. In fact,
even in his expert witness work most of what he does
is talking about routine internal medicine stuff. He
says he's in the trenches. That's just like Dr;
Edwards.

And then Mr. Cox I think said that you wouldn't
have to pay attention to that one instruction, that
107 and here it is, just like you'll see it in the
jury room: You may consider the expert's opinion in
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the light of his qualifications. You are not bound
to accept an expert opinion as conclusive, but should
give it whatever weight it should have. You may
disregard any opinion testimony you find
unreasonable. Uh, and you use your own common sense
and your collective 1life experiences and your
judgment to do that.

MR. COX: Your Honor, I object, that's not the
law and I object to that.

THE COURT: I'll give you the same instruction,
ladies and gentlemen. You decide what the facts and
the evidence are. Don't rely on the statements of

counsel. Go ahead.

CONTINUED PLAINTIFEFS' REBUTTAL CLOSING ARGUMENTS

MR. KEEVER: And you decide how you come to your
decisions, ladies and gentlemen.

Now, I'm not going to go through. Gosh, I had
point after point after point, and I'm just not going
to go through them.

Uh -- Dr. Michota does have a special interest
in blood clot disease and he has special knowledge in
blood clot disease and he does travel to lecture.
Dr. Daniels does a little traveling too, but his
traveling is to testify. Dr. Daniels testifies a
lot, two to three times a year in trials. So, you
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decide.

I tell you what though Mr. Cox and I absolutely
agree you're going to have to decide which expert do
you believe. I mean it's kind of like one or the
other. Uh, a lot of things that they agree on really
aren't consequential to your ultimate decision.

Twenty-fifth on diarrhea. Diarrhea's a reason
not to use mechanical measures and sure, yeah, Dr.
Michota very carefully explained to you why you
should use those mechanical measures, it's not that
they're very effective, they're not. But if that's
all you got and you can't use blood thinners you use
them, of course, in this case Dr. Michota is quite
clear in what he told us and explained to us about
using blood thinners.

And another thing Mr. Cox, I think said, that
Dr. Michota is the only one who related the -- the

chest pain on the 26th, remember with the physical

therapist, to a blood clot traveling to the lungs.

Oh, just not true. Dr. Daniels agreed that the signs
and symptoms on the 26th were almost certainly a
blood clot to the lungs.

Uh, Doris, his mother. Doris indeed doesn't
know very much and probably you can decide she won't

have future mental anguish, but you heard how Doris
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was doing right up to the fime Kenneth died and what
happened then.

And I'm just not going to address the comments
about the relationship between Kenneth and Mary Jo
and Donna.

Uh, he asked you what would be the effect of a
verdict against the doctor -- uh -- you'd be telling
him he caused someone's death. Well, if that's what
you decide, ladies and gentlemen, you should tell
him, you know. Do you think that another thing that
might be result from that is your community mighﬁ be
made safer?

Now, Mr. Cox and his paid expert, Dr. Daniels,
and we paid Dr. Michota, he didn't travel here for
free, but they want you to believe that every medical
decision Dr. Edwards made was just okay because it
all depends upon judgment. Have you ever seen a
driver try to beat a train at a railroad crossing and
he's going to use his judgment as to whether he makes
it or not. You know, what's the better and safer
judgment, going around the barrier trying to beat
that train or playing by the rules, driving by the
rules and waiting? Well, that's obvious, isn't it?

Medicine is a little bit different because the:
doctors hold all the cards, all the knowledge cards.
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And how many times have you heard a doctor say, oh,
it will be okay, you know, I -- I just -- I -- I feel
like it will be okay, this is the right medicine,
this is the right treatment. We can't, as patients,
patients can't make those decisions because patients
don't have the information and patients have to trust
their doctors. And we trust our doctors to make the
right decisions and the right judgments.

You know, what did Dr. Daniels say? Number one,
Dr. Edwards is entitled to his own judgments. They
were reasonable.‘ Number two, well, unfortunately all
of Dr. Edwards' judgments turned out to be wrong but
they were all reasonable. Well, here's what was
wrong. Would Kenneth need surgery? Dr. Edwards' is
wrong. Was surgery a reason to withhold blood

thinners? That was wrong. Did he have internal

bleeding? That was wrong. Is there a reason to

withhold thg leg squeezers? That was wrong.
Shortness of breath and chest pain on the 26th was
due to a low blood count. That was wrong. Falling
blood pressure and oxygen level on the 27th was due
to some mysterious process, some serious process in
the abdomen that hadn't shown itself. That was
really wrong. Judgment to withhold blood thinners

when he had strong clinical indications on the 26th,
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27th, and all during the day the 28th. That was
wrong. Decision to guess at the kidney function the
evening of the 28th instead of checking it. That was
wrong. Decision to give only half of dose of blood
thinner when he finally gave it. That was wrong. My
gosh, how times does a doctor get to make a wrong
judgment? Not just a wrong judgment, a bad judgment
before someone says, that's negligence.

Well, I've got a few minutes left on my 13 and
I'm not going to use it. But I would like to close
with just a really short illustrative story. And
it's, you know, kind of once upon a time in a little
mountain village far away there was this wise old man
and this smart-alecky little kid. And every day the
little kid would try to fox the old man and tell him
a riddle that he couldn't solve and he jusf couldn't
do it. So one day the little child caught a little
bird, he said, I got him. I'll go ask ﬁim if the
bird in my hands is alive or dead, and if he says
alive I'll crush the bird and show him the dead bird.
And if he says dead, I'll open my hands and let the
bird fly away. So he did. And he got all pumped up
and he's jogging up to the old man and he says, old
man, old man I've got a bird, is it alive or well?
And the old man just sat and looked at him. And then
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he said, my son, the fate of the bird is in your
hands. I'm sorry, I'm tired. I'm sick, sick and
tired. And I've been working for justice for Kenneth
for three years and I'm done, I can't do more, it's
up to you, it's in your hands. Can't think of where
I'd rather have it be.

THE COURT: All right, ma'am clerk, if you would
swear the bailiff in.

OATH TO THE BAILIFF

COURT CLERK: Do you solemnly swear or affirm
that you will keep this jury together and not allow
any person to speak with them or overhear their
deliberations, not to speak to them yourself unless
it's in the performance of your official duties as
bailiff of the court?

BAILIFF: I do.

THE COURT: All right, ladies and gentlemen, I'm
going to send you with the bailiff here with the
instructions and we'll gather up the exhibits here,
it may take us a 1little bit to get all those
together.

I guess, Ms. Carter, Ms. Astre, you all just
stay here for a second;

(2:02 P.M. JURY DEPARTS FOR DELIBERATIONS)

ALTERNATE JURORS EXCUSED
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THE COURT: All right, to our alternates here,
I guess my inclination is to let you guys go home but
with this wunderstanding, you can't discuss this
matter with each other or anyone else until you know
the case is concluded which probably wouldn't be
today that you would know that. The reason being if
something were to happen I'd have to éall you back
down here and you'd have to serve, so with that
understanding I'll be glad to release you. I'm not
saying you have to leave but a lot of people don't
want to hang around and then it kind of gets to be
complicated. So, you're free to go if you decide to
leave, but again don't discuss this matter. It's not
likely we'd have to call you back but. Yes, ma'am?

ALTERNATE JUROR CARTER: Do we need to call
tonight?

THE COURT: Your call in will be, actually I
have it December 5th after 5. So I think its changed
since the other day. So, December 5th after 5 call
in, just kind of leave your stuff there in the seat
and we'll take care of it for you.

ALTERNATE JUROR CARTER: Then I'm free to set in
the lobby?

THE COURT: You're free to stay, you definitely
are. You don't have to go, a lot of people don't
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want to stay or some go and whatever, but you're free
to set out here if you'd like to. We'll just go
ahead and tell everyone else that's present don't --
don't sit by Ms. Carter and have any conversation
with her because you never know when things tend to
happen. So, but you can stay if you want.

(SIDEBAR CONFERENCE OUT OF THE HEARING OF THE
JURY AS FOLLOWS:

THE COURT: I think we have a question about one
of the exhibits or something, do you all want to come
up.

MR. KEEVER: Yeah, Your Honor, and I don’t know
where it ended up, but remember it was that 97% graph
chart that Dr. Michota filled out on chances of
living and -- and I have no idea.

I don't think Walter has it.

You know, we have two hand drawn charts listed

as exhibits and only have one.

COURT REPORTER: Would it have come in on
Monday?
MR. KEEVER: No, 1t would have come in on

Tuesday, Nancy, and it is one that we put down here
and he filled it in and -- and I know it was the only
one that you admitted.

THE COURT: 1Is that it?
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MR. SWINDLE: That's it.

MR. KEEVER: Yeah, okay, we're good.

THE COURT: Okay. There was one other question
i think. I think the other question was this
document was actually 1 and now it's 2 --

MR. KEEVER: Well, let's see here.

THE COURT: No. No. All of this goes with it,
all of this is one. So you all know what I'm talking
about this is the funeral home sign in, the page and
all the signatures, I admitted all that. I guess it
came apart. We'll staple that together.

There was a proffered exhibit and there may be
others, I don't know but lets make sure we don't
include those.

MR. KEEVER: Here is our proffered exhibit and
Nancy has it sequestered.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KEEVER: I think that's the only one
plaintiffs proffered.

COURT REPORTER: And 3 said it was not admitted.

THE COURT: Right it's not.

Dr. Daniels is 8A.

MR. KEEVER: I have no problem at all.

THE COURT: I think you have an 8 and 8A.

END OF SIDEBAR CONFERENCE.)
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THE COURT: All right, we're going to be in
recess.

(2:50 P.M. OPEN COURT RECONVENES)

BAILIFF: All rise.

THE COURT: I understand from the bgiliff that
there's a verdict here, and I just want to caution
you all before we get them in here and hear whatever
it is, I don't want to hear any outburst or anything
like that.

MR. KEEVER: Your Honor, can I ask a question
before the jury comes in?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. KEEVER: What's the court's feeling, is it

'permissible after everything is gone and they're

released to contact the jurors or ask them --

THE COURT: =-- It's up to them if they want to
talk té you.

MR. KEEVER: Okay. Would you -- would you just
let them know that it's okay, do you mind?

THE COURT: I'll tell them it would be up to
them. '

MR. KEEVER: Oh, absolutely but -- but -- but
you're not against it?

THE COURT: ©No I'm not opposed to it. 1I'll be
glad to tell them.
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Go ahead and bring the jury in.
MR. KEEVER: Okay, thank you, Your Honor.
(JURORS SEATED IN THE JURY BOX)

JURY VERDICT ANNOUNCED

THE COURT: All right, who is our
foreman/foreperson?

JUROR PAVY: That would be me. Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Pavy, if you would hand the
verdict to the bailiff.

(BAILIFF HANDS THE VERDICT TO THE COURT)

THE COURT: All right, the verdict reads:

Interrogatory No. 1: Do you find from a
preponderance of the evidence that Henry Edwards,
M.D., was negligent in relation to the care and
treatment of Kenneth Bieler, deceased, which was a
proximate cause of the death of Kenneth Bieler,
deceased?

And the answer: No.

That's signed by the foreman, which I take to
mean the verdict is unanimous.

Any questions about the verdict then, Mr.
Keever?

MR. KEEVER: No questions, Your Honor, thank
you.

THE COURT: Mr. Cox?
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MR. COX: No.

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, this concludes
your service, your next call in is December 5th after
5, so I guess that would mean Wednesday after 5, see
if we have anything on Thursday.

There was an inquiry here about whether or not
thev attorneys might want to talk to you, ask
questions of you, and I don't know if they covered
that in the orientation, but it's up to you, you
don't have an obligation to talk to anyone. You
don't have an obligation to tell anyone about your
jury service. I know that seems to be popular on
television these days, but this is not television.
And the point is, it's up to you to decide if you
want to diséuss it or not discuss it or visit with
attorneys or anyone, it's not required and I'm
certainly not here to tell you that it's required.
But I just wanted to be clear that, you know, it will
be your decision and you know obviously sometimes
people have questions about proceedings and all of
that and if they don't get feedback I understand
that, but you're not obligated to give it to them.
So, just understand that that's kind of where we are
on that.

I think everybody got their -- did everybody get
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their work note? I had one floating around here
somewhere. Okay.
JURORS EXCUSED

THE COURT: All right, this concludes your
service, you're free to go and you can put your tags
in the seats, we'll destroy everything else you leave
as far as your notes. We're not going to read them
or anything like that, you can take them if you want
but we're going to throw them away.

BAILIFF: Please stand for the jury.

(JURORS DEPART THE COURT ROOM)

THE COURT: We'll make you copies of the
verdict, and if you would, Mr. Cox, just get me a
judgment back here as soon as you can, get it
approved.

Anything further? All right, we're adjourned.

(COURT ADJOURNS)
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4. “The Outpatient Direct Admission: Criteria for Hospitalization”; Department of General
Internal Medicine Grand Rounds; The Cleveland Clinic Foundation; September 19,1998.
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Summit, Cleveland Clinic, Cleveland, Ohio; September 18, 2006.

“Meet the Experts: Anticoagulation” 2™ Annual Perioperative Summit, Cleveland Clinic,
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“Management of Anemia in the Hospitalized Patient,” Blood Summit, Cleveland Clinic;
October 13", 2008.
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Cleveland Clinic Health System, Cleveland, OH, April 6, 2009

“Is There a Role for Aspirin in the Prevention of VTE in Orthopedic Surgery?” Hospital
Medicine Grand Rounds, Cleveland Clinic, Cleveland, OH, May 6, 2009.

“Board Simulation in Preoperative Evaluation,” 21* Annual Cleveland Clinic Intensive
Review of Internal Medicine; June 14, 2009.

“Board Simulation in Medical Genetics,” 21* Annual Cleveland Clinic Intensive Review
of Internal Medicine; June 14, 2009.

“Test Taking Stategies for the Boards,” 21* Annual Cleveland Clinic Intensive Review of
Internal Medicine; June 14, 2009,

More Medicolegal Lessons: Case Conference,” Hospital Medicine Grand Rounds,
Cleveland Clinic, Cleveland, OH, September 9, 2009.

More Medicolegal Lessons: Case Conference,” Hospital Medicine Grand Rounds,
Cleveland Clinic, Cleveland, OH, November 25, 2009.

“VTE Prophylaxis in the Hospital: Interventions for Improving Care,” Medical Grand
Rounds, Lakewood Hospital, Cleveland Clinic Health System, Cleveland, OH, January 6,
2010.

“More Medicolegal Lessons: Case Conference,” Hospital Medicine Grand Rounds,
Cleveland Clinic, Cleveland, OH, April 28, 2010.

“Board Simulation in Medical Genetics,” 22* Annual Cleveland Clinic Intensive Review
of Internal Medicine; June 6, 2010.

“Test Taking Stategies for the Boards,” 22* Annual Cleveland Clinic Intensive Review of
Internal Medicine; June 6, 2010.

“Board Simulation in Preoperative Evaluation,” 22* Annual Cleveland Clinic Intensive
Review of Internal Medicine; June 7, 2010.

“What’s new in Medicine?” 24ths Annual Clinic Seminars in Dermatology; October 29,
2010.

“More Medicolegal Lessons: Case Conference,” Hospital Medicine Grand Rounds,
Cleveland Clinic, Cleveland, OH, September 8, 2010.

“More Medicolegal Lessons: Case Conference,” Hospital Medicine Grand Rounds,
Cleveland Clinic, Cleveland, OH, September 22, 2010.

“More Medicolegal Lessons: Case Conference,” Hospital Medicine Grand Rounds,
Cleveland Clinic, Cleveland, OH, November 10, 2010.

“More Medicolegal Lessons: Case Conference,” Hospital Medicine Grand Rounds,
Cleveland Clinic, Cleveland, OH, February 16, 2011

“Board Simulation in Medical Genetics,” 23rd Annual Cleveland Clinic Intensive
Review of Internal Medicine; June 12, 2011.

“Test Taking Stategies for the Boards,” 23rd Annual Cleveland Clinic Intensive Review
of Internal Medicine; June 12, 2011.

“Board Simulation in Preoperative Evaluation,” 23rd Annual Cleveland Clinic Intensive
Review of Internal Medicine; June 12, 2011.
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.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Marymount
Hospital, CCHS, July 13, 2011.

Regional/State

1. “Hospitalist Practice Model: The Cleveland Clinic Foundation”, Ohio Regional Meeting
of the National Association of Inpatient Physicians; Columbus, Ohio, October 27, 1999.

2. “The Hospitalist Movement”, Panel Discussion, Ohio Regional Meeting of the National
Association of Inpatient Physicians; Columbus, Ohio, October 27, 1999.

3. “Low-Molecular Weight Heparins,” Education Program, Tiffin Regional Medical Group;
Tiffin, Ohio, January 18, 2000.

4, “Clinical Indications for Low-Molecular Weight Heparins,” Medicine Grand Rounds,
McGruder Hospital; Port Clinton, Ohio, April 18, 2000.

5. “Outpatient Treatment of Deep Venous Thrombosis,” Department of Medicine Grand
Rounds, Mercy Hospital; Willard, Ohio, May 22, 2000.

6. “The Cleveland Clinic Outpatient DVT Protocol,” Medicine Rounds, Allen Memorial
Hospital; Oberlin, Ohio, May 25, 2000.

y “Low-Molecular Weight Heparins,” Education Program, Wynstock Hospital; Upper
Sandusky, Ohio, June 27, 2000.

8. “Searching for the Perfect Anticoagulant,” Medicine Rounds, Freemont Hospital,
Freemont, Ohio, June 29, 2000.

9. “Maximizing Value: Low-Molecular Weight Heparins,” Education Program, Lima
Regional Medical Group, Lima, Ohio, July 13, 2000.

10, “Prevention, Diagnosis, and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolic Disease,” Medicine
Rounds, St. Mary’s Hospital, Canton, Ohio, July 19, 2000.

11. “Preventing Thrombosis: Lessons from the MEDENOX Study,” Department of Medicine
Grand Rounds, Firelands Hospital, Sandusky, Ohio, Septemeber 28, 2000.

12 “Thrombosis Risk in the Trauma Patient” Grand Rounds, St. Mary’s Hospital, Canton,
Ohio, January 3, 2001.

13. “Issues in Thrombosis: Clinical Indications for Low-molecular Weight Heparins,”
Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, Bethesda Hospital, Zanesville, Ohio, January 9,
2001.

14. “Low-molecular Weight Heparins: Is There a Class Effect?” Scioto Medical Society
Education Program, Portsmouth, Ohio, January 9, 2001,

15. “Prevention of Thrombosis in the Medically Ill,” Medicine Rounds, Marion Hospital,
Marion, Ohio, February 8, 2001

16. “Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolic Disease,” 8" District Academy
of Osteopathic Medicine & Surgery Annual Seminar, Cuyahoga Falls, Oh, February 18,
2001

17. “Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolic Disease in the Medically Il
Population,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Mansfield Hospital, March 21, 2001.

18. “New Issues in Thrombosis: The Medically Ill at High Risk,” Medicine Grand Rounds,
Freemont Hospital, Freemont Hospital, May 24, 2001.

19, “Current Management of VTE,” Grand Rounds, St. Mary’s Hospital, Canton, Ohio,
May 31, 2001.

20, “VTE in Prevention in the Medically Ill Population,” Keynote Speaker, NW Ohio
Medical Symposium, St. Charles Hospital, Oregon, Ohio, June 1, 2001.

21. “Prevention of DVT in Critical Care Patients” Medical Grand Rounds, Holzer Medical
Center, Gallipolis, OH, June 22, 2001.

22, “Prevention, Diagnosis, and Treatment of DVT and PE,” CORE Osteopathic Lecture
Series, Doctor’s Hospital, Columbus, Ohio, August 8, 2001.

23. “Treatment of Outpatient Venous Thrombosis,” Anticoagulation and Thrombosis

Symposium, Sponsored by Mansfield Medical Center, Mansfield, Ohio, October 24,
2001.
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24,

25,

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31,

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37,

38.

39.

40.

41.

42,

43,

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49,

“Venous Thromboembolism in the Trauma Patient,” Surgical Grand Rounds, Grant
Medical Center, Columbus, Ohio, November 27, 2001.

“Prevention of Venous Thrombosis,” NVP Program, Cincinnati, Ohio, December 19,
2001.

“Prophylaxis and Treatment of DVT,” Forum Health System, Northside Medical Center,
Youngstown, OH, March 14, 2002

“Update: ACCP Consensus Conference on Anti-thrombotic Therapy and the
Pharmacoeconomics of Low Molecular Weight Heparin,” 13" Annual Update in Internal
Medicine, Northeastern Ohio College of Medicine Review Course, Cuyahoga Falls,
Ohio, May 6, 2002.

“Prevention of Venous Thrombosis,” Medical Grand Rounds, St. Elizabeth Medical
Center, Youngstown, OH, September 10, 2002.

“MKSAP Review-Hospital Medicine,” ACP-ASIM Ohio Chapter Scientific Meeting,
Columbus, Ohio, October 12, 2002.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thrombosis,” Medical Grand Rounds, Massillon
Community Hospital, Massillon, OH, April 30, 2003.

“DVT Propylaxis and Treatment Standards,” Kettering Medical Center CME Conference,
Kettering Medical Center, Kettering, Ohio, October 7, 2003.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Marion General Hospital, Marion, Ohio, November 13, 2003.

“Prevention of DVT/PE in the Hospitalized Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Blanchard
Valley Regional Hospital, Findlay, Ohio, February 6, 2004.

“Prevention of VTE in the Medically Ill Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Licking
Memorial Hospital, Newark, OH, March 15, 2004.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, St. Mary’s Hospital,
Canton, OH, March 24, 2004,

“Prevention of VTE in the Medically Ill Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Freemont
Hospital, Freemont, OH, March 25, 2004.

“Prevention of VTE in the Medically Ill Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Kettering
Medical Center, Kettering, OH, April 6, 2004.

“Prevention of VTE in the Hospitalized Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Marymount
Hospital, Cleveland, OH, May 19, 2004.

“Prevention of VTE in Special Patient Populations,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Youngstown Memorial Hospital, July 20. 2004,

“Prevention of VTE in the Medically Ill Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Canton
Hospital, Canton, OH, September 24, 2004.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Medical Grand Rounds, Ravenna Memorial
Hospital, Ravenna, OH, October 13, 2004.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Riverside Methodist
Hospital, Columbus, OH, August 16, 2005.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism in the Medical Patient,” MedCentral Health
System, Mansfield, OH, March 28, 2006.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Marion Medical Center,
Marion, OH, November 2, 2006.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Kettering Medical
Center, Kettering, OH, November 3, 2006.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Lancaster Hospital,
Lancaster, OH, December 8, 2006.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Good Samaritan
Hospital, Dayton, OH, April 23, 2007

“Venous Thrombosis and Cancer,” Hematology and Oncology Summit, Akron General
Medical Center, Akron, OH, November 7, 2007

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Current Concepts in Internal Medicine 2008,
Akron General Medical Center, Akron, OH, February 9, 2008.
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50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE: New Strategies and Guidelines for Improving Patient
Outcomes,” Medical Grand Rounds, Dayton VA Medical Center, Dayton, Ohio,
September 30, 2008.

“Update in Hospital Medicine,” Ohio ACP Meeting, Columbus, Ohio, October 17, 2008.
“Primary Care Review of Deep Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Kettering Medical Center, Kettering, OH, August 7, 2009.

“Update in Perioperative Medicine,” Ohio ACP Meeting, Columbus, Ohio, October 9,
2009.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Atrium Medical Center, Middletown, OH, May 5, 2010.

“Recognition, Diagnosis, and Management of Heparin-Induced Thrombocytopenia,”
Medical Grand Rounds, Kettering Medical Center, Kettering, OH, May 19, 2010.
“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Licking Memorial Hospital, Newark, OH, June 28, 2010.

National/International

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

25.

26.

“Creating a Team for Rapid Improvement”; Institute for Healthcare Improvement;
National Congress; Chicago, IL, November 18, 1998

“Hospitalists in Teaching Hospitals”; Panel Discussion; National Meeting of the National
Association of Inpatient Physicians; New Orleans, LA, April 21, 1999.

“Update in Hospital Medicine”’; National Meeting of the American College of
Physicians; New Orleans, LA, April 23, 1999.

“Challenges for Academic Hospitalists”, Panel Discussion, 3 Annual Meeting of the
National Association of Inpatient Physicians; Philadelphia, PA, April 11, 2000.

“Topics in Hospital Geriatrics”, 3" Annual Meeting of the National Association of
Inpatient Physicians; Philadelphia, PA, April 11, 2000.

“The Inpatient Specialist: What is the Difference?” Department of Medicine Grand
Rounds, Lehigh Valley Medical Center; Allentown, Pennsylvania, May 16, 2000.
“Update in Hospital Medicine,” 1* Midwest Regional Meeting of the National
Association of Inpatient Physicians, Mayo Clinic, Rochester, MN, August 18, 2000.
“Health Screening and Immunizations,” Intensive Review of Internal Medicine
Symposium, Mexico City, Mexico, November 17, 2000.

“Topics in Preoperative Evaluation,” Intensive Review of Internal Medicine Symposium,
Mexico City, Mexico, November 18, 2000.

“New Issues in Thrombosis: Clinical Indications for Low-Molecular-Weight Heparins”
Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, Camden-Clark Hospital, Parkersburg, West
Virginia, January 16, 2001.

“New Issues in Thrombosis: Assessing the Risk in the Medically 111 Patient” Department
of Medicine Grand Rounds, St. Clare’s Hospital, Schenectady, New York, January 23,
2001.

“Clinical Indications for Low-Molecular Weight Heparins,” Parkersburg Medical Society
Education Program, Vienna, West Virginia, February 14, 2001.

“Controversies in Thrombosis,” Medicine Rounds, St. Joseph’s Hospital, Parkersburg,
West Virginia, February 15, 2001.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thrombosis,” Medical Grand Rounds, Albany
General Hospital, Albany, New York, February 23, 2001.

“New Issues in Thrombosis: Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thrombosis in the
Rehabilitation Setting,” Medical Grand Rounds, Healthsouth Harmarville Rehabilitation
Hospital, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, March 15, 2001.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolic Disease in the Medically Il
Population,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Mercy Hospital of Buffalo, Buffalo, New York,
March 22, 2001.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Highland Hospital,
Rochester, New York, April 17, 2001.
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2

28.

29.

30.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27,

28.

29,

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

“Prophylaxis Strategies in Venous Thrombosis,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Mercy
Medical Center, Mason City, lowa, May 9, 2001.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Hackley Hospital,
Muskegon, Michigan, May 21, 2001.

“Advances in the Prevention and Treatment of Deep Venous Thrombosis and Pulmonary
Embolism” Medicine Grand Rounds, Glenn Falls Hospital, Glenn Falls, NY, June 26,
2001.

“Current Concepts in Thrombosis: National Visiting Professor Program,” Co-chair,
sponsored by the Postgraduate Institute for Medicine, Amelia Island, Florida, July 27-29,
2001.

“New Directions in the Treatment and Prevention of Venous Thrombosis,” Roundtable
Discussion, American Journal of Managed Care, Chicago, IL, August 24-25, 2001.
“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Meadville Medical Center, Meadyville, PA, September 12, 2001.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Baptist Medical Center,
Lexington, Kentucky, September 20, 2001.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds,
Midland Michigan Medical Center, Midland, Michigan, October 9, 2001

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Greenville Hospital,
Affiliate of the University of Pittsburgh Medical Center (UPMC), October 12, 2001.
“Prevention of DVT and PE,” New York Coalition of Nurse Practitioners and Physician
Assistants, Sagamore, New York, October 28, 2001.

“Issues and Controversies in Perioperative Medicine,” NAIP Northeast Regional
Meeting, Cambridge, Massachussetts, November 3, 2001.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds,
Westchester Medical Center, Westchester, Massachussetts, November 14, 2001.
“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Danbury Hospital,
Danbury, CT, December 12, 2001.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds,
Hamot Medical Center, Erie, PA, January 17, 2002.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds,
Grand Haven Hospital, Grand Haven, Michigan, February 5, 2002.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism in the Medical Patient,” Medicine Grand
Rounds, McKeesport Hospital UPMC, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, February 12, 2002.
“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds,
Long Island Jewish Medical Center, Long Island, New York, February 20, 2002.

“New Horizons in the Treatment of Deep Venous Thrombosis,” Medical Odyssey 2001-
2002, Primary Care Update of the Phillipino-American Medical Society of Western
Pennsylvania, Affiliate of UPMC, February 21, 2002

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Lehigh Valley Medical Center, Allentown, Pennsylvania, February 26, 2002,
“Thrombosis Update - Overview of Low-Molecular Weight Heparins,” John H. Moyer
Visiting Professor Lecture Series, Cambria-Somerset Council for Education of Health
Professionals, Inc., Windber Medical Center, Windber, Pennsylvania, February 27, 2002.
“Thrombosis Update - Prevention of VTE in the Medically I11,” John H. Moyer Visiting
Professor Lecture Series, Cambria-Somerset Council for Education of Health
Professionals, Inc., Memorial Medical Center, Johnstown, Pennsylvania, February 27,
2002.

“Thrombosis Update — Outpatient Treatment of DVT,” John H. Moyer Visiting Professor
Lecture Series, Cambria-Somerset Council for Education of Health Professionals, Inc.,
Bon Secours Holy Family Hospital, Altoona, Pennsylvania, February 27, 2002.
“Thrombosis Update — Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” John H. Moyer Visiting
Professor Lecture Series, Cambria-Somerset Council for Education of Health
Professionals, Inc., UPMC Bedford Memorial Hospital, Bedford, Pennsylvania, February
28,2002,
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41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49,

50.

51.

52,

53.

54,

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

“Thrombosis Update — Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” John H. Moyer Visiting
Professor Lecture Series, Cambria-Somerset Council for Education of Health
Professionals, Inc., UPMC Lee Regional Hospital, Johnstown, Pennsylvania, February
28,2002,

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thrombosis,” Oak Forest Hospital System of Cook
County, Chicago, Illinois, March 25, 2002

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thrombosis,” Decatur Memorial Hospital,
Decatur, Illinois, March 26, 2002.

“Inpatient Practices with LMWH: Update on Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Pri-
Med West 2002, Long Beach Convention Center, Long Beach, California, April 3, 2002.
“Update in Hospital Medicine,” 5" Annual Meeting of the National Association of
Inpatient Physicians, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, April 9, 2002.

“DVT Prevention in the Hospitalized Patient,” Thrombosis Crisis in Healthcare
Symposium, sponsored by Thomson-American Healthcare Consultants, Walforf-Fostoria
Hotel, New York, New York, April 6, 2002.

“Prevention of Venous Thrombosis,” Medical Grand Rounds, Ellis Hospital,
Schenectady, New York, April 12,2002.

“Prevention of DVT in the Cardiac Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Ball Memorial
Medical Center, Muncie, Indiana, April 24, 2002.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, St
Agnes Hospital, Baltimore, Maryland, April 25, 2002.

“A Real World Approach to Thrombosis Prevention and ACS Management of
Hospitalized Medical Patients,” Thrombosis Crisis in Healthcare Symposium, sponsored
by Thomson-American Healthcare Consultants, Ritz-Carlton Hotel, Chicago, IL, April
29,2002.

“How to Create a Hospital Medicine Program,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Missouri-
Baptist Hospital, Columbia, Missouri, May 7, 2002.

“On Either Side of the Clot — Prevent It or Treat It,” Education Symposium — Can We
Abandon Unfractionated Heparin? Sponsored by Adovocate Christ Healthcare System,
Oakwood, Illinois, May 8, 2002.

“The Hospitalized Patient: Protection and Treatment of DVT,” Medicine Grand Rounds,
Columbia-St. Mary’s Hospital, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, May 9, 2002.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Henry Ford Hospital,
Dearborn, Michigan, May 22, 2002.

“Low-molecular Weight Heparin in the Cardiac Patient,” Department of Cardiology
Grand Rounds, University of Massachussetts, May 23, 2002.

“Issues in Anticoagulation: Mechanical Heart Valves,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Hamot
Medical Center, Erie, PA, July 17, 2002.

“Periprocedural Anticoagulation,” Department of Cardiology Grand Rounds, Lakeland
Regional Medical Center, Lakeland, Florida, August 9, 2002.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Medicine Grand Rounds, James Haley VA
Hospital, Tampa Bay, Florida, August 9, 2002.

“Prevention of Venous Thrombosis,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, Albany
Medical Center, Albany, New York, August 23, 2002.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Medicine
Grand Rounds, Sparrow Hospital at Michigan State University, Lansing, Michigan,
August 28, 2002.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Memorial Healthcare System, Hollywood, Florida, September 4, 2002.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Cleveland Clinic Florida Foundation, Weston, Florida, September 4, 2002,

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Broward Memorial Hospital, Fort Lauderdale, Florida, September 5, 2002.

“Prevention of VTE: Special Populations of Obesity and Renal Insufficiency,”
Educational Program, Renssaelaer County Academy of Medicine, Troy, New York,
September 17, 2002.
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65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Blodgett Hospital,
Spectrum Healthcare, Grand Rapids, Michigan, October 10, 2002.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism in the Surgical Patient.” Surgical Grand
Rounds, Mercy Medical Center, Baltimore, Maryland, January 9, 2003

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds, St.
Vincent Health Center, Erie, Pennsylvania, January 10, 2003.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds,
UPMC Horizon Hospital, Greenville, Pennsylvania, January 10, 2003.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Medicine
Grand Rounds, University of Louisville, Louisville, Kentucky, January 23, 2003.
“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Louisville Society of Internal
Medicine, Louisville, Kentucky, January 23, 2003.

“Use of LMWH in Special Patient Populations,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds,
University of Las Vegas Medical Center, Las Vegas, Nevada, January 30, 2003.
“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” South Dakota Medical Information
Exchange, University of South Dakota School of Medicine, February 5, 2003.
“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Surgery
Grand Rounds, Torrence Memorial Hospital, Los Angeles, California, February 10, 2003.
“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Pharmacy
Grand Rounds, Wake Forest Medical Center, Charlotte, North Carolina, February 13,
2003.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Medicine
Grand Rounds, Orlando Regional Medical Center, Orlando, Florida, February 20, 2003.
“Bridging Anticoagulation with LMWH,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Winter Haven
Memorial Hospital, Lakeland, Florida, February 20, 2003.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism in the Medically Il Patient,” Department of
Medicine Grand Rounds, Jackson Memorial Hospital, University of Miami, Miami,
Florida, February 28, 2003.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds,
Baylor Medical Center at Irving, Dallas, Texas, March 18, 2003.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism in the Orthopedic Patient,” Orthopedic Grand
Rounds, Western Pennsylvania Hospital, Pittsburgh, PA, March 25, 2003.

“Acute Coronary Syndromes and Cardiogenic Shock,” Critical Care Pre-Course, 6"
Annual Meeting of the Society of Hospital Medicine, San Diego, CA, March 31, 2003.
“Controversies in Venous Thromboembolism,” ACP Symposia, San Diego, CA, April 4,
2003.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds,
Lutheran General Hospital, Chicago, IL, April 16, 2003.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Medicine
Grand Rounds, Frank Torresdale Hospital, Thomas Jefferson Health System,
Philadelphia, PA, April 22, 2003.

“Outpatient Treatment of DVT,” Medical Grand Rounds, Butler Memorial Hospital,
Butler, PA, May 8, 2003.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE in the Gynecology Patient,” Department of Obstetrics
and Gynecology Grand Rounds, Reading Regional Hospital, Reading, PA, May 14, 2003.
“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thrombosis, Department of Medicine Grand
Rounds, Reading Regional Hospital, Reading, PA, May 14, 2003.

“Prevention of DVT/PE,” Medical Grand Rounds, Ephrata Community Hospital,
Ephrata, PA, May 15, 2003.

“Prevention of Venous Thrombosis,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, Terre
Haute Regional Hospital, Terre Haute, Indiana, May 20, 2003

“Prevention of Venous Thrombosis,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, Carle
Hospital, Urbana, IL, May 20, 2003.

“Prevention of Venous Thrombosis,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, Western
Penn Hospital, Pittsburgh, PA, May 22, 2003.
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91.

92.

93.

94.

95.

96.

97.

98.

99.

100.

101.

102.

103.

104.

105.

106.

107.

108.

109.

110.

111.

112.

113,

114.

115.

“Prevention of Venous Thrombembolism in the Medically 11l Patient, Department of
Medicine Grand Rounds, Harborside-UCLA Medical Center, Los Angeles, California,
June 11, 2003.

“Prevention of Venous Thrombosis,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, Greenfield
Hospital, Baystate Medical Center, Greenfield, Massachussetts, June 12, 2003.
“Prevention of Venous Thrombembolism in the Medically Ill Paitent,” Department of
Medicine Grand Rounds, University of Tennessee, Knoxville, Tennesse, June 17, 2003.
“Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, Baptist
Hospital, Nashville, Tennessee, June 18, 2003.

“Bridging Anticoagulation with Low-Molecular Weight Heparins,” Department of
Medicine Grand Rounds, Niagra Hospital, Niagra Falls, New York, June 20, 2003.
“Prevention of VTE in the Critical Care Unit,” Department of Critical Care Grand
Rounds, St. John’s Hospital, St. Louis, Missouri, July 8, 2003.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Medicine
Grand Rounds, Tampa VA Hospital, Tampa Bay, Florida, July 17, 2003.

“Bridging Anticoagulation with Low-Molecular Weight Heparins,” Department of
Medicine Grand Rounds, Palms of Pasadena Hospital, Tampa Bay, Florida, July 17,
2003.

“Low-Molecular Weight Heparins in the Cardiology Patient,” Department of Cardiology
Grand Rounds, University of Florida, Gainesville, Florida, July 18, 2003.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism in the Medical Patient,” Department of
Medicine Grand Rounds, Torrence Memorial Medical Center, Torrence, California,
August 1,2003.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds,
Queen of Angels Hospital, Burbank, California, August 19, 2003.

“Update on DVT Prophylaxis — an Evidence-Based Approach,” Department of Medicine
Grand Rounds, Bradford WCA Hospital, Bradford, Pennsylvania, August 27, 2003.
“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Department of Medicine
Grand Rounds, Reynolds Memorial Hospital, Glen Dale, West Virginia, September 2,
2003.

“Prevention of Thromboembolic Disease,” Critical Care Medicine Update, Sponsored by
Ingham Regional Medical Center, Lansing, Michigan, September 5, 2003.

“Diagnosis and Treatment of DVT/PE,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, St.
Mary’s Medical Center, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, September 16, 2003.

“Will Inpatient Specialists Improve Care — an Outcomes Evaluation,” St. Mary’s Medical
Center Special CME Program, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, September 16, 2003.
“Special Issues in Anticoagulation — Alternatives to Heparin,” Department of Medicine
Grand Rounds, Abington Memorial Hospital, Abington, Pennsylvania, September 17,
2003.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” IPC CME Program,
Sponsored by the University of Arizona, Tuscon, Arizona, September 18, 2003.
“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Educational Program of the Indiana Medical
Society, Michigan City, Indiana, September 29, 2003.

“Prevention and Treatment of DVT/PE,” Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, Porter
Health System, Valparaiso, Indiana, September 30, 2003.

“Prevention, Diagnosis, and Treatment of DVT/PE,” Department of Medicine Grand
Rounds, La Porte Memorial Hospital, South Bend, Indiana, September 30, 2003.
“Prevention and Treatment of DVT/PE in Special Patient Populations,” Department of
Medicine Grand Rounds, Beaver Medical Center, Beaver, Pennsylvania, October 3, 2003.
“Current Trends in the Treatment of DVT,” Medical Grand Rounds, Adventist
Healthcare, Washington Adventist Hospital, Washington DC, October 10, 2003.
“Symposium on DVT Prophylaxis — A Quality Improvement Program: Prevention and
Treatment of Venous Thrombosis,” Medical Grand Rounds, Adventist Healthcare, Shady
Grove Adventist Hospital, Rockville, Maryland, October 22. 2003

“Prevention and Treatment of DVT/PE,” Medical Grand Rounds, United Community
Hospital, Grove City, Pennsylvania, October 23, 2003.
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116. “The Clinical Challenge of PE and DVT Treatment in Special Patient Groups,” CME
Program, Ohio Valley General Hospital, McKees Rocks, Pennsylvania, October 30,

2003.

117. “Prevention of DVT in the Hospitalized Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Clinton
Memorial Hospital, St. John’s, Michigan, November 4, 2003.

118. “Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Carson City Hospital, Carson City, Michigan, November 4, 2003.

119. “Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,

Vincennes Hospital, Vincennes, Indiana, November 19, 2003.

120. “Prevention of DVT and PE in the Medically Ill Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Waukesha Memorial Hospital, Waukesha, Wisconsin, November 25, 2003.

121. “Prevention and Treatment of VTE in the Medically Ill Patient,” CME Program, Lee
Memorial Health System, Fort Myers, Florida, December 2, 2003.

122. “Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Medical Grand Rounds, Little Company of Mary
Hospital, Torrence, California, January 8, 2004.

123, “The Coalition to Prevent Venous Thrombosis,” Division of General Internal Medicine
Grand Rounds, Baptist Hospital, Wake Forest University, Winston-Salem, North
Carolina, January 14, 2004.

124. “Prevention of Deep Venous Thrombosis,” Medical Grand Rounds, Danbury Hospital,
Yale University, New Haven, Connecticut, January 15, 2004.

125. “Prevention of VTE in the Medically Ill Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Waterbury
Hospital, Yale University, Waterbury, Connecticut, January 16, 2004.

126. “Prevention of VTE in the Medically 11l Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Little Mary
Hospital, Torrence, California, January 28, 2004.

127. “Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Pharmacy Grand Rounds, University of Tennessee
Medical Center, Knoxville, Tennessee, February 5, 2004.

128. “Prevention of VTE in the Medically Ill Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Southern
Illinois University Hospital, Carbondale, Illinois, February 13, 2004.

129. “The New Age of Anticoagulation — Going Beyond Heparin,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Graduate Hospital, Philadelphia, PA, February 18, 2004,

130. “Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, St. Johns’s
Hospital, Detroit, Michigan, March 2, 2004.
131. “The Current Management of Medical Patients at Risk for Venous Thromboembolism,”

Medical Grand Rounds, The Chester County Hospital, West Chester, PA, March 5, 2004.

132, “Prevention of VTE in the Medically Ill Patient,” Lake Erie Osteopathic College of
Medicine Internal Medicine Update, Findley Lake, NY, March 6, 2004.

133. “Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Broward County Hospital, Fort Lauderdale, Florida, March 17, 2004.

134. “Prevention of DVT/PE in the Hospitalized Patient, Medical Grand Rounds, Doylestown
Hospital, Doylestown, PA, March 23, 2004.

135. “VTE Prophylaxis in the Medical Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, Sacred Heart
Hospital, Allentown, PA, March 23, 2004.

136. “Prevention of DVT/PE in the Medically Ill,” Medical Grand Rounds, Allina Hospital,
Minneapolis, MN, March 31, 2004.

137. “Prevention of VTE in the Medically Ill Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, George
Washington University Hospital, Washington D.C., April 1, 2004.

138. “Prevention of VTE in High-Risk Abdominal Surgery Patients,” CME Symposia
sponsored by Johns Hopkins University, Aventura, FL, April 17, 2004.

139. “Contemporary Update: Acute Coronary Syndromes,” Critical Care Precourse, Society of
Hospital Medicine Annual Meeting, New Orleans, LA, April 19, 2004.

140.  “VTE Prophylaxis of the At-Risk Medical Patient,” SHM Symposia, New Orleans, LA,
April 19,2004,

141. “Tools and Solutions for Quality Perioperative Care,” Society of Hospital Medicine
Annual Meeting, New Orleans, LA, April 20, 2004.

142, “Intravenous Therapy for Acute Decompensated Heart Failure: What is the Role of
Nesiritide,” SHM Symposia, New Orleans, LA, April 20, 2004.
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“Contemporary Update: Treatment for Congestive Heart Failure,” Society of Hospital
Medicine Annual Meeting, New Orleans, LA, April 21, 2004,

“Prevention of VTE in Special Patient Populations,” Medical Grand Rounds, Waterbury
Hospital, Yale University, Waterbury, Connecticut, August 12, 2004.

“Update in Thrombosis: Review of ACCP Guidelines,” Medical Grand Rounds, Beaver
Creek Medical Center, Beaver Creek, PA, September 17, 2004,

“Prevention of VTE in the Medically Il Patient,” Medical Grand Rounds, St. Mary’s
Medical Center, Langhorne, PA, September 28, 2004.

“Strategies to Improve VTE Prophylaxis in the Acute Care Setting,” Medical Grand
Rounds, Orlando Regional Medical Center, Orlando, FL, October 19, 2004.

“Update on Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism in Medically 111
Patients,” Medical Grand Rounds, Memorial Healthcare System, Fort Lauderdale,
Florida, March 2, 2005.

“Are the ACCP Guidelines for the Prevention of VTE in Medically 11l Patients
Appropriate?” CME Symposia, American College of Physicians National Meeting, San
Francisco, CA, April 15, 2005.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, McGraw-Hill Hospital,
Loyola University, Chicago, IL, April 27, 2005.

“Challenging Cases in Perioperative Medicine,” Society of Hospital Medicine National
Meeting, Chicago, IL, April 28, 2005.

“Care for the Elderly Patient Having Surgery,” Society of Hospital Medicine National
Meeting, Chicago, IL, April 28, 2005.

“Update in Thrombosis,” Society of Hospital Medicine National Meeting, Chicago, IL,
April 28, 2005.

“New Issues in the Management of Congestive Heart Failure,” Cardiology Grand
Rounds, Tampa General Hospital, Tampa Bay, FL, May 11, 2005.

“Hospitalists and Geriatricians at the Interface: Collaborative Models to Improve Care to
Inaptient Elders,” American Geriatric Society National Meeting, Orlando, FL, May 14,
2005.

“Hospitalists Role in Preventing Venous Thromboembolism, Virginia Chapter Meeting
of the Society of Hospital Medicine, Norfolk, VA, June 22, 2005

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Norfolk General
Hosptial, Sentara Healthcare System, Norfolk, VA, June 23, 2005.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Maryview Medical
Center, Portsmouth, VA, June 24, 2005.

“Update on Venous Thromboembolism,” Sun and CME Conference, Cleveland Clinic
Alumni Association, Naples, Florida, February 10, 2006.

“Update on New Therapies for Congestive Heart Failure,” Trends in Nursing
Symposium, Reno, Nevada, March 21, 2006.

“Acute Heart Failure: Process of Care in the Hospital Setting,” 25™ Annual High sierra
Critical Care Conference, American Lung Association, Reno, Nevada, March 21, 2006.
“Venous Thromboembolism Overview,” National Quality Summit, Washington DC,
March 24, 2006.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism, The Cleveland Clinic Experience,” American
College of Healthcare Executives National Congress, Chicago, Illinois, March 29, 2006.
“Care for the Elderly Patient Having Surgery,” Society of Hospital Medicine National
Meeting, Perioperative Precourse, Washington DC, May 3, 2006.

“Contemporary Deep Vein Thrombosis Prophylaxis and Treatment,” CME Symposia,
National Meeting of the Society of Hospital Medicine, Washington DC, May 4, 2006
“Challenging Cases in Perioperative Medicine,” Society of Hospital Medicine National
Meeting, Washington DC, May 5, 2006.

“Disadvantages of Sliding Scale Insulin,” CME Symposia, National Meeting of the
Society of Hospital Medicine, Washington DC, May 5, 2006.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, South Bend Memorial
Hospital, South Bend, Indiana, May 10, 2006.

24

1257



169.

170.

171.

172.

173.

174.

175.

176.

177.

178.

179.

180.

181.

182.

183.

184.

185.

186.

187.

188.

189.

190.

191.

192.

193.

“Perioperative Care,” Medical Grand Rounds, Baptist Hospital, Wake Forest University,
Winston-Salem, North Carolina, May 24, 2006.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Meadville Hospital,
Meadville, Pennsylvania, May 31, 2006.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Rhode Island Hospital,
Providence, Rhode Island, July 12, 2006.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Mount Carmel East
Hospital, Columbus, Ohio, July 19, 2006

“New Advances in the Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand
Rounds, Mount Carmel West Hospital, Columbus, Ohio, July 19, 2006.

“Update on Antithrombotic Therapy,” Medical Grand Rounds, Ohio Valley General
Hospital, McKees Rocks, PA, October 10, 2006.

“Update on Venous Thromboembolism Prevention and Treatment,” Medical Grand
Rounds, Bon Secours Hospital, Baltimore, MD. October 12, 2006.

“Update on Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, WCA Hospital,
Jamestown, NY, November 1, 2006.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Outside the Heart: Treating
Vascular Disease in the 21* Century, Robinswood Medical Center, Hagerstown, MD,
December 7, 2006.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Mercy Medical Center,
Springfield, MA, December 18, 2006.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” West Virginia Medical Society Quarterly
Meeting, Beckley, WV, April 19, 2007

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism, Medical Grand Rounds,
Georgetown University Hospital, April 24, 2007

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism, Medical Grand Rounds,
Thomas Jefferson University Hospital, April 25, 2007.

“Anticoagulation in the OR” Society of Hospital Medicine Perioperative Precourse,
Dallas, Texas, May 23, 2007.

“Achieving the Standards for Prevention and Care of Venous Thromboembolism in the
Hospital,” CME Symposia Chair, Society of Hospital Medicine Annual Meeting, Dallas,
Texas, May 23, 2007,

“Guidelines and Measures for VTE Prevention and Care-Implementing New Standards,”
CME Symposia, Society of Hospital Medicine Annual Meeting, Dallas, Texas, May 24,
2007.

“Hyperglycemia and Diabetes in the Hospitalized Patient” CME Symposia Chair, Society
of Hospital Medicine Annual Meeting, Dallas, Texas, May 24, 2007.

“Rules of Engagement: the Hospitalist and Atherothrombosis,” CME Symposia Chair,
Society of Hospital Medicine Annual Meeting, Dallas, Texas, May 24, 2007.

“Master Clinicians Workshop: Challenges in Acute Decompensated heart Failure,: CME
Symposia Chair, Society of Hospital Annual Meeting, Dallas, Texas, May 25, 2007.
“Managing the Acute Decompensated Heart Failure Patient Admitted to the in-Hospital
Setting: the Hospitalist Perspective,” CME Symposia, Society of Hospital Annual
Meeting, Dallas, Texas, May 25, 2007.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,: Medical Grand Rounds, West Chester
Hospital, West Chester, PA, June 14, 2007.

“DVT Hypercoagulable States: Inpatient and Outpatient Treatment,” 2007 Internal
Medicine Conference: Year in Review, Orlando Regional Medical Center, Orlando, FL,
July 20, 2007.

“Heart Failure,” 2007 Internal Medicine Conference: Year in Review, Orlando Regional
Medical Center, Orlando, FL, July 20, 2007.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Sacred Heart Hospital,
Eau Claire, WI, July 31, 2007

“Prevention, Detection, and Management of Venous Thromboembolism,” Best Practices
in Primary Care Conference, Primary Care Network, Las Vegas, NV, September 14,
2007. v
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“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Holland Hospital,
Holland, M1, September 21, 2007.

“Update in Venous Thromboembolism,” Lake Erie College of Osteopathic Medicine,
Erie, PA, October 10, 2007.

“New Issues in Venous Thromboembolism and Heparin-Induced Thrombocytopenia,”
Medicine Grand Rounds, Memorial Hospital of South Bend, South Bend, IN, October 11,
2007.

“Prevention, Detection, and Management of Venous Thromboembolism,” Best Practices
in Primary Care Conference, Primary Care Network, Dallas, TX, November 2, 2007.
“The Two-Sides of DVT and Pulmonary Embolism: Prophylaxis and Treatment,”
Department of Medicine Grand Rounds, Sinai-Grace Hospital, Detroit Medical Center,
Detroit, MI, January 24, 2008

“Prevention of VTE in the Medically Ill Patient,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Delnor
Community Hospital, Geneva, IL, February 20, 2008

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds, North Shore
University Hospital, Manhasset, NY, February 26, 2008

“New Issues in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medicine Grand Rounds, Methodist
Hospital of Thomas Jefferson University, Philadelphia, PA, February 27, 2008.
“Reducing the Burden of Venous Thromboembolism,” PRIMED Symposia, Horizon
CME, Houston, TX, March 7, 2008.

“Perioperative Anticoagulation and the Threat of Heparin-Induced Thrombocytopenia,”
Medical Grand Rounds, Forsyth Medical Center, Winston-Salem, North Carolina, March
12, 2008.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE,” Medical Grand Rounds, Iredell Memorial Hospital,
Statesville, North Carolina, March 12, 2008.

“Risk Assessment for DVT and PE,” Respiratory Care Update 2008, Weirton Medical
Center, Weirton, WV, March 17, 2008.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Broward County
Medical Center, Fort Lauderdale, FL, March 19, 2008.

“Identifying VTE Prophylaxis Patient Circumstances in the Hospital Setting,” CME
symposia at the Society of Hospital Medicine Annual Meeting, France Foundation
accredited, San Diego, CA, April 3, 2008.

“Challenges in Anticoagulant Therapy,” CME symposia at the Society of Hospital
Medicine Annual Meeting, University of Cincinnati accredited, San Diego, CA, April 4,
2008.

“Burden of VTE in the Hospitalized Patient,” CME symposia at the Society of Hospital
Medicine Annual Meeting, Horizon CME and the Cleveland Clinic accredited, San
Diego, CA, April 4, 2008.

“Overview of Acute Decompensated Heart Failure,” CME symposia at the Society of
Hospital Medicine Annual Meeting, Postgraduate Institute for Medicine accredited, San
Diego, CA, April 5, 2008.

“National Quality Initiative and Anticoagulant Therapy,” University Healthcare
Thrombosis Symposium, University of Utah, Salt Lake City, Utah, April 18, 2008.
“Prevention of Venous Thrombosis,” Medical Grand Rounds, Lee Memorial Hospital,
Fort Myers, FL, April 22, 2008.

“Improving Patient Outcomes in Heart Failure: An Interdisciplinary Approach,” CME
Symposia, Emeritus Educational Sciences, New Orleans, LA, May 10, 2008.

“Risk Stratification and DVT Prophylaxis,” Medical Grand Rounds, Holyoke Medical
Center, Holyoke, MA, May 13, 2008.

“VTE Prophylaxis: What to Use, For Whom and For How Long?” CME Symposia,
National Meeting of the American College of Physicians, Washington D.C, May 16,
2008.

“Improving the Efficiency of Heart Failure Care,” Medical Grand Rounds, Saginaw
Hospital, Covenant Healthcare, Saginaw, MI, May 29, 2008.

“Improving Patient Outcomes in Heart Failure: An Interdisciplinary Approach,” CME
Symposia, Emeritus Educational Sciences, Chicago, IL, May 31, 2008.
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239.
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“Improving Patient Outcomes in Heart Failure: An Interdisciplinary Approach,” CME
Symposia, Emeritus Educational Sciences, Philadelphia, PA, June 14, 2008.

“VTE/PE Prophylaxis and Treatment: An Urgent Call to Action for a Common,
Preventable Disease,” Palms West Hospital, Loxahatchee, FL, July 23, 2008.
“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Banner Health Good Samaritan Hospital, Phoenix, Arizona, September 11, 2008.

“New Issues in the Management of Acute Decompensated Heart Failure,” Medical Grand
Rounds, Covenant Medical Center, Saginaw, Michigan, October 2, 2008.

“Reducing the Burden of Venous Thromboembolism,” PRIMED Symposia, New York
City, NY, Horizon CME, October 3, 2008.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Corpus Christi Medical Center, Corpus Christi, TX, October 21, 2008.

“New Issues in the Management of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds
and Visiting Professor, Long Island Jewish Hospital, Long Island, NY, October 23, 2008.
“VTE Quality Measures,” CME Symposia at the American College of Chest Physicians
Annual Meeting, Philadelphia, PA, October 27, 2008.

“VTE Guidelines and HIT: What the Emergency Physician Needs to Know,” CME
Symposia at the American College of Emergency Physicians Annual Meeting, Chicago,
IL, October 28, 2008.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE: New Strategies and Guidelines for Improving Patient
Outcomes,” Medical Grand Rounds, Community Hospital, Munster, IN, October 30,
2008.

“Reducing the Burden of Venous Thromboembolism,” PRIMED Symposia, Boston, MA,
Horizon CME, November 6, 2008.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE: New Strategies and Guidelines for Improving Patient
Outcomes,” Medical Grand Rounds, Danbury Hospital, Danbury, CT, November 12,
2008.

“Improving Patient Outcomes in Heart Failure: An Interdisciplinary Approach,” CME
Symposia, Emeritus Educational Sciences, La Jolla, CA, November 16, 2008
“Preoperative Medical Evaluation,” Medical Grand Rounds, South Bend Regional
Hospital, Notre Dame University, South Bend, IN, December 3, 2008.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE: New Strategies and Guidelines for Improving Patient
Outcomes,” Medical Grand Rounds, Eagle Valley Medical Center, Glenwood Springs,
Colorado, January 7, 2009.

“New Issues in Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds, Baptist Medical
Center, Montgomery, AL, January 20, 2009.

“Prevention and Treatment of VTE: New Strategies and Guidelines for Improving Patient
Outcomes,” Medical Grand Rounds, VA Gulfcoast Veterans Health Care System, Biloxi,
MS, January 22, 2009.

“Prevention of Venous Thromboembolism After Surgery,” 4™ Annual Perioperative
Summit, Miami, Florida, February 5, 2009.

“Anticoagulation and Thromboembolism Jeopardy,” 4™ Annual Perioperative Summit,
Miami, Florida, February 6, 2009.

“Medicolegal Issues in Perioperative Medicine: Lessons from Some Real Cases,” 4"
Annual Perioperative Summit, Miami, Florida, February 6, 2009.

“The Scoop on VTE Prophylaxis: Who, What, When, and How to Prevent Thrombosis,”
PRIMED Symposia, Fort Lauderdale, FL, Horizon CME, February 12, 2009.
“Prevention of VTE,” Medical Grand Rounds, St. John’s Regional Medical Center,
Oxnard, CA, February 24, 2009,

“The Scoop on VTE Prophylaxis: Who, What, When, and How to Prevent Thrombosis,”
PRIMED Symposia, Chicago, IL, Horizon CME, March 4, 2009.

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Quarterly CME Staff
Meeting, Genesis Medical Center, Davenport, IA, March 31, 2009

“Prevention and Treatment of Venous Thromboembolism,” Medical Grand Rounds,
Mercy Medical Center, Des Moines, IA, March 31, 2009
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“Acute Heart Failure Innovations in Action — Routine Prophylaxis for Venous
Thromboembolism,” Society of Chest Pain Centers National Meeting, Memphis, TN,
April 30, 2009.

“Preventing VTE in the Elderly: Do the benefits outweigh the risks?” Satellite
Symposium at the Annual Meeting of the American Geriatric Society (AGS), Chicago,
IL, May 2, 2009.

“Novel Treatments and the Future of VTE Prophylaxis,” CME Symposia — Challenges
and Advances in the Prevention of Perioperative Venous Thromboembolism, Society of
Hospital Medicine Annual Meeting, Chicago, IL, May 15, 2009.

“Prevention of VTE,” Medical Grand Rounds, Spectrum Health Medical Center, Grand
Rapids, MI, May 21, 2009.

“The Scoop on VTE Prophylaxis: Who, What, When, and How to Prevent Thrombosis,”
PRIMED Symposia, Los Angeles, CA, Horizon CME, June 11, 2009.

“VTE prophylaxis in the hospital: interventions for improving care,” Cardiology Grand
Rounds, Boston Medical Center, Boston, MA, September 16, 2009.

“VTE prophylaxis in the hospital: interventions for improving care,” Medicine Grand
Rounds, Methodist Hospital, Jefferson Health System, Philadelphia, PA, September 23,
2009.

“VTE prophylaxis in the hospital, interventions for improving care,” Oncology Grand
Rounds, Washington Cancer Institute, Washington Hospital Center, Washington DC,
September 25, 2009.

“VTE prophylaxis in the hospital, interventions for improving care,” Medical Grand
Rounds, Robert Wood Johnson Medical Center, New Brunswick, NJ, October 7, 2009.
“VTE prophylaxis in the hospital, interventions for improving care,” Society of Hospital
Medicine Chapter Meeting, Hartford, CT, October 15, 2009.

“VTE prophylaxis in the hospital, interventions for improving care,” Medical Grand
Rounds, University of Oklahoma Health Sciences Center, Oklahoma City, OK, October
16, 2009.

“Hardwiring a VTE Program to Ensure Success,” Chest 2009 Annual Meeting, San
Diego, CA, November 5, 2009.

“Preventing VTE in the Community: Best Practices for Establishment and Management
of an Outpatient VTE Prevention Program,” Horizon CME Symposia, Houston, TX,
January 21, 2010.

“Preventing VTE in the Community: Best Practices for Establishment and Management
of an Outpatient VTE Prevention Program,” Horizon CME Symposia, Baltimore, MD,
February 4, 2010.

“Overcoming Barriers to HIT Identification and Management in the Hospital Setting:
Practical Tips and Tools,” Medical Grand Rounds, St. Clare Hospital, Fenton, MO,
February 18, 2010.

“Prevention of VTE in the Surgical Patient,” 5" Annual Perioperative Summit, Miami,
FL, March 4, 2010.

“Meet the Experts: Perioperative Anticoagulation,” 5" Annual Perioperative Summit,
Miami, FL, March 5", 2010.

“Medicolegal Issues in Perioperative Medicine,: 5 Annual Perioperative Summit,
Miami, FL, March 6, 2010.

“Preventing VTE in the Community: Best Practices for Establishment and Management
of an Outpatient VTE Prevention Program,” Horizon CME Symposia, Seattle, WA,
March 11, 2010.

“Meeting the Challenge of VTE: Strategies for Implementing guideline-based
Recommendations,” Medical Grand Rounds, Oak Forest Hospital of Cook County,
Chicago, IL, March 18, 2010.

“Meeting the Challenge of VTE: Strategies for Implementing guideline-based
Recommendations,” Medical Grand Rounds, Saint Joseph Medical Center, Towson, MD,
March 24, 2010.
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“Meeting the Challenge of VTE: Strategies for Implementing guideline-based
Recommendations,” Raleigh County Medical Society Meeting, Beckley, WV, March 25,
2010.

“Meeting the Challenge of VTE: Strategies for Implementing guideline-based
Recommendations,” Medical Grand Rounds, Heritage Valley Health System, Beaver,
PA, April 1,2010.

“VTE Prevention, Diagnosis, and Management,” Medical Grand Rounds, Lee Memorial
Health System, Fort Myers, FL, April 8, 2010.

“Meeting the Challenge of VTE: Strategies for Implementing guideline-based
Recommendations,” Medical Grand Rounds, Community Hospital, Munster, IA, April
22,2010.

“The Nuts and Bolts of Preoperative Evaluation: What Every Internist Needs to Know,”
Primed-ACP Access, Milwaukee, WI, June 16, 2010.

“Prophylaxis and Treatment for VTE: Implementing Evidence-based Recommendations,”
Medical Grand Rounds, Long Beach Medical Center, Long Beach, NY, June 18, 2010.
“Prophylaxis and Treatment for VTE: Implementing Evidence-based Recommendations,”
Medical Grand Rounds, Margaret R. Pardee Memorial Hospital, Hendersonville, NC,
June 22, 2010.

“Prophylaxis and Treatment for VTE: Implementing Evidence-based Recommendations,”
Medical Grand Rounds, Norton Community Hospital, Norton, VA, June 24, 2010.
“Prophylaxis and Treatment for VTE: Implementing Evidence-based
Recommendations,” Medical Grand Rounds, VA Medical Center, Beckley, WV, June 25,
2010.

““Prophylaxis and Treatment for VTE: Implementing Evidence-based
Recommendations,” Medical Grand Rounds, Baptist Medical Center, Pensacola, FL, July
30, 2010.

“Prophylaxis and Treatment for VTE: Implementing Evidence-based Recommendations,”
Medical Grand Rounds, Dekalb Medical Center, Dekalb, GA, October 19, 2010.
“Prophylaxis and Treatment for VTE: Implementing Evidence-based Recommendations,”
Medical Grand Rounds, Holy Cross Hospital, Silver Springs, MD, November 23, 2010.
“Meeting the Challenge of VTE: Strategies for Implementing guideline-based
Recommendations,” Medical Grand Rounds, Parkview Hospital, Fort Wayne, IN,
January 31, 2011

“A Call to Action for Improved Thromboprophylaxis and Venous Thromboembolism
Management in Oncology,” Medical Grand Rounds, Princeton University Medical
Center, Princeton, NJ, February 22, 2011

“Prevention of VTE in the Surgical Patient,” 6th Annual Perioperative Summit, Miami,
FL, March 3, 2011.

“Meet the Experts: Perioperative Anticoagulation,” 6th Annual Perioperative Summit,
Miami, FL, March 4, 2011.

“Medicolegal Issues in Perioperative Medicine,: 6th Annual Perioperative Summit,
Miami, FL, March 5, 2011.

“A Call to Action for Improved Thromboprophylaxis and Venous Thromboembolism
Management in Oncology,” Medical Grand Rounds, Tufts Medical Center, Boston, MA,
March 25, 2011.
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L10-02-106 PV KENNETH BIELER 26 March 2010
Family Request _

AUTOPSY REPORT

AUTOPSY FINDINGS:

l. Pulmonary artery embalmed thrombus and clot.

Il. Cardiomegaly.

Il Hepatomegaly.

IV.  Embalmed body.
SUMMARY:
The decedent dies with saddle pulmonary embolism. He has history of relatively
recent accidental injury, requiring surgical repair of one femur, with continuous
medical therapy since the time of repair of the femur. The risk of
thromboembolism is a well-recognized sequel consequent to major injuries.

The manner of death is considered accidental.

Signed: 444;2221’—

Erik K. Mitchell, M.D.
Date: 2 lanty lpss
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INITIAL INFORMATION:

According to initial information, the decedent was an adult male who experienced
a femoral fracture. He received surgical repair of the femoral fracture and healed
sufficiently to be transferred from the hospital to a non-acute care system but
then, at a later point, had to return to the hospital. In hospital, he developed an
episode of chest pain and within a couple of days expired.

CIRCUMSTANCE OF EXAMINATION:

The body is examined postmortem on 26 March 2010 commencing at 1320
hours on the authority of the next of kin.

WITNESS:

Catherine Francis and Annette Carper provide technical assistance. Dr. Keever
witnesses most of the examination. Dr. Keever has arranged for delivery of the
body. Dr. Pojman witnesses the cardiac and pulmonary artery clot.

IDENTIFICATION:

The body is brought in a dented casket to the Shawnee County morgue and the
transporter identifies the bod)é'as Kenneth Bieler without viewing the body. Upon
opening the casket on the 26™ of March, the body of an adult male lies within and
has at the left ankle a-hospital armband-type ID band with the name “Bieler,
Kenneth”, a word that appears to be “Fentress”, and then the date, 1-29-08.

EXTERNAL EXAMINATION:
The body is of an adult male who is 75 inches tall. The body is previously

embalmed but has surface decomposition, some mold, and skin slip that is
especially prominent over the distal extremities.

Clothing consists of a cut button-up shirt over a cut T-shirt, black jeans with belt
over boxer shorts over black plastic, and in slippers.

A small photograph album is in the casket with the body.

The scalp has approximately inch-long brown hair admlxed with gray. There is
mustache and chin beard hair.

The right ventral base of the neck has a cotton covered, 1 5/8 inch long, sutured

incision consistent with an embalming access site. Immediately caudal thereto is
a 1/8 inch diameter puncture consistent with medial vascular access.
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The abdomen has a “trocar button” screwed into a hole in the abdominal wall.
No scars are identified at the wrists or antecubital fossae.

The right thigh has a 3 inch long, vertical, healed incision at the hip laterally.
Distal thereto is a vertically oriented, 2 3/4 inch long, sealed surgical incision, and
immediately proximal to the lateral aspect of the right knee is a 1 inch long
vertically oriented healed incision.

No tattoos or other identifying marks are found. There are areas of mold growth
and discoloration of the skin.

Body fluids have cozed from the body and partially glued the body to the casket
contents.

The body is lifted from the casket, undressed, and examined.
INTERNAL EXAMINATION:
The scalp is without bruise over an unbroken calvarium.

The 1,240 gram brain has a clear meningeal surface. There is no subdural,
subarachnoid, or epidural blood. There is no subdural membrane. The brain is
quite pale with symmetric structure and well-formed gyri. There is no localized
area of discoloration or tissue loss in cerebrum, cerebellum, pons, or medulla.
Intracranial vessels are thin-walled, translucent structures free of any clot. There
is no plaque. The gray matter ribbon is uniform thickness. Deep gray structures
are symmetric and appropriate in configuration. Mammillary bodies are without
asymmetry. Cerebellar folia are full. Lateral ventricles are blunted and contain a
small amount of clear fluid.

The upper airway is empty.

The hyoid is calcified without fracture, and there is no fracture of the larynx.
There is no hemorrhagic discoloration of soft tissues immediately deep to hyoid
or larynx. The epiglottis is tan. The esophagus has no visible bruise deep to the
larynx. Strap muscles are without focal discoloration. The bone structure of the
neck is stable and precervical fascia is without localized discoloration.

The thyroid is approximately symmetric structure across the midline and conslsts
of finely divided, pale, even textured, slightly gelatinous tissue.

The chest wall has no focal internal injury, and there is no acute rib fracture. A
small amount of fixed, reddish-brown material consistent with fixed body fluid is
on the surface of the lungs, more prominently on the right than the left.

3
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The 830 gram heart has a smooth epicardial surface without adhesion. Coronary
arteries show slight, minimally intrusive plaque in right and left coronary artery
distributions. The arteries are widely patent, and there is no luminal clot. The
myocardium is contracted. There is even thickness of the left ventricle with
estimated 0.4 cm right ventricular thickness. The endocardium is smooth. There
are granular areas of fixed clot, some of which show separation into currant-jelly
and chicken-fat type areas in the residual volume of the cardiac chambers with
exception of the right ventricle at the outflow tract where there is a cylindrical
portion of relatively smooth surfaced and slightly “U” shaped clot that appears
consistent with antemortem thrombus. The valves are delicate and have no
vegetations.

The aorta has the usual radicles and is free of clot. The aorta has minimal
amount of fixed granular blood. :

The 740 gram right lung and 620 gram left lung have empty airways barring a
small amount of grayish-tan, slightly granular material, consistent with fixed body
fluid. In the pulmonary trunk and the primary pulmonary artery branches of each
lung, is firm, cylindrical, coherent clot as well as some friable reddish material
about the areas of firm clot. The firm clot appears on transection to have some .
areas of laminar structure. There are also occasional minute surface projections
consistent with tributary veins not in the pattern of the pulmonary venous
structure, The clot varies from approximately 1 cm to nearly 2 cm diameter and
focally in the left lung appears adherent to the pulmonary artery wall. The ventral
aspects of the lungs are pink and relatively soft. The dorsal aspects of the lungs
are red, soft, and relatively less fixed by the embalming than the ventral tissues,
to gross examination. No discrete wedge-shaped lesion is identified. No mass is
identified.

The peritoneal cavity has extensive trocar perforations, especially of the bowel.

The 2,300 gram liver has a blunt ventral margin. The tissue is firm and fixed but
has no indication of nodule formation. The gallbladder appears embedded in the
liver with a firm, fixed wall and with fixed green biliary content that at its softest
has a somewhat sludge-like consistency but is without calculus. The biliary tree
in the portal triad is virtually empty with maximum diameter of the bile duct of
slightly less than 0.5 cm.

The 370 gram spleen has a thin, intact capsule and reddish-gray internal tissue
that has uniform appearance with inapparent white pulp granulation.

Within the thorax the esophagus has smooth, uninterrupted mucosa. The
stomach has rugose mucosa without mass lesion or ulceration. Small and large
bowel have soft, flabby tissue with some greenish-brown fixed material in the
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TOXICOLOGIC EXAMINATION: kt

KENNETH BIELER

nv, viiv

26 March 2010

8t. Louis University Toxicoloegy Labontor{ Regozt
6039 Helen ‘Ave, Berkaley, Migsouri €313

Tox # 2010-2236

Name: BIELER, KENNBTH
Age: Race: Sex: Male
Requesting Rgency: PRIVATE
o= SSss == RS SERCCauSSErTsaArE s CSsasaRnD s
Livex:
Alcohol:
EBthanol: Negative
METHANOL : POSITIVR
Acetone: Negative
Isopropanol: Negative
Drug Soreen:
hetamines: Negative
Antidepressants: Negative
Barbiturates: Negative
Benzodiazepines: Negative
Cannabinoids (THCY: “Negative
Cocaine/Metabolites: Negative
Lidocaine: Negative
Non-Opiate Warcotic Analgesics: Negative
Oplates: Negative
Phencyclidine (FCP): Negative
Phanothiazines: Negative
* Methadone! Negative
Propoxypheng: Negative
Rcetaminophen: Negative
galicylates; gogag!_.ve
Oxycodone: egative
P&anyl ' Negative
Oxymorphone: Negative
s=== ZRS= EZESSSzE=mnaeisSsS a8 BESEYSsARSESREE=SsSISDa

Requested by: SHAWNEE COUNTY CORONER
Received in Lab:

Repoxt by: DR. CHRISTOPHER LOEG
4 //

Pathologist's Note:

Date: 03/26/10
Datae/Time: 03/30/10//10:30 AM
pate/Time; 04/15/2010//08:52 AM

Methanol is a common ingredient of embalming fluid.

179
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MICROSCOPIC EXAMINATION:

Heart: mild postmortem changes. No inflammation, necrosis, or fibrosis.

Lung: edema with bloody fluid in some alveoli. In some vessels are
thromboemboli with well-developed lines of Zahn. No fibroblast
response to the emboli is detected in the sections sampled.

Liver: postmortem distention of sinusoids and loss of hepatocyte tinctorial
affinity. No fibrosis or aggregates of inflammatory cells. No large
vacuoles. The gallbladder adventitia has increase in reticular
arrangement of fibroblasts that appear mature.

Spleen: loss of red cells. Increased distance between cells. Moderate loss
of cytoplasmic definition. Formalin pigment. All findings consistent
with postmortem change and embalming.

Pancreas: loss of cytologic structure, with retention of cell outlines.

Adrenal: no inflammation or hemorrhage into cortex. Mild postmortem
‘changes.

Kidney: relatively better preservation than liver and spleen. Increased cell
separation. Some formalin pigment. No indication of significant
antemortem pathology.

Brain: hippocampal and cerebellar sections taken show postmortem
clearing about cell bodies and granular appearance of stain.

Pituitary: without significant pathologic lesion.

Signed: /

Erik K. Mitchell, M.D.

Date: &) art ¥ 20/0

kt

1
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Name:

Home Address:

Office Address:

Home Phone:
Office Phone:

Email Address:
Date of Birth:
Place of Birth:

Children:

Undergraduate
Education:

Medical
Education:

Honor Societies:

Internship:

Residency:

Fellowship:

Curriculum Vitae

John S. Daniels, MD

2156 Lafayette Avenue
Saint Louis, Missouri 63104

4921 Parkview Place
Suite 13A
Saint Louis, Missouri 63110

314 569-1574
314 333-4119 fax 314 333-4115

jonsanloui(@aol.com

June 16, 1948
Fort Smith, Arkansas

Lauren Cecelia Brave, October 17, 1978
Melissa Ann Peterson, March 20, 1980
Julie Allison Daniels, May 20, 1982

Washington University, Saint Louis, Missouri, B.A. June 1970

University of Arkansas School of Medicine

Little Rock, Arkansas, June 1974

Degrees: MD (Faculty Key, 1* ranked in class)
MS (Anatomy)

Alpha Omega Alpha
Sigma Xi
Fellow, American College of Physicians

Washington University/Barnes Hospital
1974-75, Internal Medicine

Washington University/Barnes Hospital
1975-77, Internal Medicine

Washington University/Barnes Hospital
1977-79, Endocrinology and Metabolism




Academic
Appointments:

Private Practice:

Board
Certifications:

Awards:

Organizations:

Current
Committee:

Assistant Director (Chief Resident), Department of
Internal Medicine, Washington University
Saint Louis, Missouri 1979-80

Associate Clinical Professor of Medicine
Washington University School of Medicine

Internal Medicine, Diabetes and Endocrinology
1980 to present

Internal Medicine, 1977
Endocrinology and Metabolism, 1979

Faculty Key, University of Arkansas School of Medicine
(1* ranked in class over 4 years)

Buchanan Key, University of Arkansas School of Medicine
(peer voted outstanding student)

Best Doctors in America, Midwest Region, 1996, 1997, 1998,
1999, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007,
2008

Missouri State Medical Society
American College of Physicians
American Diabetes Association
Editorial Staff, Missouri Medicine
Editorial Staff, Diabetes Care

Committee on Admisions, Washington University School
Of Medicine
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Publications

Faas, F.H., Wadkins, C.L., Daniels, J.S., David, G.R., Carter, W.J., and Wynn, J.O.:
Hyperparathyroidism in an elderly adult with hypophosphatasia.
Clin. Orth. Rel. Res. 101: 216, 1974.

Daniels, J.S. and Gilmore, S.A.: Chemography associated with specific anatomic sites
in autoradiographs of brain stems from adult rats. Brain Res. 98: 343, 1975.

Gilmore, S.A. and Daniels, J.S.: An autoradiographic study on the question of retrograde
axoplasmic transport following injection of 3H-Leucine into tongue.
Am. J. Anat. 139: 141, 1974.

Daniels, J.S.: The question of retrograde axoplasmic transport in the hypoglossal nerve
of the rat: an autoradiographic study of brainstem labeling patterns following
injection of tritiated leucine. Masters Thesis (located at the University of
Arkansas libraries), The University of Arkansas School of Medicine,

Little Rock, Arkansas, 1974.

Daniels, J.S., Mariz, I.K., and Daughaday, W.H.: Immunologic characterization of
a rat somatomedin. The Endocrine Society, Abstracts. 59: 138, 1977.

Jacobs, J.W., Rubin, J.S., Daniels, J.S., Daughaday, W.H., and Bradshaw, R.A.:
Purification, characterization, and amino acid sequence of rat
anaphyatoxin (C3A). Biochemistry 17: 5031, 1978.

Daniels, J.S.: Diabetes Mellitus. Chapter 30 Manual of Medical Therapeutics
23" Edition, 1979.

Daniels, J.S.: Newer concepts in pathophysiology and treatment of non-insulin
dependent (type II) diabetes mellitus. Upjohn Monograph, May, 1982.

Daniels, J.S.: Management of diabetic ketoacidosis. Urban Health, March 1981,
Pages 54-64.

Olk, R.J., Lipmann, M.J., Cundiff, H.C., and Daniels, J.S.: Solitary choroidal mass
as a presenting sign in systemic sarcoidosis. Br. J. Ophth., 67: 826, 1981.

Daniels, J.S. and Skor, D.A.: Intensive insulin therapy in the management of
diabetes Mellitus. Diagnosis, 8: 89, 1986.
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Daniels, J.S.: The pathogenesis and treatment of obesity. In Eating Disorders,
Edited by Larocca, F.E.F., published by Jossey-Bass Inc., San Francisco,
1986, pages 47-60.

Daniels, J.S. and Skor, D.A: Endocrine Evaluation of the Thyroid. In Otolaryngology
Head and Neck Surgery. Edited by Cumings, C.W., Fredrickson, J.M., Harker,
L.A., Krause, C.J., and Schuller, D.E.: volume 3, pages 2485-97, 1986.

Daniels, J.S.: Evaluation of the thyroid nodule. Insights in Otolaryngology,
Volume 2, June, 1987.

Daniels, J.S.: Abnormal nerve conduction in impotent patients with diabetes mellitus.
Diabetes Care, 12: 449, 1989.

Skor, D.A., Daniels, J.S., and Berk, M.A. Clinical Investigators, Hoechst (Glimepiride),
Protocol 201. Washington University School of Medicine, 1988-1990.

Daniels, J.S., Clinical Investigator, Echocardiographic study in patients treated with
Redux or fenfluramine. Wyeth Ayeerst, 1998-1999.
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Record Review:

FEE SCHEDULE FOR MEDICAL LEGAL WORK

250/hr

Deposition Testimony: 400/hr

Trial Testimony:

One half day out of office: one half of the average of the
last 90 day daily office revenue

One day out of office: average of the last 90 day daily
office revenue
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